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Mission Statement

EpfEw

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and

franchisees to appreciate our education, products and services, which are

the mission and conviction of the brand, who made modern ladies beautiful,
confident and wealthy.
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Corporate Information
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(As at 10 December 2020 (“the Latest Practicable Date"))
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Dr. LEI Chien

(alias Joanna LEl) (Chairperson)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

(alias lvan PAN)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. LU Yu-Min
(alias Vicky LU)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
(alias Steve CHEN)
Mr. LU Chi-Chant
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

(alias Ivan PAN)
Ms. SUN Ah Tsang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. SUN Ah Tsang (ACS, ACIS)

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
(alias Steve CHEN) (Chairman)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua
Mr. LU Chi-Chant
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG BEETELEEME
Level 54 A

Hopewell Centre SERBR183

183 Queen’s Road East AL

Hong Kong 5418

AUDITORS % B Em

RSM Hong Kong EEREGETAN AT
Certified Public Accountants HEZRTAD

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two B

28 Yun Ping Road 4] 478 v

Causeway Bay B B85

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Bird & Bird

6/F, The Annex, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
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Hong Kong
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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

1 Queen'’s Road Central
Hong Kong

King’s Town Bank Co., Ltd.
8F.,No. 167, Dunhua N. Rd.
Taipei

Taiwan

CTBC BANK Co., Ltd.
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Taipei

Taiwan

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Jingansi Sub-branch
1465 Beijing Road (W)

Shanghai

The PRC

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Zhijiang Sub-branch
377 West Zhijiang Road

Shanghai

The PRC

CTBC BANK Co., Ltd.
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27F Shanghai World Financial Center
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Financial Highlights

LR

Selected Financial Data BEERHE “E-AF —E—-RF B—+F ZE-N\F| ZE-hIE
HK$'000 (except per share data) ~ FiE T (B EIERIN HMIRFE BBEE MHEE HREE BREE

FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019
Revenue WA 506913 475225 399,579 369,525 438,413
Cost of sales SHEM A 109,419 122,366 94,467 146,665 172,843
Gross profit EH 394,494 352,859 305,112 222,860 265,570
Operating profit FEwvl 170,392 196,217 146,738 39,157 38,331
Profit for the year REE R 136,830 148403 105,388 26,259 21,908
Dividends il 136,944 247,660 112,117 29,031 0
Earning Per Share (EPS) ~basic &R &EF| - HEA $0.0680 $0.0740 $0.0530 $0.0130 $0.0110
Dividend Per Share (DPS) FRRARF $0.0684 $0.1237 $0.0560 $0.0150 $0
Total assets BEE 888,597 822,186 777,885 678966 757,400
Net asset value BEFE 732,628 654,673 650,746 551,855 567,793
Return on Equity (ROE) P& NEIE 187% 22.7% 16.2% 4.8% 3.9%
Return on Assets (ROA) BEMRR 15.4% 18.0% 13.5% 39% 2.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEETWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

Turnover of the Group in 2019 increased by 18.6% to HK$438.4 million
compared with HK$369.5 million in 2018. The rise was mainly due to an increase
of HK$74.5 million in product sales, such segment contributed to 96.5% of the
Group's total turnover.

Turnover in the PRC market increased by 3.8% from HK$292.7 million in 2018 to
HK$303.8 million in 2019, turnover in the Taiwan market increased by 79.4% to
HKS$131.6 million compared with HK$73.3 million in 2018.

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, decreased
by 12.3% from HKS$3.5 million in 2018 to HKS$3.1 million in 2019. Contribution
from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 0.7% of the Group's
turnover.

The Group's overall gross profit margin increased from 60.3% in 2018 to 60.6%
in 2019 mainly due to the change of the revenue mixture of the Group'’s
product/beauty apparatus/service packages, and the increase in the proportion
of higher-margin products in 2019.

Bt 7% 2] B8

B

ANEBE 7 EEFER —T— \F 369,500,000/
TCIEAN18.6%E — F — J1L4F #9438,400,00058 7T °
BRANREEHNERIEERR74,500,000%8
TC v A MG AR BB S RERY96.5% ©

FREAETEZEEBR T - N\FH
292,700,000/ L MN3.8%E —F — NLFH
303,800,000/ 7L : AEMB Z L X% AIHA

—E— \5F 173,300,000/ 7T FFR79.4% &
131,600,000/ JT ©

Hipthe (BIEEE - BREE KRB ZHEE
BT RK123% A =T — )\ 23,500,000/8 7T ~
PR =T — J1L4F 23,100,000/ 70 © x5 b
REESEB 2 BEREFENR  BIHAEEE
E

=

REBECEBERENEZRA T - N\FH
603%IIMNE T — NEFEM60.6% « EEHNA
EEEEER/ ERES/MEKABEEEE
B ERASPERFBERRS ERGL

EFTRRER

Turnover by activities REBE D Z2EHER 2019 2018 Changes
—T-hE —Z-N\F )
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER % | THET %  THET %
Products EE 423,261 96.5% 348,728 94.4% 74,533 21.49%
Services BR7& 15,152 3.5% 20,797 5.6% (5,645) (27.1%)
Total wmEt 438,413  100.0% | 369,525 100.0% 68,888 18.6%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and
new beauty apparatus. Product sales are the Group's key revenue source and
primarily come from franchised spas, online and other sales platforms, self-
owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product sales
in 2019 amounted to HK$423.3 million, or 96.5% of the Group's total revenue,
representing an increase of HK$74.5 million or by 21.4% when compared with
product sales of HK$348.7 million in 2018. The increase in product sales was
mainly driven by the increase in turnover in such segment in the PRC market
by 6.7% to HK$292.2 million in 2019 compared with HK$273.9 million in 2018,
and the increase in turnover in such segment in the Taiwan market by 79.5% to
HK$127.9 million in 2019 compared with HK$71.3 million in 2018.

Services
Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, medical
cosmetology services, training and other services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. The Group's strategy is to establish self-owned spas as model
outlets in strategic locations to stimulate franchisees to join in. As at December
2019, the Group has three self-owned spas and two self-owned medical
cosmetology centers in the PRC and eight self-owned spas in Taiwan.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W& D
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Services (Continued)

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2019, service income
decreased by 27.1% to HK$15.2 million compared with HK$20.8 million in 2018.
The decrease in service income was mainly driven by the decrease in turnover
of spa services and medical cosmetology service income by 25.7% to HK$14.5
million compared with HK$19.5 million in 2018.

Bt % [51 B ()

PR 7% (&)

BRATMBLE R - ZIKEIT%%EDHHH%
KEIRBER LTS 2 A RBWE - RZT—
NF - REREE=ZZF—/\F 220,800, ooo;"é
TCR A 27 1% 215,200,000/ 7T+ E B AR RKE
R EEBEREFEEARBUER - —\F
Z.19,500,00078 7T 35k 4> 25.7% % 14,500,000/ JT, °

Service income PR 75 W 2= 2019 2018 Changes
—E-hEF —T-N\F b4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET % | TET % TET %

Training income R 436 2.9% 423 2.0% 13 3.2%
Spa/Medical cosmetology KFERRTSBEER

service income AR U 2 14,509  95.8% 19,536 94.0% (5027)  (25.7%)
Others Hit 207 1.4% 839 4.0% (632) (75.3%)
Total #Et 15,152  100.0% 20,797 100.0% (5,645) (27.1%)
The PRC Market PR RESS
The Group's turnover in the PRC market increased by 3.8% in 2019 to HK$303.8 AEBRA B AEMIZZ 2 EEH T — N\
million compared with HK$292.7 million in 2018. The rise was mainly due to an £ 2.292,700,000/8 TTIE K3.8%E —E— NLF 2

increase in the sales of products. Gross margin on product sales increased from
64.2% in 2018 to 67.6% in 2019. The key reasons are the changes in the mixture
of products with different marginal gross profit and the revenue mixture of the
Group's product/beauty apparatus/service package in PRC in 2019.

The Taiwan Market

The Group's turnover in the Taiwan market increased by 79.4% from HK$73.3
million in 2018 to HK$131.6 million in 2019. The significant increase in total
sales of NB Taiwan was mainly driven by the increase in revenue from product
sales through direct-sale stores and online and other sales platforms.. Gross
profit margin on product sales decreased from 76.4% in 2018 to 65.9% in 2019.
The key reason of the decrease in gross margin is that the marginal gross profit
of the existing sales platforms is lower than the marginal gross profit of the
original channels.

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) Bt % [ B ()

The Taiwan Market (Continued) =) ik 165)

Benefited from the operation strategy of EMI Group, NB products were B NEHFREE 2 BRI - AARAZERSB
sold through the distribution channels of EMI. In 2019, sales revenue from  HFRE TR D EBKIEE - R _ZT—NF - &
TV shopping, E-commerce and telemarketing channels in Taiwan market EMIZNEREY - BEFEH - EETHB
contributed HK$47.2 million to the Group, accounting for 36.9% of the product & EE 5 $5 & Uk A ¥ K £ B & B £ 47,200,0007%5

sales in Taiwan. TC E A MR E MIEE R 2 36.9% °
Turnover by geographical region  RithiF 8|5 2 &£ 5E 2019 2018 Changes
SE-AE | ZFN\F gt

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
PRC =i PN
Products E W 292,242 273,940 18,302 6.7%
Services AR 7% 11,514 18,735 (7,221) (38.5%)
PRC Total AR K BE AR T 303,756 292,675 11,081 3.8%
Taiwan =]
Products Efm 127,923 71,253 56,670 79.5%
Services Bl 7% 3,633 2,062 1,571 76.2%
Taiwan Total =-1:-5) 131,556 73,315 58,241 79.4%
Others Hit
Products Em 3,096 3,535 (439) (12.4%)
Services AR 7% 5 s 5 =
Others Total Hangst 3,101 3,535 (434) (12.3%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains decreased by 26.2% from HK$8.1 million in 2018
to HK$6.0 million in 2019, mainly due to the decrease of interest income and
government grants in 2019 by 47.7% and 35.5% respectively compared with
that in 2018. Other income and other gains mainly comprised interest income,
rental income from investment properties, other properties and equipment,
government grants of HK$1.6 million, HK$2.6 million and HK$1.4 million
respectively in 2019.

Selling and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
increased to 34.1% in 2019 compared with 32.5% in 2018. The distribution and
selling expenses increased by HK$29.5 million from HK$120.2 million in 2018 to
HKS$149.7 million in 2019. Staff costs in relation to distribution work increased
by HK$9 million from HK$49.4 million in 2018 to HK$58.4 million in 2019. Other
key expenses included advertising expenses of HK$40.2 million, new products/
business launching events and customers' training session expenses of HK$11.5
million, depreciation charges of HK$8.2 million, transportation charges of
HK$4.2 million, and travelling and entertainment charges of HK$9.5 million in
2019.

Total administrative expenses increased by HK$2.5 million, or 3.6%, to HK$72.5
million in 2019 compared with HK$70.0 million in 2018. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits (including directors’
emoluments) of HK$26.6 million, legal and professional fees of HK$15.4 million,
depreciation and amortisation charges of HK$9.1 million and office and utilities
expenses of HKS5.1 million in 2019.

Other expenses and other losses

Other expenses and other losses decreased by HK$0.7 million, from HK$3.9
million in 2018 to HK$3.2 million in 2019. Other expenses and other losses
mainly included exchange loss of HK$1.2 million, and related expenses of rental
of other property of HK$1.7 million in 2019.

Profit before tax

Taking into account of the pre-tax profit margin decreased to 8.4% in 2019 from
10.6% in 2018 in the Group, profit before tax decreased by 5.5% from HK$39.2
million in 2018 to HK$37.0 million in 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased by HK$2.2 million to HK$15.1 million in 2019
compared with HK$12.9 million in 2018. The effective tax rates of the Group in
2018 and 2019 were 32.9% and 40.8% respectively.

Profit for the year
Profit for the year decreased by 16.6% from HK$26.3 million in 2018 to HK$21.9
million in 2019.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2019 was approximately HK$18.9
million (HK$74.0 million in 2018). As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$135.6 million (HK$158.2 million
as at 31 December 2018) with approximately HK$25.0 million of external bank
borrowing.

In terms of gearing, the Group's gearing ratios (defined as total debt divided by
shareholders’ equity) in 2018 and 2019 were zero and 4.4% respectively. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 were 2.76 times and 2.27 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its consolidated financial statements
and the notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group's
liquidity position remains strong to meet its working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's secured bank borrowings with maturities
falling due within one year, in the second to fifth years without repayment on
demand clause and in the second to fifth years with repayment on demand
clause were HKS1.1 million (2018: Nil), HK$10.4 million (2018 : Nil) and HK$13.4
million (2018: Nil), and therefore the Group’s net cash (exclude time deposits
with maturities of over three months but less than one year) amounted to
HK$110.6 million (2018: HK$158.2 million). These bank borrowings were
denominated in RMB and NTD at floating rates during the year. The Group did
not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk via interest rate swap.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s secured short-term and long-term bank
borrowings were secured by certain freehold land, buildings and right-of-use
assets related to leasehold land, with carrying amounts of HK$102.3 million.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
Most of the Group's revenues are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB") and
New Taiwan Dollars ("NTD") as its operations are mainly located in the PRC
and Taiwan. As at 31 December 2019, approximately 81.5% (82.9% as at 31
December 2018) of the Group's bank balances and cash was denominated
in RMB, while approximately 9.7% (10.1% as at 31 December 2018) was
denominated in NTD. The remaining 8.8% (7.0% as at 31 December 2018) was
denominated in US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit. The
Group continues to adopt a conservative approach in its foreign exchange
exposure management. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group reviews its foreign exchange risks
periodically and uses derivative financial instruments to hedge against such
risks when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW KO E
Distribution channels DHEEE
Self-owned
Medical
Store Number by RERREED 2 Franchisee-  Self-owned Entrusted  Self-owned Total Cosmetology
Ownership EHE R owned Spa Spa Total Spa Counter Counter Counter Center Total
mEHRE  BELE  AERL Zit HE HERE
KERD  kERL axt KeEf  feER @A xR b
Asat31December2019  W=Z-h%E
t=A=t-A
PRC PR AR 862 3 865 0 9 9 2 876
Taiwan =) m 8 280 0 0 0 0 280
Others Eft 27 0 27 0 0 0 0 27
Total @zt 1,161 1 1,172 0 9 9 2 1,183
Self-owned
Medical
Store Number by BREEES Franchisee-  Self-owned Entrusted  Self-owned Total  Cosmetology
Ownership EEHE owned Spa Spa Total Spa Counter Counter Counter Center Total
mE#EEE  BERE  KERD Zit B4 BEE2
KERL  KERD g  REZRE  REER 0 =EEH FATD &:t
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
+-A=+-A
PRC REIARE e 2 775 0 14 14 2 791
Taiwan aig 241 3 244 0 0 0 0 24
Others Hih 7 0 7 0 0 0 0 7
Total b 1,041 5 1,046 0 14 14 2 1,062
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

O EE )

Distribution channels (Continued) DEEBEE)
2019 2018
2019 2018 Average Average
Average sales SHIEH Average Average sales per sales per
per store FIHER store* store* store store Changes
ZE-AE | ZE-N\F
ZE-hF | ZE-N\F SEEH | SHEH
B JEHTS 15 15
fR* B tHER SHE R 28
HKS$ HKS HKS %
BT BT BT %
PRC Gl 833.5 801.5 364,000 365,000 (1,000) (0.27%)
Taiwan e 262.0 246.5 502,000 297,000 205,000 69.02%
Group total** @@t 1,096.5 1,0480 397,000 349,000 48,000 13.75%
* Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period * T EMSEE A (AT + B RE) 2
total)/2 FTE
*  Group total does not include turnover and store count in Hong Kong, Macauand ~ ** &£ B@AHTEERES  BRARERAD 2

Malaysia.

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As
at 31 December 2019, there were 1,172 spas, 2 medical cosmetology centers
and 9 concessionary counters. Of these, 1,161 were franchised spas, while
11 spas, 2 medical cosmetology centers and 9 concessionary counters were
directly operated by the Group. No concessionary counters were entrusted
to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees who
are responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to
use only Natural Beauty or “NB” products in their spas. A wide array of services
including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis,
are provided in all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available at the
concessionary counters in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 143 new stores were opened and 22 stores were closed

during the year ended 31 December 2019. Average sales per store increased
from HK$349,000 in 2018 to HK$397,000 in 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which
allows it to maintain its competitive edge, continuously improve the
quality of its existing products and develop new products. The Group has
been collaborating with overseas skin-care companies on technological
development. The bio-technology materials the Group use for its NB products
are imported from Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and
development team comprises a number of overseas consultants with
experience and expertise in cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry.
NB products are constantly enhanced and modified by the application of new
ingredients developed by the team. The Group draws on its collaboration of
experts with different expertise and experiences, together with the Group's
40-year-plus industry experience and knowledge to continue to create high-
quality beauty and skin care products. NB principally uses natural ingredients
to manufacture products and adopts special formulae to cater to the specific
needs of women with delicate skin. NB products accommodate the natural
metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

Natural Beauty has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human
genome and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging
NB-1 product family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-
resistance and slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United
States to protect the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

In 2019, the Group's flagship NB-1 series products accounted for 19.2% of
total product sales, which reached HKS$80.5 million. Based on the continuous
research and strategic planning of the beauty market, the Group kept up with
the latest market trend and successfully launched the resveratrol beverage,
which generated HK$15.1 million for the healthy food category, and increased
the share of this category in our total product sales by 3.6%. With the promotion
of resveratrol anti-oxidation and rejuvenation, the Group successfully launched
the resveratrol skincare series, with a sales of HK38.6 million, accounting for 9.2%
of the total product sales.

In the same year, the Group successfully introduced holographic quantum
robot and Natural Beauty seven function instruments, so as to improve the
Group's dominant position in the beauty and spa market, in order to better
promote the spread of brand reputation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Products (Continued)

In 2020, the Group will actively expand other channels, such as cross-border
product cooperation with countries such as Belgium and South Korea.
Meanwhile, it has established a new young brand Bio-up and opened a
flagship store in Shanghai SML center to attract young customers and young
entrepreneurs to join the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 606 employees, of whom
380 were based in the PRC, 216 in Taiwan and 10 in other countries and
regions. Total remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2019 was
approximately HK$123.1 million (HK$105.7 million in 2018), including retirement
benefit related costs of HK$8.9 million (HK$8.6 million in 2018). Competitive
remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable
staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$76.4 million in 2019 was mainly related
to the new plant construction in the PRC amounting to HK$60.7 million,
opening of new stores, renovation and equipment amounting to HK$6.4 million
and office and self-owned spa centre renovation amounting to HK$9.3 million.

Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liability

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 — Lease (HKFRS 16) came
into effect on 1 January 2019. At the commencement date, the Group should
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The related right-to-use
assets and lease liabilities are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2019, the Group's right-of-use assets were HK$76.8 million (HK$64.9
million as at 1 January 2019) and its lease liabilities were HK$27.9 million
(HK$14.9 million as at 1 January 2019). In 2019, depreciation charges of right-of-
use assets amounted to HK$6.4 million and interest charges of lease liabilities
amounted to HK$1.2 million.
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OUTLOOK

During the period, the Group's business development continued to use group
resources to improve service quality, product research, multi-channel layout,
franchising, e-commerce, telemarketing, TV shopping, and businesses of
manufacturing products for third parties, which grew rapidly through revenue
diversification.

Important market development strategy

- Taiwan: Using the Group's abundant media resources to
advertise its brands and products, and successfully
selling the Group’s products in all virtual retail channels
of the Group, the growth momentum of revenue
continued to increase.

= Mainland China: ~ Continue to grow as a franchise chain, deploy new
channels such as TV shopping, e-commerce, etc, and
introduce European and Korean brands to promote
e-commerce business, while expanding the group’s
multi-brand and multi-national product richness.

Looking to the future, the Group will continue to enhance its competitiveness,
consolidate its core business, and at the same time explore new business
opportunities for innovation, and establish a steady, innovative and continuous
growth.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERRSE

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company firmly believes that strong corporate governance is the
foundation to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its
stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure is an
effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board") which is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance, sound internal control
and effective risk management to enhance transparency, accountability,
integrity and honesty, in order to earn the confidence from our shareholders
and other stakeholders and to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/

irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are
applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2019, the Company applied
the principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The following summarizes the Company’s corporate governance
practices and explains deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A. Directors

Al.
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AABWLEEERER @

A. EE
Directors’ attendance and training records Al :é% h Jﬁ&i%ﬁll%@ﬁ;iz .
The Board currently comprises eigght members, consisting of two §$§IEE?)\%W%%EW ’ /qui/a
e e moers ERANTES  —2INTES
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three REZLBYIERITEE BEZEE
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board meets four times FEZPEFOAESE RS —N
during a year as a minimum and, during 2019, it met six times. FERFTTRNREHE HE-_ZE—1h
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the FTZA=+T—HLEFER &M@
Directors’ attendance records at the meetings of the Board and §$§ E\@z}i%@&%% ’ 112
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting as well as iié%i;iﬁziiiéi
i " fraini i SRl = ab ek 7
the Directors’ training records during the year ended 31 December ey
2019 are as follows:
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Annual  Extraordinary
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Board General General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting Meeting Meeting Course
FWZRE EBHERE REZRE EZE  RREF BRR¥H $E3
EE EE ) EE N N RE
Executive Directors BITEE
Dr. LFI Chien EfEEL 33 n/a ) 6/6 1/1 0/1 Notesaandb
TR Miztakb
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan REALE 23 a n 5/6 1/1 /1 Note a
TR Mizta
Non-executive Directors FHUTES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu? EHEEHETY n/a n/a n/a 1/ - -
T TR TEM
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung® B Y n/a n/a n/a 5/6 01 o1
TER TER TER
Ms. LU Yu-Min ERRZL n/a n/a n/a 5/6 01 01 Note a
ok TEA TEA Miita
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL LT n/a 5/5 na 6/6 o o1 Note a
TEH TEm Mita
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang RFEEEY n/a n/a n/a 5/5 01 o1 Note a
TER TER TER iz
Independent Non-executive  BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BnELE 33 5/5 bl 6/6 071 0/ Note a
Mzt
Mr. LU Chi-Chant ERERE 33 5/5 0N 6/6 o1 1/1" Notesaand b
EENE
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien e b 3 45 12 5/6 o1 01 Note a
Mizta

BAEEMRRBRAT ZTE-NFFR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

26

Directors (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and
Committee meetings in person could appoint another Director
as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as
attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.

Notes:

(1) No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2019.

) Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member
of Executive Committee on 25 January 2019 and remains as the
Honorary Chairperson of the Company. One Board meeting was
held on or before 25 January 2019.

3) Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung ceased to act as a Non-executive Director
on 16 November 2019. Five Board meetings were held before 16
November 2019.

(4) Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang was appointed as a Non-executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee on 25 January 2019. Five
Board meetings were held after 25 January 2019.

(@) Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

(b) Attended other continuous professional development training
course(s) that was/were not organized by the Company.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”)
and the respective Charters of the Committees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

Al

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

The agenda of Board meetings or Committee meetings and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Counsel and the
Company Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such
meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the CG Code.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against them
arising from corporate activities.
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(Continued)

A.

28

Directors (Continued)

A2.

A3.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. LEI Chien serves as the Chairperson while Ms. LIN Yen-Ling is
the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief
Executive Officer are separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group
strategic and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer has the
overall responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's
responsibilities.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive
directors without the presence of other directors. The Chairperson
met the independent non-executive Directors once without the
presence of other Directors during the year ended 31 December
2019.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts or letters of appointment,
including Executive and Non-executive Directors, usually serve
one-year term, and are subject to re-election pursuant to the
Articles and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
("AGM"). Ms. LU Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. LU Chi Chant will
retire by rotation according to the Articles and all of them, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the related
circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we consider the
independent non-executive director is still independent and
our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-
election of such independent non-executive director. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an existing
Independent Non-executive Director, has served on the Board for
more than nine years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A. Directors (Continued)
A4. Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)
Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.518(1) of the Listing Rules
Directors and position(s) held in other members of the Group

On 25 January 2019:

(i) Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu resigned as a Non-executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company; and

(i) Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company.

Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung ceased to act as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 16 November 2019.

1 July 2020:

(i) Ms. LIN Shu-Hua was appointed as a director of some of the
Company's subsidiaries; and

(i) Mr. PAN Yi-Fan resigned as a director of some of the
Company's subsidiaries.

Other major appointments
Dr. LEI Chien, an Executive Director of the Company, ceased to
act as an independent director of Waterland Financial Holding
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2889), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange, on 12 June 2020.

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, an Executive Director of the Company, ceased to
act as the chief strategy officer at Eastern Media Group and the
general manager of Eastern Integrated Marketing, Inc.

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua, a Non-executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as an independent director of Cashbox Partyworld
Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 8359), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange, on 26 June 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

Directors (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules (Continued)

Other major appointments (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company:

- was appointed as the board chairman and chief executive
officer of China Petrochemical Development Corporation,
Ltd. (stock code: 1314), a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange, on 31 January 2020 and 27 March 2020
respectively and ceased to act as an independent director of
the company on 31 January 2020;

- ceased to act as an independent director of Walsin Lihwa
Corporation (stock code: 1605), a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, on 29 May 2020;

- ceased to act as Board Chairman and Chief Operating Officer
of Powerchip Technology Corporation (stock code: 5346), a
company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market, on
12 August 2020; and

- ceased to act as a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan,
Teknowledge Development Corporation and Powerchip
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp.

Mr. LU Chi-Chant, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, was appointed as an independent director of Global
Brands Manufacture Ltd. (stock code: 6191), a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, on 18 June 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

32

Directors (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules (Continued)
Approval of Director’s service contract

On 15 November 2019, the Board approved the renewal of the
Director’s service contracts and letters of appointment of all
Directors (except Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang and Mr. HSIAO Wen-
Chung) for a term extending to 31 December 2020.

The annual Director’s fee of Ms. LU Yu-Min, a Non-executive
Director of the Company, has been revised to USD102,492 with
effect from 1 July 2019 and USD134,000 with effect from 16
November 2019.

On 14 August 2020, Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, an Executive Director of the
Company, has entered into a supplemental agreement with
the Company for a revision of his annual Director’s fee from
HK$1,000,000 to HK$500,000 with effect from 1 September 2020.

On 30 November 2020, the Board approved the renewal of the
Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment of all
Directors for a term extending from 31 December 2020 to 31
December 2021 and revisions of the annual Director’s fee of Mr.
PAN Yi-Fan and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua to HK$250,000 and HK$240,000
respectively with effect from 1 January 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

AS5.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman),
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN
Yi-Fan respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company's
Board and having an appropriate proportion of Directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy
aiming at setting out the criteria and process in the nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and ensuring
the Board has a balance of skills, experiences and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company as well as the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

Report on Corporate Governance

CEEARE

AABWLEEERER @

A. EE®H)

A5.

BAEEDMBRARAS

REZES

RAFHAY  BEZBEH=F
BIUFRTESEMMEATESE
B D RIRBERELE(ER) - K
Infgsed EXERAE  EFEBL
AERLELE

ARAERMNEFTEZTTIERER
EHINEARREZTERERNKE
Z AL MEREE 75 8t B & @ LL )
MES REERAEEERB AR
ETEMH &R URRE TR
BiEkESMIER - ARBRAR R
KGR - TAEERELIAER
Bemk -

ARABMEOHKMNESREBHR - B
EIRAREMNRERNRAESTZE
AREF  BREFSABIAN
NEEBAFBORD - ERREZT
B YHERAAREFSNEE
MERERFREAEAE -

—z-—ngFx 33



Report on Corporate Governance
TRERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

34

Directors (Continued)
A5.  Nomination Committee (Continued)
A summary of the director nomination policy is set out below:

Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship
In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination process

AS5.

(@)

Appointment of new director

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

36

Directors (Continued)
A5.  Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination process (Continued)
(b)  Re-election of Director at general meeting
(M) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws
and regulations.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board annually and making recommendations to the Board on
selection of candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy. It also assesses the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

Directors (Continued)

AS5.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2019. During the year 2019, the
Nomination Committee reviewed board diversity policy and
director nomination policy and conducted an annual review of the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board pursuant
to the CG Guidelines and code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee also assessed the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors and recommended to
the Board on the appointment of the Director appointed during
the year. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and no
material matter was identified during the year.

Save as the above, the Nomination Committee has performed
corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1
of the Code on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

38

Directors (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal advisers, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2019, all Independent Non-executive Directors
are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Some Non-executive Directors are
members of the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2019 are set out under “Directors’
Attendance and Training Records” on page 25 of this Annual
Report.

Securities transactions made by Directors and relevant employees
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required
standard of the Model Code has been complied with throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company pursuant to code provision
A6.4. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or the
Company’s Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has
been noted after making reasonable enquiry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

Directors (Continued)

Aé.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company, and is collectively responsible for directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board directly, and
indirectly through its committees, leads and provides direction
to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group's operational and financial
performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated to management team.

Continuing professional development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company organized one Directors’ training
on the regulations in relation to the duties of directors of Hong
Kong listed companies.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the
Directors and members of senior management, which set out
(a) the principal continuing obligations of the Company and the
Directors as a result of the listing of the securities of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems
and procedures that the Company, its Directors and senior
management should follow in order to ensure compliance with
such obligations.
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A.

40

Directors (Continued)

A7.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management and
board evaluation

B1.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman), Mr. CHEN
Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-executive Directors and senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Remuneration of Directors and senior management and
board evaluation (Continued)

B1.

B2.

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his/her associates was involved in
determining his or her own remuneration. It also ensures that
remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2019. During the year 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and recommended the approval
of the proposed bonus awards for all employees and senior
management; reviewed and recommended the Directors’ service
contract of Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang as Non-executive Director;
reviewed and recommended the adjustments of the Director’s fee
of Ms. LU Yu-Min; and reviewed and recommended the renewal
of Director’s service contracts and letters of appointment of all
Directors (except Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung and Mr. CHEN Shou-
Huang). With reference to the Remuneration Committee Charter,
the Remuneration Committee members had carefully reviewed
and considered the contribution of each of the Directors to the
Group, the Directors’ experience in the beauty and spa business
and the market rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.
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C.

42

Accountability and audit

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management's strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans
and actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 121
to 123.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

C.

Accountability and audit (Continued)

C1.

Cc2.

Financial reporting (Continued)

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well
as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

Risk management and internal control

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, manufacturing and procurement,
financial reporting, human resources and information technology.
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Accountability and audit (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company's risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed with the principles to enhance the operation
effectiveness, reduce loss in assets, ensure the reliability of financial
reports and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others,
environment control, risk assessment, activity control, information
and communication, and internal surveillance.

The Company organizes personnel and seeks assistance from
external professional advisory institutions to establish the risk
management and internal control systems which are subject to
the review by the Company’s management team and approval by
the Audit Committee and the Board.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly
to identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group
and various aspects including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information security. Self-
evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and compliance
with best practices. In coordination with department heads, the
management assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress,
and reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and the
effectiveness of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also
reports to the Audit Committee on the implementation of internal
control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

C. Accountability and audit (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016
to enhance risk management and internal control systems in a
timely manner. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for
performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The
Internal Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provides the
effectiveness of its implementation and recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate
its employees to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting control or other matters of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board conducted
reviews of the risk management and internal control systems and
considered that such systems of the Group had been implemented
effectively and adequately. The Board's review will also consider
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company'’s Directors, officers, senior
management and Relevant Employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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c2.

AABWLEEERER @

C. Accountability and audit (Continued) BERET @)
Risk management and internal control (Continued) Q. EAREERABEZEGE)
SIGNIFICANT AREAS OF CONCERN EARETHE
The Audit Committee has engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers ENZEGCDERTENETRE
Management Consulting (Shanghai) Limited as forensic A EB)BRARIREFGTAD -
accountant to conduct forensic review on certain issues relating U —F—-NF—A—RAE=%
to the sales made by the Group to certain distributors and —NF+ZA=+—HHHAEHE
how certain individual distributors and customers settled their HETHEMETHHEERENE
payments to the Group during the period from 1 January 2019 FREARE TEALHEERER
to 31 December 2019 (the “Forensic Review”). Subsequently, the AR EEEE RIEEITEER
Company engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited (“Shinewing”) B(DEZFEMD - Hig2 - ARAE
as its internal control consultant to conduct a review of the internal BEXABRERERAERAB(E
control systems and procedures of the Group (the “Internal Control XI)BEALESIER - AR E
Review") in response to, inter alia, the concerns as identified in the (AR B3 AEE I T AT A
Forensic Review. %i‘fﬁﬁ B BB IR R AT R AR i
TEB (A EPEHIZEE) -
The key findings of the Forensic Review for the review period from ZE-hEFE-—A—HEZZ—AN

1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 pertain to the following
subject matters (“Subject Matter”):

i‘i-fﬂ =t+—BENMERET
EEENOTIEER S NIAT IR

FHE(EHRE]D) -
Subject Matter Key findings
FHEE FERR
Subject Matter 1 Sales spike relating to four individual distributors and arrangement on goods exchange
quota granted to distributors
TREE BANEEASHEANHEERA X TEHEENE mRXR A AL
Subject Matter 2 Concerns over how certain individual distributors and customers settled their payments
by employees or multiple payers
BER BRETHEAKLERAEFPIARBEE RS BNRAGERENRE
Subject Matter 3 Some sales did not appear to be supported by third party evidence of delivery
BEIE3 BOHEUT W EBE=T EEEBEN
Subject Matter 4 Fictitious sales allegations
b &Y R S 1%
Subject Matter 5 Accounts receivables of the major customers as of 31 May 2020
EEREHS BE_Z_ZFRAA=+—RIZEFPHNEKRER
Subject Matter 6 Revenue recognition appears to be inconsistent with the Company’s accounting policy
®B=E1Ee WARERUFEBAR BN EETBER T —H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

C. Accountability and audit (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

ENHANCED INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES

In response to the Subject Matters identified in the Forensic
Review, Shinewing noted that the Company has taken the
enhanced internal control measures on both entity and activity
level. For details of such enhanced internal control measures,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2
December 2020 under the section headed “Enhanced Internal
Control Measures”.

During the Internal Control Review, Shinewing has performed
testing on the enhanced internal control processes, and no
irregularities were noted. As the internal control deficiencies
identified in the Internal Control Review have been fully
remediated, Shinewing is of the view that the Company has put
in place adequate internal control and procedures to address
the concerns identified in the Forensic Review, and meet its
obligations under the Listing Rules.

In addition, on 27 November 2020, the Auditors had sent a letter
to the Audit Committee setting out certain internal control
deficiencies identified during the Auditors’ audit. In response, the
Audit Committee had requested Shinewing to assess the internal
control deficiencies as raised by the Auditors. On 2 December
2020, Shinewing confirmed to the Audit Committee that the
Internal Control Review has covered all the internal control
deficiencies as identified by the Auditors in its letter, and that the
remedial measures implemented by the Company are sufficient
and adequate to address the Auditors’ concerns in its letter.

The Board confirms that it has received confirmation from the
management that the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems are effective.
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Accountability and audit (Continued)

a.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman),
Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua,
respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. LU Chi-Chant
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members
is a partner of the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information
it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to
cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/

irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

C. Accountability and audit (Continued)

a.

4.

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019. During the year 2019, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 and interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2019 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2019,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Group's auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to
HK$189,000 and non-audit services amounted to nil which were
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
D. Delegation by the Board
D1. Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- long-term objectives and strategies;

- extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- material banking facilities;

- material acquisitions and disposals;
- material connected transactions; and
- annual internal controls assessment.

D2. Board Committees
The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee
and Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf
with specific terms of reference setting out their roles and
functions available at the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

D. Delegation by the Board (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee
comprises two Executive Directors and three Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson), Mr. PAN Yi-Fan,
Ms. LU Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang
respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (‘KPIs") and track
performance.

No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY AATNEEERER @

(Continued)
E. Communication with shareholders E. HRRZEBE
E1. Effective communication E1. BREE

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees
or their respective delegates are requested to attend the
forthcoming AGM.

The Company has held one AGM and one extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM”) on 23 May 2019 and 3 June 2019 respectively
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of a listed issuer should attend the AGM. The chairman of the
board should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees to attend. In their absence,
the chairman of the board should invite another member of the
committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the
AGM.

On the AGM held on 23 May 2019, Dr. LEI Chien, the Chairperson
of the Board, attended and chaired the AGM and responded to
shareholders’ questions. Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, an Executive Director, and
the Company’s auditors also attended the meeting.

On the EGM held on 3 June 2019, Mr. PAN Yi-Fan attended and
chaired the EGM. Mr. LU Chi-Chant, an Independent Non-executive
Director, also attended the meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

E. Communication with shareholders (Continued)

E1.

Effective communication (Continued)

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of
general meetings by, for example, giving adequate time to all
Directors to accommodate their work arrangements and providing
all necessary support for their presence and participation at general
meetings, such that the Chairperson of the Board and all Directors
will be able to attend future general meetings of the Company.

The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2019
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and for the
EGM at least 10 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Articles of the
Company, which is available at the Company’s website (www.ir-
cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of Directors
by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication Policy are
available for download from the Company's website (www.ir-
cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite to provide comprehensive information related to
shareholders.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District,
Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455

Email: ir@nblife.com
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(Continued)

E.
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Communication with shareholders (Continued)

E1.

E2.

Effective communication (Continued)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as
required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Company's
Articles is also available on the Company’s website: www.ir-
cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange's
website.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of the
2019 AGM and EGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2019 AGM and EGM.

A representative of the Company's Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2019
AGM and EGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2019
AGM and EGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange
and that of the Company at www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

E. Communication with shareholders (Continued)

E2.

E3.

Voting by poll (Continued)

Investor relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for good investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company's website: www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy setting out the
principle and guidelines by the Company to apply declaration,
payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the
shareholders.

F. Company Secretary
During the year 2019, Ms. HO Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an
external service provider and was engaged by the Company as its
Company Secretary and resigned on 20 March 2019. The Company has
engaged Ms. SUN Ah Tsang of Tricor Services Limited, an external service

provider, as its Company Secretary on 20 March 2019. Their main contact
person at the Company is Ms. Jenny ZHU (Chief Legal Counsel).

Both Ms. Ho and Ms. Sun have confirmed that they have undertaken no

less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year 2019.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EEkGREEERE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. LEI CHIEN (ALIAS JOANNA LEI)

Aged 62, is the Chairperson of the Company. She was appointed as the
Company's Executive Director on 26 October 2018. She is also the chairperson
of Executive Committee and a member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. She is currently also a director of some of the
Company'’s subsidiaries. Dr. Lei is currently an executive director of Pacific
Construction Co,, Limited* (K F 2R 1D B R A 7)), a company listed on
Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE: 2506). Dr. Lei is also serving on the board of a
number of non-profit organisations such as the Chinese Childrenhome and
Shelter Association* (1 £ B 4 i#% 52 Z A1 1% €) and the National Women'’s
League* (P2 R BH 17 228 & 2). She has over 30 years of experience in the
media and broadcasting sector and corporate management. Dr. Lei began her
career as a media and development scholar at the University of Pennsylvania
from 1984 to 1987. From 1987 to 1996, she worked in the media conglomerate
Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. in New York. She was eventually promoted to Vice
President and was one of the highest ranking Asians in mainstream American
media. From 1997 to 2002, Dr. Lei was an investment partner of Baring
Communication Equity Asia in Singapore. Her investment activities included
equity investment, debt restructuring, and merger and acquisitions in telecom,
media, and information technology industries across the Asia Pacific region
excluding Japan. In 2000, Dr. Lei returned to Taiwan and from 2003 to 2004, she
was an executive director of Eastern Broadcasting Company Co., Ltd (“EBC"). She
has been elected as senator at the Legislative Yuan of the Republic of China in
2005 and until 2008. Dr. Lei was appointed as the chairman of a government-
owned enterprise, Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor Co., Limited* (& P98 B & 5 /%
AR A]) in 2008. From 2009 to 2017, Dr. Lei has worked again in EBC as
a board director. Dr. Lei was an independent director of Waterland Financial
Holding Co,, Ltd.* (1 & BiZEAR A 7]
Exchange (TWSE: 2889). Dr. Lei obtalned a bachelor of arts degree in foreign
languages and literature from the National Taiwan University in June 1980. She
has received a master of arts degree in June 1983 and a doctor of philosophy in
June 1996 from the University of Pennsylvania (Philadelphia).

, a company listed on Taiwan Stock
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. PAN YI-FAN (ALIAS IVAN PAN)

Aged 49, was appointed as the Company’s Executive Director on 26 October
2018. He is also a member of Executive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan was the chief strategy
officer at Eastern Media Group and worked as the general manager of Eastern
Integrated Marketing, Inc. from 2017 to 2019. He has more than 10 years of
experience in private equity investment and corporate management. Prior to
joining Eastern Media Group and Eastern Integrated Marketing, Inc. in February
2017, Mr. Pan worked as a consultant at McKinsey & Co. from 1999 to 2005.
He was then a vice president at Crimson Investment from 2005 to 2007 and a
director at Deutsche Bank from 2007 to 2010. He has worked as a director at
the CID Group in Shanghai from 2010 to 2017. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor of
business administration degree from National Taiwan University in June 1993
and he received a master of business administration degree from the University
of Michigan in April 1999.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LU YU-MIN (ALIAS VICKY LU)

Aged 56, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
Ms. Lu is the consultant for cosmetic business of Far Eastern Silo & Shipping
(Panama) S.A. since October 2018. Ms. Lu has over 25 years of experience in
the luxury retail and cosmetics industry with a solid understanding of Chinese
consumers and the Chinese markets. Ms. Lu previously worked for The Estee
Launder Companies for over 14 years, managing brands including Estee Lauder,
Clinique, MAC Cosmetics, Bobbi Brown, Origins, La Mer, Darphin and Aramis as
managing director of the beauty product group's Taiwan Affiliate from 1999
to 2011. Ms. Lu then became the vice president and general manager of Bobbi
Brown International, overseeing five global regions based out of its New York
headquarter. Ms. Lu also has experience in management of buying, operations,
logistics, sales and marketing for global brands such as Celine, Salvatore
Ferragamo and COACH when she worked for DFS from 1989 to 1990, and Bally
Hong Kong from 1991 to 1992. From 2014 to 2016, Ms. Lu has also provided
end-to-end e-commerce business services to Shanghai Baozun E-Commerce
Limited* (E/SBEE 7B R A F)). Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree
in journalism from National Chengchi University in June 1986.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EEREREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LIN SHU HUA

Aged 57, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of both Executive Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company. She is currently also a director of some of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Lin is currently an independent director of Cashbox
Partyworld Co., Ltd. (stock code: 8359), a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. Ms. Lin was the vice president of the finance department of
Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd.* (R&E S ER MDA R A 7))
between January 2005 and September 2008. In April 2016, Ms. Lin re-joined
the same company, holding the same position since then. After obtaining her
qualification as a Certified Public Account of the Republic of China in August
1996, Ms. Lin has since then worked at the finance department of various
companies, including Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd* (RFARERBERMNAE
R /A &)), Eastern Multimedia Co., Ltd.* (RFRE BRI TN AR A 5)) and
Sensen Home Shopping Co., Ltd.* GR#x B B/ H B R A 7)), accumulating
over 20 years of experience in total. Ms. Lin graduated from the Department
of Accounting at National Chung Hsing University in 1987 and obtained an
executive master degree of business administration from the National Taiwan
University in 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHAN SHOU-HUANG

Aged 68, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 25
January 2019. He is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
He obtained a master degree in law from the Chinese Culture University and
subsequently obtained a doctoral degree in law from the National Taiwan
Ocean University. He is currently a part-time professor in the Institute of
Marine Law of the National Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Chen used to serve as
parliamentary vice minister of Taiwan Ministry of Justice, the prosecutor of the
Supreme Court Prosecutor’s Office, the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court of
Taiwan and the Head Prosecutor of various districts in Taiwan. During the period
when he served as the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court, he was appointed as
the president of Taiwan After-Care Association and the Association for Victims
Support.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG (ALIAS STEVE CHEN)

Aged 72, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive
Director on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics
from National Chung-Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the
Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held
various positions and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan
in various countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in
Belgium from 1974 to 1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute
for Information Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Chen is currently
the Board Chairman of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan
and the Secretary-general of Cross-Strait CEO Summit. He is also a director of
HannStar Board Corporation (stock code: 5469) and Asia Cement Corporation
(stock code: 1102); a managing director and independent director of Formosa
Chemicals and Fibre Corporation (stock code: 1326); an independent director
of INVENTEC CORPORATION (stock code: 2356), and Walsin Lihwa Corporation
(stock code: 1605), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Starting
from 31 January 2020 and 27 March 2020 respectively, he is the Board Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of China Petrochemical Development Corporation,
Ltd. (stock code: 1314), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and ceased to be
an independent director on 31 January 2020. From June 2011 until 10 June
2014, he was an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech. Co,, Ltd. (stock
code: 3452), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was a director
of GINTECH ENERGY CORPORATION (stock code: 3514), listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange, until 30 October 2017. He was the Board Chairman and Chief
Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology Corporation (stock code: 5346),
listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market, until 12 August 2020. He was an
independent director of Walsin Lihwa Corporation (stock code: 1605), listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 29 May 2020. He was also a director of Bank
of Panhsin in Taiwan, Teknowledge Development Corporation and Powerchip
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LU CHI-CHANT

Aged 69, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 18 December 2015. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle Nice
(International) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 02368), and an independent director of LEALEA
ENTERPRISE CO., LTD (stock code: 1444), Hannstar Board Corp. (stock code: 5469)
and Global Brands Manufacture Ltd. (stock code: 6191), all listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent director of Nyquest Technology Co,,
Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market (stock code: 6494).
From June 2015 to June 2018, Mr. Lu was an independent director of Li Peng
Enterprise Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1447), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. From June 2014 to May 2017, Mr. Lu was an independent director
of K Laser Technology Inc. (stock code: 2461), a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. From 2012 to 2013, Mr. Lu was an independent director of First
Sino Bank, a licensed bank established in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lu
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from National Taiwan
University in 1974 and passed the professional qualification examinations in
Taiwan for certified public accountant in 1983 and for securities investment
analyst in 1988. During the period from 1976 to 1984, Mr. Lu worked as a
mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics Corporation, a company established
in Taiwan which is principally engaged in the manufacturing of plastic raw
materials and products. Mr. Lu joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as an auditor
in 1984 and he became a partner there in 1986. Mr. Lu left Deloitte & Touche
Taiwan in 2011.

60 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2019

BYEHITES :
EXE L
695% * RZE—RAF+ AT+ N\BEZEAERE
Aﬂﬁi#ﬁﬁ§$°ﬁﬁﬁ$ BERTES
FEXF  BERZECRREZEGNE - K
EEZ%J%%(IB’ ERBR AT (—RABR AT
FiREMZAR - BREOREE : 02368) 2B 3E
HITES  FARTARSERESFRSA LT
B NBERMD AR AT ARMDRSE : 1444)
BFEERDAERD R BRM R  5469) K15
BEHE D AR A B (BRMDARS : 6191) 2 BAL
EZ -FAhARAEESFBEEERLETY

NEBEEHEIR D AR AR (MRS : 6494) 2
VEE EXAER _Z—RHFEANAE-_ZT—

NERNABREETAIBEEROERAR (—
RREEFBFR G EMZ AR - RO :
1447)NBYEE  R_ZE—NFAAZZE
—tF A APREETHEERERGBERA
A—RREEBEHER S EMZAT - B
RIE 2461 NBUYES  UEARZE—=F
K_;—EE%%%Eﬁ—ﬁﬁkﬁﬂwi

REMBIR BT ZBYES - &
%Eﬁ—ntmiﬁﬁ VASY-pN-Y T
B85 WHRIR— ﬂﬂ FER—HNANE

EEBBNESHAREFRRESTZH
EEKEH - ﬁfhtﬂié—nﬂmiﬂ
o BEXEHETREBRIERMDERA
(—RREEBKILZ AT z%%%iéﬂ%
BRATE R @) 2 B TA2ED o BEAER—A
NEOFIABE RS DM BBATH %
AR WR—NN\NFERAEEEEBA - EX4E
R ——FHHAYEREH A CTMER
FiT o



Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG SHIH-CHIEN

Aged 76, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 16 November 2018. He is also a member of Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee. He is currently the chairman and
chief executive officer of Global Strategic Investment Fund, a board director
of Tecom Co,, Ltd. (TWSE. 2321), Yageo Corporation (TWSE. 2327), TECO
Electric & Machinery Co,, Ltd. (TWSE. 1504) and Mitac Inc. (TWSE. 3706), and an
independent director of TOPKEY Corporation (TWSE. 4536), WUS Printed Circuit
Co,, Ltd (TWSE. 2316) and Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. (TWSE. 6217).
Mr. Yang was a national policy advisor to the President of the Republic of China
between January 2009 and May 2016. Prior to that, Mr. Yang already worked in
the government of the Republic of China for more than 28 years, such as the
director of the Planning and Evaluation Division of the National Science Council,
Senior Vice Minister of the Ministry of Economic Affairs and Minister of State. Mr.
Yang also worked as a research engineer at the Chung Shan Institute of Science
& Technology between November 1973 and January 1978. Mr. Yang obtained a
bachelor's degree in electrical engineering from the National Taiwan University
in June 1967. Mr. Yang subsequently obtained a master and a doctor degree in
electrical engineering from Northwestern University in June 1971 and August
1973 respectively.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. LIN YEN-LING

Aged 57, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 26
October 2018. She is currently also a director of some of the Company's
subsidiaries. She graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from National
Chengchi University in Taiwan. Ms. Lin has been working in Eastern Group since
May 2018 as Chief Marketing & Sales Officer of Eastern Media International
Corp., Chief Marketing Officer of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd., and
Chief Sales Officer of ETtoday Co., Ltd. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Lin was the
general manager of Lintas China Group from 2016 to 2017. From 1997 to 2016,
Ms. Lin had worked at Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd. as Chief Operation and
Sales Officer and Havas Worldwide as Executive Vice President of Greater China
and Chief Executive Officer of Taiwan.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EEREREEERE

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. SUN AH TSANG

Ms. Sun, is a Manager of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”),
a global professional services provider specializing in integrated Business,
Corporate and Investor Services. Ms. Sun has over 10 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial field. She has been providing professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational, private
and offshore companies. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Sun is the
company secretary/joint company secretary of three listed companies on the
Stock Exchange, including the Company, China Greenland Broad Greenstate
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1253) and JiaXing Gas Group Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 9908). Ms. Sun is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional and an Associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries ("HKICS") and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the United
Kingdom. (Note: The Company has engaged Tricor as external service provider
and appointed Ms. Sun as the Company’s company secretary since 20 March
2019.)

*  For identification purpose only.
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-
up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and beauty apparatus and (b)
provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services, medical cosmetology
services, skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management discussion and analysis” for
the discussion of business review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Management of Major Risks

Since the Group operates in a highly dynamic and competitive landscape,
continuous and effective risk management is vital for survival in hard periods
affected by the current COVID-19 pandemic. Some major risks currently being
managed are:

Product Competitiveness

Facing increasingly fierce competition in the industry, it is particularly important
to maintain brand and product competitiveness. The Group will continue to
invest, actively develop new product lines and promote the diversification of
the customer base in order to pursue greater development.

Inventory management
Inventory management and control plays a significant role in the Company’s
liquidity since bloated inventories will tie up unnecessary funds.

Online Threats

Online business is the current hot spot in the market. In 2019, the Group
introduced Korean brands to open its self-owned online business in the
mainland. In the future, in the face of fierce competition in the online business,
the Group will continue to interact with customers through a diversified
channel strategy and provide services to customers of different consumption
and age levels.
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Directors’ Report
EEgHRESE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material breach of, or non-
compliance, with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient
usage of resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives
include the recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not been subject to
any fines or other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or
environmental regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance, please
refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the year 2019, which will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/0157/
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 124.

No interim dividend (2018: interim dividend of HK$0.0145) was paid to the
shareholders during the year. At the Board meeting held on 24 March 2020,
the Directors did not recommend the payment of any final dividend (2018
final dividend of Nil). Details of the dividends are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 30% of the Group's revenue from sales of goods
or rendering of services were attributable to the Group's 5 largest customers
combined.

During the year, about 16.3% of the Group's total purchases (beauty apparatus)
was attributable to the Group's largest supplier, and about 45.9% of the Group's
total purchases was attributable to the Group's 5 largest suppliers combined. To
the best knowledge of the Directors after making all reasonable enquiries, no
Director, close associate of each Director, or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) has any interest in the suppliers and/or
customers mentioned above.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2019 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. There was no change in
fair value of investment properties other than the exchange realignment.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on page 8 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the publishing date of

this report were:

Executive Directors:
Dr. LEI Chien (alias Joanna LEI)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias Ivan PAN)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang
(appointed on 25 January 2019)
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (alias TSAl Yen-Pin)
(resigned on 25 January 2019)
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung
(ceased to act as Director on 16 November 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (alias Steve CHEN)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re- election at that meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Ms. LU Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and
Mr. LU Chi-Chant shall retire by rotation pursuant this article.

All the above-mentioned Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange. The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and
withdraw if appropriate.
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES
The Chairperson of the Board and the members of each of the committees of
the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Honorary Chairperson
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Chairperson
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board)

Members of Audit Committee:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

Members of Remuneration Committee:
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

Dr. LEI Chien

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

Members of Executive Committee:
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
Ms. LU Yu-Min
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang
(appointed on 25 January 2019)
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu
(resigned on 25 January 2019)

Members of Nomination Committee:
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Dr. LEI Chien

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well
as the Chairperson of the Company as of date of this report are set out below:
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Board Committees

EEZEE
Audit Remuneration Executive Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors EZEgNE EREES ¥HEES HITZESY REZES
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board) EEBLEFSEE) - M C M
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan ERNEE = M M M
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. LU Yu-Min EBmRZL = = M =
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL LT M = M =
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRFIE T E - - M -
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHITES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRIGME £ & C M = M
Mr. LU Chi-Chant BEREELLE M C = M
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien A M M = C
Notes: BisE
C Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C FHREZZEENER
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EBREELZEENKE
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2019, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were nil.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Director's service contract entered between the Company and each of the
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors, except Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang,
whose initial term is from 25 January 2019 to 31 December 2020, was expired
on 15 November 2019. The Director’s service contract of each of Dr. LEI Chien,
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, Ms. LU Yu-Min and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua was renewed with the
same terms, except for the adjustment of the annual remuneration of Ms. LU
Yu-Min and extended to 31 December 2020. The Director’s service contract of
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung was not renewed. Subsequent to the above-mentioned
renewal of Directors’ service contract, the Directors’ service contract of each of
the above-mentioned directors was renewed with the same terms, except for
the adjustment of the annual remuneration of Mr. PAN Yi-Fan and Ms. LIN Shu-
Hua, and extended to 31 December 2021. The above-mentioned Director’s
service contracts shall be terminated by either party giving to the other party at
least three months’ notice in writing.

The letters of appointment entered between the Company and each of Mr.
YANG Shih-Chien, Mr. LU Chi-Chant and Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long was expired on
15 November 2019, 17 December 2019 and 31 January 2020 respectively and
on 15 November 2019 and 30 November 2020, were renewed with the same
terms and extended to 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 respectively.
The above-mentioned letters of appointments shall be terminated by either
party giving to the other party at least one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract or letter
of appointment which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)
Remuneration of Directors, chief executives and senior
management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief executives on a named
basis and the senior management by band, are set out in notes 15 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Permitted indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as known to any Directors, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their close associates had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 347 of the SFO and the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company’s
shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants’ contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share option was granted,
cancelled or lapsed under the share option scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company'’s listed securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, within the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons or corporations had or deemed or taken to have an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Approximate

percentage of
Number of the issued
ordinary shares  share capital of
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Nature of interest beneficially held the Company
BREEAE GERQAERT
TERRBE BB M EEME EBERHEE REBOBEIL
Eastern Media International Corporation 1 Interest of controlled companies 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
("EMIC")
RARBEFRA D AR QA SR LN £
(ERARERR D)
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. 1 Beneficial owner 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
ERERMEEZH)RHBERAA BEREAA
CHAO Shih-Heng 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
izl RIEHIA R R
Good Titanic Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
SR INGIE £
Insbro Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
R A R AR EmERA
TSAI Yen-Yu 3 Interest of controlled companies 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
FEHE RPEHIA R R
LEE Ming-Ta 4 Interest of spouse 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
FEE Ao iBrEss
Next Focus Holdings Limited 5 Beneficial owner/Interest of 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
controlled companies
ERBEEAN/ ZES R EER
Starsign International Limited 5 Interest of controlled companies 292,958,524(L) 14.63%
RIEHIA AR
Standard Cosmos Limited 5 Beneficial Owner/Interest of 292,958,524(L) 14.63%

L) :Long position

controlled companies
¥t PNt VNG £
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

m

Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EMIC. As
such, the shares of the Company in which Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A.
is interested were attributable to EMIC.

Insbro Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Good Titanic Limited, which is in
turn owned as to 100% by Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng. Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng is the sole
director of each of Insbro Holdings Limited and Good Titanic Limited. As such,
the shares of the Company in which Insbro Holdings Limited is interested were
attributable to Good Titanic Limited and Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited. Next Focus
Holdings Limited is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and
interest of 445,315,083 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus Holdings
Limited was attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 445,315,083 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to the SFO.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly holds 152,356,559 shares of the Company
and directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. Starsign International
Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos Limited, which, in turn, is
the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group
Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such, the 290,618,524 shares of
the Company collectively held by Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa
Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited and 2,340,000 shares of the
Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited (totalling 292,958,524 shares
of the Company) were attributable to Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign
International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors are not aware of
any other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

On 16 November 2018, (a) a tenancy agreement was entered into
between B AEEMEI IR D B R A & (Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Company Limited) (“Taiwan NB"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, as landlord
in relation to the lease of certain premises in Taipei, Taiwan which has
been used as the headquarters and training and spa centre of the Group
in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of one year from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019, with monthly rental of TW$2,250,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$571,066) to extend the term of the previous tenancy
agreement of the same subject matter (the “Renewed Taipei Tenancy
Agreement”); and (b) another tenancy agreement was entered into
between Taiwan NB as tenant and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, as landlord in
relation to the lease of certain premises in Pa-Der Road, Taipei, Taiwan
which has been used as a spa centre of the Group, in Taipei, Taiwan, for
a period of one year from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 with a
monthly rental of TW$78,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,797) to
extend the term of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject
matter (the “Renewed Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement”).

As Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the landlord of the Renewed Taipei Tenancy
Agreement, was a Non-executive Director of the Company when
entering into Taipei Tenancy Agreement and is a substantial shareholder
of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report, and Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng, the landlord of the Renewed Pa- Der Tenancy Agreement, was an
Executive Director of the Company in the last 12 months, both Dr. TSAI
Yen-Yu and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng are connected persons of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under these tenancy agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

Unless otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the exchange rate used
in the above tenancy agreements is HK$1.00 to TW$3.94.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

2.

76

On 22 March 2019, Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited
(BAEEYRIFERMDBRAR]) (‘Taiwan NB”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a project cooperation
agreement (the "ET New Media Cooperation Agreement”) with ET New
Media Holding Limited Co. (GRFx #7188 15 A% A1 B BR 2 A1) ('ET New
Media"), pursuant to which Taiwan NB agrees to engage ET New Media
to produce, publish and broadcast advertisements and to organise media
events, with a view to enhance the image of the “Natural Beauty” brand
and to raise public awareness on the brand.

Nature of transactions
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Taiwan NB may from time to time instruct ET New Media to carry out advertising projects.

The parties shall separately agree on the timing, manner and fees of each specific advertising

project at the appropriate time.
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Pricing At a certain discount to the prices ET New Media offer to its clients which are independent third
parties.

EE RARFERBREBEYE=ARPAEHRERNE TN -

Term From 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019.

HABR BT hWF=ZA-+=-HE-_FE—NFREA=+—H-

Annual cap Pursuant to the terms of the ET New Media Cooperation Agreement, the cap in respect of the
fees payable by Taiwan NB to ET New Media thereunder for its term, i.e. the period from 22
March 2019 to 31 May 2019 shall be NT$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$509,645).
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual cap was arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed in

the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
FELR RIBRARFTHE S E R 2 1R

2,000,0007T (P& 72 49509,64578 7T) ©
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F-NAFRAA=Z+T-HLERBERXGEARKNREBRN 2 ERLRAH

(FfizE : BEHBAAR  FELBRDIERARARBPA T —NAE-A-+ B2 AEMEEN
F 2= (B1.007% 70 33T & #63.92437T) i B0

As at 31 December 2019, Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. (& 5
ERMECZE) RN AR AR (FESS) is a controlling shareholder
of the Company, and Eastern Media International Corporation (5 # B
B B BR A F)) (‘EMI") is the 100% shareholder of FESS. As ET New
Media is a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of EMI which is owned
directly as to approximately 93.90% of its shareholding by EMI, ET New
Media is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the ET New Media
Cooperation Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

3.

On 22 March 2019, Taiwan NB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a goods procurement agreement (“Eastern
Health Procurement Agreement”) with Eastern Health Biomedical Co.,
Ltd. GRAR 2R A E B BR A A))(“Eastern Health”), pursuant to which
Taiwan NB may from time to time make wholesale purchase of products
from Eastern Health such as health supplements for on-sale to end
customers.

The major terms of the Eastern Health Procurement Agreement are as
follows:

Nature of transactions
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During the term of the Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, Taiwan NB may from time to

time make wholesale purchase of products from Eastern Health such as health supplements for

on-sale to end customers.
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Pricing At a certain discount to the relevant market retailing price.

EE HETSTEE G TN -

Term From 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019.

HABR BZE-NF=A-+ZRAZ=ZE-hFRAA=1T—RH-

Annual cap Pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, the cap in respect of
the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased under the Eastern Health Procurement
Agreement for its term, i.e. the period from 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019 shall be
NT$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,548,225).
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual cap was arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed in

the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
FELR RN AR E IR % 2 1R K
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As at 31 December 2019, Far Rich International Corporation (3 & BB i
B B R)) (“Far Rich”), directly or indirectly control the composition of
a majority of the board of directors of EMI. As such, Far Rich is considered
the holding company of EMI for the purposes of the Listing Rules. As
Eastern Health is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Far Rich
which owned indirectly as to 90% of its shareholding by Far Rich, Eastern
Health is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Health
Procurement Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

4.

78

On 22 March 2019, Taiwan NB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the product consignment agreement (“Eastern
Home Consignment Agreement”) with Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure
Co, Ltd. (RFHZRB ZEMRHDBR 2 A]), a company incorporated in
Taiwan with limited liability (“Eastern Home"), pursuant to which Taiwan
NB shall authorise the sale of the Target Products (as defined below) to
end customers and the use of related promotional materials by Eastern
Home, and shall be responsible for the provision of the Target Products.
While Eastern Home shall be responsible for the production of relevant
programs and/or advertisements to be broadcasted, transmitted and/or
published through various channels, and to market and sell the Target
Products through these channels to end customers.

Major terms of the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement are

BEXIREERERSY 2 ER
€=
4. MZZE-—NF=ZA-+-H BAZES

BRRRZHEAE2ENB AR BRAR
SHBERMNERAR(—HESEZM
R BRRAE) (RRASZEDRILE
mHBR(RRSHBRERE]D
BUBAXEERERREZBRK R
EFHERREMERNT) RMEMAM
MEEMH  YERERHBSER M
RAEBHBUNERRFEBEERERE
B EERRBMEREE R
BE o WEBRTREBRKME P HH
MHEBREM

RREZBAEHE 2 T EGFEA N

summarised below:

Subject matter

FTEEHR

Nature of transactions

RHME

T

Certain products manufactured, distributed or sold by Taiwan NB and services provided by
Taiwan NB will be selected by Eastern Home as the products or services to be marketed and
sold to end customers by Eastern Home under the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement (the
“Target Products”).

BAXBEMEE  DHIHEZETERRBAXEMBERZRE - BHRKF
SBRBERAEIEREGRIEREMBR TS ERE ML E 2 EmIRS (B IRE

dnl) o

Taiwan NB shall authorise the sale of the Target Products to end customers and the use of
related promotional materials by Eastern Home, and shall be responsible for the provision of
the Target Products.

BAXEERERRGIBRARRELHEARER KEMRERSEME - LT BER

HBREmR °

Eastern Home shall be responsible for the production of relevant programs and/or
advertisements to be broadcast, transmitted and/or published through various channels
including but not limited to television, internet, catalogues, publications, mobile phones,
newspapers, radio shows and direct mail, and to market and sell the Target Products through
these channels to end customers.

RARGIBEETREEASBRREBEETRAER #B% ExFM 719 F
o ma BARED)ERE  ERERABMHAEBGER KBS WEBZSE
REMAKRHEFPHENHERRER °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXSREENRERGYZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ (#)

4.

(Continued)

Fees and commission

BERAKAE

Term

HAmR

Annual cap

FE LR

4. (B

The proceeds received by Eastern Home from the end customers through the sale of the Target
Products pursuant to the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement shall, after deducting relevant
fees, commission and cost of sales, be paid over to Taiwan NB.
RRGIBRBERRSIBRAHEBZERHEEBRTERRRIKEF KIZ FAEHIEA
(RN ER - M RIEEXAR)BEAXNBEAEEE -

In respect of Target Products being sold through the internet:

BEBPRHEZBFEEMME

(@)  Taiwan NB shall pay a sale commission at 3% of the relevant sale proceeds to Eastern
Home; and

(@ BAXAEHREREEMSIRZINARKSTIEINHEERE + &

(b)  given Eastern Home shall from time to time organise marketing events, Taiwan NB shall
additionally pay a marketing sponsorship fee at 2% of the relevant sale proceeds to
Eastern Home for such Target Products sold during the month of May 2019.

b) ERRREBIBHETRKALLHEY BRELESUNR_ZE-NFRHALE
WZE B RERBEREEMETIEZ2%MRRE BRI EHEDE -

From 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019.
BT NEF=A=Z+=ZRAE=-FT-AFRA=F+—H-

Pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement, the cap in respect of
the aggregate Net Proceeds payable under the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement for its
term, i.e. the period from 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019 shall be NT$40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,192,901).

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual cap was arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)

RIERHRESERERZ KR BEREHREAEE—NF=ZA=-+=-H==
Z-NAFREA=ZT—HIEMBERRESERERZEN 2E LB HRIEFE L
R & %7 & #40,000,0007T (FBE 72 4910,192,901/87T) ©

(i - AEHBEAR  FELRIERAARBPA-TE-—NEF=-A-+HZAEMEEN
2 (B1.00% 70 33T & #63.92437T) i B0
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
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4.

80

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Eastern Home was accounted
for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts of EMI, as a
subsidiary thereof since EMI could during the relevant time, directly or
indirectly, control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home. Since 1 January 2019, EMI can no longer directly or
indirectly, control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home, and since then Eastern Home has not been and will not
be accounted for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts
of EMI as a subsidiary.

However, given that (a) EMI is holding, directly or indirectly, altogether
approximately 25.87% of the shareholding in Eastern Home, (b) one
member of the board of directors of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Liao
Shang-Wen, is also the chairperson of EMI, (c) FESS is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and EMI is the 100% shareholder of FESS, (d)
the vice president of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is the
sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76% of the
issued Shares, (e) one member of the board of directors of Eastern Home,
namely Dr. Lei Chien, is also the chairperson and an executive Director
of the Company, (f) the finance vice president of Eastern Home, namely
Ms. Lin Shu-Hua, is also a non-executive Director of the Company; and
(g) the Eastern Home Consignment Agreement was entered into on
the same date as the other transactions disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 March 2019 the Directors consider that it is
appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person
of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern
Home Consignment Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2019
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

5.

On 22 March 2019, Natural Beauty China Holding Company Limited
(BAZEFBEZERERZAT) ('NB China”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a service agreement (“Strawberry
Service Agreement”) in relation to the provision of Strawberry Services
(as defined below) with Strawberry Cosmetics (Greater China) Limited
("Strawberry”), pursuant to which NB China will, within the validity period
of the Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the Strawberry Services to
Strawberry for a service fee (“Service Fees”).

Strawberry Services refer to services relating to the marketing and sales
of a variety of goods sold by Strawberry through the Strawberry Website
(being a website with domain name http.//www.strawberrynet.com

owned and operated by Strawberry), including without limitation
skincare, make-up and haircare products, perfume, men’s cologne and
health foods (“Strawberry Goods”) through the NB Website (being a
website with domain name http:/strawberrynet.nblife.com owned and
operated by NB China), including (a) goods display and merchandising,
goods search, purchase order creation, transaction management,

payment and customer services enhancement; and (b) increasing goods
exposure, integrated brand marketing, training for operations and sales,
to be provided by NB China to Strawberry.

Major terms of the Strawberry Service Agreement are summarised below:

Subject matter

Bd
(&
5.

Directors’ Report
EEgHREE

BRXZREBRERGN2ER
)

R_E-—HLhF=ZRZ+ZH B
REFPEZERBERAA(TBAZF
H))(XRRzEEZ2ENBAR)®E
Strawberry Cosmetics (Greater China) Limited
(Tstrawberry ) FLER ft Strawberry iR % (&
FEWT) R R Wk ([Strawberry AR 75
Wkl - Bt B AE R B IE Strawberry
R ek < B SHEA A Al Strawberry 32 4
Strawberry R7% - AURER IR 7% & ([ AR 7%
&) o

Strawberry R 7548 B AEF BB BB A
ZHEuh(BImEAEHEES R EEHE
Ahttp//strawberrynet.nblife.com 2 #83k) 6]
Strawberry e 5 B & 85 & 855 Strawberry
£ Strawberry#8 ik (B B Strawberry# B &
BB 19,2 B http//www.strawberrynet.com
2RI R E s SEEL(BEETRER
EEM - FHAREEER BK-BL
mEe K REER M ([StrawberryE dn 1)) 2
R BREQEGBTREE  BaiE
R HEIEEN RH5ER - THREK
BFERBRA  RbO)IEMEmEBILE -
BEMB LY EEREEEI -

Strawberry B 7 1 & 2 & 2 {5 5 it 28
T~

NB China will, within the validity period of the Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the

Strawberry Services to Strawberry for the Service Fees.

TEEHE
BURTS & -

B SR 3E AR BB AT Strawberry R 75 15 3% 2 B 2R A M) Strawberry i@ i Strawberry AR 5+ LAUR
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5.

82

(Continued) 5 (8
Nature of transactions During the provision of the Strawberry Services by NB China:
REME 7 A SR E P BB Strawberry IR TS A HARS

(a)

the parties will actively cooperate with a view to determining (and NB China shall have
the discretion to make the final decision on) the specific items and price of the Strawberry
Goods to be displayed, and the manner of such display, on the NB Website;

RIS RERREFAAIE  EEEE(REAETTRBEENBEUR TIIEERE
EHE&BRE)EARERILER Z StrawberryE M EY M ~ BREERT
=

NB China will provide the Strawberry Services with a view to promoting and/or facilitating
the placing of purchase orders (“Purchase Orders”) and payment of purchase price by
customers for the Strawberry Goods through the NB Website;

B R ER B IR M Strawbernry RIS - SEHEE K HREZFEARERIETE
Strawberry P fn U FR BB T B8 ([HRAERT 85 ) R IERBE B A%

NB China will, promptly upon receipt of Purchase Orders, pass the Purchase Orders to
Strawberry. Upon receipt of the Purchase Orders from NB China, Strawberry will promptly
pack and deliver the ordered Strawberry Goods in accordance with the Purchase Orders
to the customers in a manner mutually agreed by the parties;

BAET BRI EIRBRT BRI S IRB R EE X Strawberry « RUREIB R
FEIRERIEET B 1% - Strawberry# BIRF IR IZ IR BB R] B8 B 2 5T BE MY Strawberry B fh
BETHAEEREZ A ARNES

NB China will, through payment services available to customers on the NB Website,
collect the purchase price for the Strawberry Goods purchased through the NB Website
from the customers for and on behalf of Strawberry; and

BAEHEKFE BT P AR AEEILERENRRBR KR Strawberry@ & 5 4 ER
TE B A= 4Bk BT ERBE Strawberry B SR ERBE(E © &

NB China will, after deducting the Service Fees and other relevant charges, return the
collected purchase price to Strawberry in accordance with the terms and conditions
under the Strawberry Service Agreement.

BAEF BB NIRRT E R HEMAEEE R - BIRStrawberryBR T 138 2 157K
KA\ Strawberry iR 32 FTUC AR F ER BB (B -
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AEXZREZREAGHZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ (#)

5.

(Continued)

Service Fees

R &

Term

HAmR

Annual cap

FELR

5. (8B

NB China is entitled to the Service Fees. For each Purchase Order accepted by Strawberry, NB
China will charge Service Fees at an agreed percentage of the gross item price of the Strawberry
Goods ordered therein as indicated on the Strawberry Website as at the date of such Purchase
Order.

BAEPEERKEREE o FStrawbenryZMH BEFRBITEMS - BREFE S
R ERAE 5T B B HiStrawberry 483k BT 7R FTER B Strawberry B M MABEM B EE 5 b
WERTS & -

From 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019.
B-E-NF=A-+RE_ZT-NAFHA=+—RH-

Pursuant to the terms of the Strawberry Service Agreement, the cap of the Service Fees payable
by Strawberry to NB China thereunder for its term, i.e. the period from 22 March 2019 to 31 May
2019 shall be NT$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$764,468).

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual cap was arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)

R I Strawberry AR T 55 2 AF 5K » Strawbery R EHIR (A —ZT—AF=A-_+=-H=Z
—E-NFRA=T-BLBE)RBZBERABAZFEEN 2 RBE RAHE
#3,000,0007T (#2181 476446878 TT) °

(3T RIESARE  FELRIDERARAFTBRA-Z-AF=ZA-+-HZREMEEDN

FE 2= (B11.007% 7 33T & #63.92437T) i B0

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March
2019, the Directors voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected
person of the Company. Since (a) Strawberry is an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Eastern Home owned indirectly as to 76% of its
shareholding by Eastern Home and (b) the Strawberry Service Agreement
was entered into on the same date as the other transactions disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019, the Directors
consider that it is also appropriate to voluntarily treat Strawberry as a
connected person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated
under the Strawberry Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

MAQNGHBHEA-_ZT—AF=ZA_+
“THRRQEMEERE  EEBEEREH
BEBEEAARRIZHBEAL - HRGA)
Strawberry B RS 5 8 < @ IE2E M
BRR HERGREZHEEEEEE 6%
&% A& Kz (b)Strawberry IR 75 a5 JH EE AN A &)
HBA—_ZE-—NF=ZA_+T_HBHRE
Frig e v X S HRRIBRTAL - 8t -
BEEZREBStrawberry B FBR AR RE Z
MEALNBEE  AZAMEETLET
FRAIZE+OAZE o FHL - StrawberryiR7%
BERETHET IR IEXNERF 2
BRAER S °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

6.

84

On 22 March 2019, Taiwan NB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the product procurement agreement (“Eastern
Tenmax Procurement Agreement”) with Eastern Tenmax Direct Co,, Ltd
(EHAXECEHBERMHBER DR ("Eastern Tenmax’, subsequently
renamed as Eastern Global Business Co, Ltd (RZR 2 EREER MK AR
72 A))), pursuant to which Eastern Tenmax may from time to time make
wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products such as health supplements,
skin-care products and cosmetic products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such
products to Eastern Tenmax at an agreed discount to relevant retail price
for on-sale by Eastern Tenmax.

Major terms of the Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement are
summarised below:

Nature of transactions

AEXZREZREAGHZES

()
6.

RZE—AhE=A=-+=-H BAE
A (ARRARZHE2EMBRARER
HRAECEHBRODERABR(RHAKRE
] BREERREHREBERMERA
AN EMRBE DR (RARXELTRE
D) Bt RAKRELATELE
FRaAEeBERWINERER  E5
mikAbi ) R EREEEBIZERTE
BzHENHNRARFAETHEZSE
M MARRREMCETES -

RARELRB R T EERFTBA M
T

During the term of the Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement, Eastern Tenmax may from

BIZABETEBZHENHARRAEZMLHE

and pricing time to time make wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products such as health supplements,

skin-care products and cosmetic products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such products to Eastern
Tenmax at an agreed discount to relevant retail price for on-sale by Eastern Tenmax.

REMEREE RERRELCERBHZHARA - RRRELATKRHERBEAZAEER (IR
o EEmR AR REAEXEE
ZEEM  DMBARRRETETEE -

Term From 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019.

HABR BE-E—hF=-A=-+=ZRAE=ZE—hFRA=1+—RH-
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6.

(Continued)

Directors’ Report
EEgHREE

AEXZREZREAGHZES

(&)
6.

(%)

Pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement, the cap in respect of

the aggregate amount of purchase to be made by Eastern Tenmax under the Eastern Tenmax
Procurement Agreement for its term, i.e. the period from 22 March 2019 to 31 May 2019 shall

For illustration purpose, the annual cap was arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed in

Annual cap
be NT$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,274,113).
(Note:
the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
FELR

RERFAXERBHZR G BRARKRAEANESREE-_F-AF=A=

T oHRE_E-AFRAZTHUIEHMBERHFAECREREMEL Z2EES
58 FRRA A A 85,000,0007T (FEE R 491,274113787T) °

(T : BEHBAAR  FE LR IERARARBPA - T-—AE=ZA -+ B2 EFREEN
I =< (B11.007 7T 3T & #53.92437T) # 5

As at 31 December 2019, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, each of
Eastern Tenmax and its ultimate beneficial owners is a third party
independent of the Company and connected persons of the Company.
However, given that (a) one member of the board of directors of Eastern
Tenmax, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is the sole ultimate beneficial
owner of Insbro Holdings Limited (fR&E /% B PR 72 B)(“Insbro”)
which is holding 22.76% of the issued shares of the Company, and (b)
the Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement was entered into on the
same date as the other transactions disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 March 2019, the Directors consider that it is
appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Tenmax as a connected person
of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern
Tenmax Procurement Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H HES
ER— YR BEREIAN - BERE
F BEHRAEACREZEREZEEA
ZEABURARBRARRIBEAL
ZEZFH AT BRE@QEKRKRELZ
—ZEFgKE AT FEE) BRE
TREBRAR(RE) 2 E—HKER
BEEAN  EEBBARGF2276%8 1T
D RORFRELCRBRZTIEAN
AERABAE-—NF=-A=-+=HH
REMBREZAEMZZRABEIY - &
I EERABRRRELERRAZ
RAZEEALTEEE + B/AMEES
ERAIETHAE - Bt - RERKEML
KB HEIE THET IR ZER A QT
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  (48)

7. On 16 April 2019, Taiwan NB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the 7. RZ-ZZ—AFEWM A+ H  BAEAE
Company, entered into a project cooperation agreement (the “New ET (RARzEE2EMB AR BERH
New Media Cooperation Agreement”) with ET New Media. Major terms of R IH B A 1EHE ((F R AR IR A
the New ET New Media Cooperation Agreement are summarised below: GIEMED - FRRAERSIERE

Subject matter

TEBH

Nature of transactions

RHMHE

Pricing

EE

Annual caps

FE LR

TEFEFRBRIT

Taiwan NB agrees to engage ET New Media to produce, publish and broadcast advertisements
and to organise media events, with a view to enhancing the image of the “Natural Beauty”
brand and to raise public awareness on the brand.

BAEREREZRRRMEREE EHLREERRES EBEREY  5ERT
[BRAE]IREER KGNt RENARAEE -

Taiwan NB may from time to time instruct ET New Media to carry out advertising projects.
The parties shall separately agree on the timing, manner and fees of each specific advertising
project at the appropriate time.

BAERERAITRERRANEBHRESIER 511 RER 9 519 E S BT E
EHEAZERE AAREA -

For each advertising project, ET New Media shall offer at least 50% discount to the list price
of such project (being prices ET New Media offers to its clients which are independent third
parties).

REEESHEAMS  RRNMERBEREZERNRERRATERAEBYE =71
BRPRHEZ BR)REED50%HTH -

Pursuant to the terms of the New ET New Media Cooperation Agreement, the annual cap in
respect of the fees payable by Taiwan NB to ET New Media thereunder shall be
RIBNRARNEBEIEBRR 2GR - AAEE BRI ERARRNERN 2 ERNSE
B LR

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 June 2019 to 31

December 2019;

R _E-NFRA-BZEZZE-NAF+A=+—BERHE 150000007 (48
E R #73,822,338787T)

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$7,644,675) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;

R-B_TF-A—-HBE_T_ZF+-A=1+—HER 5300000007 (1§
ERN#)7,644,675787T)
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ (#)

7.

(Continued)

7. (&

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$7,644,675) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and

R-B-_—4—-A—HBE_T-_—F+ZA=1+—HERH 5300000007 (1§
ERH7,6446758TT) + K

NT$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,548,225) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.

RIE - —F—-HA-HEZZ-__FHAA=+T—HEANE100000007T(HHE
FA#2,548,225%87T) °

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
(Fff3E - RIEHRIARSE  FELRDERARAFARA-ZTE-—NFRA LA ZBRAEENE
R (BN1.007 T 3T & #3.924370) EE)
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
HAR BTG~ A RAE-_ZE-_—_FRA=+—H8-
As at 31 December 2019, FESS was a controlling shareholder of the RZE—NF+ZA=+—H &XE
Company, and EMI was the 100% shareholder of FESS. As ET New Media FEMERARAZIERRE + RERE
was a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of EMI owned directly as to BRARABRRAREMEI00%RE 2K
approximately 93.90% of its shareholding by EMI, ET New Media was R BRRAFTEREARRBBR CERE
a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing FEENBAR  ARKREREEES
Rules and the transactions contemplated under the New ET New Media HA993.90% A4 - RIE LA - TR
Cooperation Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions MIERRAARNR ZEEANT - MEFRER
of the Company. RS ERRIE T HET 2R ZAE

RARBZFFERBERS
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  (48)
8. On 16 April 2019, Taiwan NB entered into a goods procurement 8. RZZT—HAFMA+/H BARAEXEE

agreement (the “New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement”) with B3 B AR FE R BT <7 78 on BR B 17 2 ([ ¥ AR
Eastern Health. Major terms of the New Eastern Health Procurement EERE R - TRRERKEHZ
Agreement are summarised below: Z EEFFARAT -

Nature of transactions

RHMHE

Purpose

=R

Pricing

EE

Annual caps

FE LR

During the term of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, Taiwan NB may from time
to time make wholesale purchase of products from Eastern Health such as health supplements
for on-sale to end customers.

RITRARREERBHRZARA - BAXEA AR ARRKEEHEREE R (PIOR
) - ARRHEPEE -

The Directors consider that the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement provides a
framework to allow the Group to purchase products which the Group currently has no in-house
capability to manufacture but does sell to end customers as one of its ordinary and usual course
of business, e.g. health supplements at a discount, thereby reducing the procurement costs of
the Group and would help improve the financial performance of the Group.

EEZRR - FRREERBHERE—MER NS AEERTHNERBAEERR
WEAMBENEEEBRAKRKEFHEZER  EREP —EARER—REKBRE
(REEmR) - RMEEAEENRBR AL BEHNAERNEE 2 HHRE -

Depending on the nature of the products, at 60%-70% discount to the relevant market retailing
price.

RIBERMED - HETSEZEEE Z260%Z70%5TH °

Pursuant to the terms of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, the annual cap in
respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased under the New Eastern Health
Procurement Agreement shall be

RIBFRFEERBIRE 2GR RIEFTRREERERES TREZARESED
FELR

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,644,675) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;

R-E—NAENA—BE_Z—NF+_A=+—HEEHH E%300000007T (8
B #77,644,67577T)

NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,385,801) from 1 January 2020 to 31

December 2020;

R-Z-ZEF-A—RE_Z-_TF+ - A=+—HERE%s00000007T (1§
10 4720,38580177T) :
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ (#)

8.

(Continued)

8. (B

NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,223,377) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and
R-B-_—4F—-—A—-BE_Z-_—F+ZA=+—HBEARHHE%150,000,0007T
(FEE 1 4938,223377787L) + &

NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,385,801) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.
R-ZE-Z—F—A—HBE=_T-__FFHA=+—HERHA%¥800000007t (HHE
7 #920,385,80178 7T) °

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
(Fff3E - RIEHRIARSE  FELRDERARAFARA-ZTE-—NFRA LA ZBRAEENE
R (BN1.007 T 3T & #3.924370) EE)
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
HAR BTG~ A RAE-_ZE-_—_FRA=+—H8-
As at 31 December 2019, Far Rich International Corporation (i& & & RZE—NF+ZA=+—H &=H
BR% D B R A &) ("Far Rich”) could, directly or indirectly, control the BERHAERAR(RE]) T EZKEE
composition of a majority of the board of directors of EMI. As such, Far EHERBEBESSRLZHKENAE
Rich was considered the holding company of EMI for the purposes of B o Bt - BIBELETRA - EEWER
the Listing Rules. As Eastern Health was an indirect non-wholly owned RABBRZIERAGT - BRERERA
subsidiary of Far Rich owned indirectly as to 90% of its shareholding by RECHZEIFTZEMBELR - AEEM
Far Rich, Eastern Health was a connected person of the Company for the BEHmAEw0%KE - RIBELTHRA - &
purposes of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under REEAANBZHEEAT - MIFTRR
the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement constituted continuing RERBHZE N HET IR AEK

connected transactions of the Company.

ARABZFHBHERS -
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EEgHRESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXSREENRERGYZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  (#)
9. On 16 April 2019, Taiwan NB entered into a product consignment 9. R-ZE—AFEWMA+ H BAEAE

agreement with Eastern Home (the “New Eastern Home Consignment HRRGEIBIVERRERZE(FE
Agreement”). Major terms of the New Eastern Home Consignment REHBREHZE]) TRRFIHIEL
Agreement are summarised below: HiE 2 BRI mT -

Subject matter Taiwan NB will engage Eastern Home to sell certain products manufactured, distributed or sold

ETEBHE

Nature of transactions

REMEE

Payment term

X AHERRR

Special rewards

BHRER

by Taiwan NB which are selected by Eastern Home as target products (the “Target Products”).
The retail price of the Target Products being sold by Eastern Home shall be proposed by Eastern
Home and fixed upon the consent of Taiwan NB.
BAXRERZERRBIBHEBAET/EMRE  DHAHEZLETER * MR
REIBEERFEMEREGRER(BRER] - RRBHBRELENBREM
ZEEBRBHRREIEERTXNNEEAEXRERERET -

Taiwan NB shall authorise Eastern Home to sell the Target Products to end customers and to
use related promotional materials for such purpose.

BAXAERERRFIBARKEPHERRERLMZENERBESEME -

Eastern Home shall be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end
customers through its own distribution channels or third party distribution channels.
RAGSBEATRBE AN HRERE =N OHRENLKEFEHNHEBRE

AR °

Subject to the special rewards payable by Taiwan NB as set out below, 30-50% of the proceeds
received by Eastern Home from the end customers through the sale of the Target Products shall
be paid over to Taiwan NB (the net amount to be paid over to Taiwan NB after deducting the
special rewards is hereinafter referred to as the “Net Proceeds”).

BRTXPml B AER BRI ZBRERBIN  RAGHBEEHEBFERARKE
FUYER 2 A5 SR IERI30%Z 5001 IE 32 5 B A% & 7& (R R R R 22 B 12 18 IE =AY
BAERERFRE - AT MBI RIBFRE]) -

In respect of Target Products being sold through the internet:
HEBBREHEZBRERMNS :

(@)  Taiwan NB shall pay a sale commission at 2% of the relevant sale proceeds to Eastern
Home; and

(@ BARAXAEKIEBEEEMSRBEI2NARFEHEIMNHEERES &

(b)  given Eastern Home shall from time to time organise marketing events, Taiwan NB shall
additionally pay a marketing sponsorship fee at 3% of the relevant monthly sale proceeds
to Eastern Home for such Target Products sold (together with (a) above, the “Special
Rewards”).

b) EXRRREGIBEITITHELLHIY  BAEERRLENLEERER
RIEETRHEMFHIAZINMRRESBEII L HERE GER LX)
I SES R AER]) -
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EESRES
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXSREENRERGYZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ (#)

0.

(Continued)

Annual caps

FELR

Term

R

°. (B

Pursuant to the terms of the New Eastern Home Consignment Agreement, the annual cap in
respect of the aggregate Net Proceeds payable under the New Eastern Home Consignment
Agreement shall be

REMNRFFIBREBR G REFRRSZBEAEHREEN 26 KAFREA
FREMFE LR

NT$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$50,964,503) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;
RZBE-NFRNA-BEZ-AF+ZA=+—HBERE%¥2000000007T
(B & 7 4750,964,5037% 7T)

NT$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$127,411,258) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
RZBEZEF-A-—REZ_TF+-_HA=+—HBER/F A %500000,0007T
(FRER#127411,2588 L)

NT$800,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$203,858,012) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and

R-BE_—4—A—HEZ ; ——F+ZA=+—BEARHE%8000000007T
(B & 7 49203,858,01278 7T)

NT$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$127,411,258) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.
R-EBZ—_F—-—A—BE-ZT-__FHA=+—HERNE%500,000,0007T (18
B H#9127,411,25877T) ©

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)

(FfF3E : RIEHRBARSE  FELRDERAATBRA-T-—NFRA+ LA ZBRAHEENE
SR (BM1.0078 7T 537 A #63.924370) E B

From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
B-Z-hFRA-HE_T__FAA=1t—H-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

0.

92

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Eastern Home was accounted
for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts of EMI as a
subsidiary thereof since EMI could during the relevant time, directly or
indirectly, control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home. Since 1 January 2019, EMI can no longer directly or
indirectly control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home, and since then Eastern Home has not been and will not
be accounted for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts
of EMI as a subsidiary.

However, as at 31 December 2019, given that (a) EMI was holding, directly
or indirectly, altogether approximately 25.87% of the shareholding in
Eastern Home, (b) one member of the board of directors of Eastern
Home, namely Mr. Liao Shang-Wen, was also the chairperson of EMI,
(c) FESS was a controlling shareholder of the Company, and EMI was
the 100% shareholder of FESS, (d) the vice president of Eastern Home,
namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, was the sole ultimate beneficial owner of
Insbro Holdings Limited (IR #ZERX B BR 22 B]), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability (“Insbro”) which was holding 22.76%
of the issued Shares, () one member of the board of directors of Eastern
Home, namely Dr. Lei Chien, was also the chairperson and an executive
Director of the Company, (f) the finance vice president of Eastern Home,
namely Ms. Lin Shu-Hua, was also a non-executive Director of the
Company; and (g) the New Eastern Home Consignment Agreement
was entered into on the same date as the other connected transactions
disclosed in items 7, 8, 10, 11, 12 of this section, the Directors considered
that it was appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected
person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
New Eastern Home Consignment Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2019

AEXZREZREAGHZES

()
9.

(&)

( ZE T - \F+ZA=+—HLIF
B RRSIBIELARRERZHER
ANRRER 2 EEZEAREAGH
AR THRRZFERNAERERR
ERIHERENRRGIBESTEARS
BRENER - BT —NF—HF—H
B RREETNBERREREHIRZR
BHBEFEARZHKENER - MA
It RAGZIEMELSTIBIERRZR
BIER 2 M8 1 B RARBIR 2 R B LAR
BRERNGHARK -

N RZFE—NFT+A=+—80"
HRQEABEBREESHEFERHRSE
DEAHLD2587%HE  ORHEEHE
2—REBEZEXKEBNEEHXEL) A
RABBZERE  OREEFMEAARN
NEVZIERRE  REFRERBHEER
HEFEME100%E 2 IRE © (dEKRG
SEZIAEER(AIBHFEE)BERE
TRBERARREBEIMRIZERA
Al [RENDZE—RKERHEBA  H
BE276% 2 BEITRMD  RHKRES
Br—2EzgeXk8(AIEBEEITA
ARRZERBERITES DRHRED
BBl R BIMREZL)MAR
NAIZIERITES  ROFRREIE
R EEAREE7 81011 1218
i EMEERSHRIBRIYL - W
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EESRES
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXSREENRERGYZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  (#)
On 16 April 2019, NB China, a directly wholly owned-subsidiary of the 10, M Z-ZZ—AFM A+ xH  BA=E

10.

Company, entered into a service agreement in relation to the provision PFE(RRARIzEEZZEMBAR)HE

of Strawberry Services (as defined in item 5 above) with Strawberry Strawberry gt i it Strawberry IR 7% (EE R

(the “New Strawberry Service Agreement”). Major terms of the New X3 518) 5T 3 IR W ([ Strawberry

Strawberry Service Agreement are summarised below: R W% o #Strawberry RIS sk 2 =

ZEFBRNT -

Subject matter NB China will, within the validity period of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the
Strawberry Services to Strawberry for the Service Fees.

FEEHE B SRS B 1E ¥ Strawberry IR 1% 13 7 2 B SUHA R M) Strawberry i@ 4 Strawberry IR 7% + LA
WER RS & -

Nature of transactions During the provision of the Strawberry Services by NB China:

REME R B R 3 BIR #t Strawbernry R 75 #O HARA

(a)

the parties will actively cooperate with a view to determine (and NB China shall have the
discretion to make the final decision on) the specific items and price of the Strawberry
Goods to be displayed, and the manner of such display, on the NB Website;

R RERERAGIE  EEET(RERETEAEANBEUR TIIEE
TEH SR E)E B AZMUR R Z Strawbery B M B EY @ - BREETA
=

NB China will provide the Strawberry Services with a view to promote and/or facilitate
the placing of purchase orders (‘Purchase Orders”) and payment of purchase price by
customers for the Strawberry Goods through the NB Website;
BAZEHBEERESrawberry RS - EEHB K SRERTFEBAFTHU TE
Strawberry i s R ERIB AT B ((FRIBAT B ) R X MEREBER

NB China will, promptly upon receipt of Purchase Orders, pass the Purchase Orders to
Strawberry. Upon receipt of the Purchase Orders from NB China, Strawberry will promptly
pack and deliver the ordered Strawberry Goods in accordance with the Purchase Orders
to the customers in a manner mutually agreed by the parties;

B RS B R I B ER B RT B8 18 BN I SR AE 5T B ¥ A2 Strawberry < RIREI B A%
FEIREIBET 1% - Strawberry G BN IR IR ERIE R B8 /B 22 5T BE MY Strawberry B fn I
AT HEREZ AARNEF
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXSREENRERGYZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) (&)
10.  (Continued) 10.  (#&)

(d)  NB China will, through payment services available to customers on the NB Website,
collect the purchase price for the Strawberry Goods purchased through the NB Website
from the customers for and on behalf of Strawberry; and

d) BAEFEKFEREPFEBAZHEILEREMNFRBRESStrawberry[ & 4ER
£ B AR AUL AT R B Strawberry B AV REE(E © &

(e)  NB China will, after deducting the Service Fees and other relevant charges, return the
collected purchase price to Strawberry in accordance with the terms and conditions
under the New Strawberry Service Agreement.

© BAEHBENNRREEREMEEERRE - RIEH Stawbeny RIS 1755 2 1&
I G R Strawberry3R 8 TR BV ER BB (B -

Service Fees NB China is entitled to the Service Fees. For each Purchase Order accepted by Strawberry, NB
China will charge Service Fees at 25% of the gross item price of the Strawberry Goods ordered
therein as indicated on the Strawberry Website as at the date of such Purchase Order.

R E BAEPEERKEREE o #StrawbenryZ MHBEHRBITEMS - BREFEH
AR EEET B B HAStrawberry 485 BT 7R T ER B Strawberry 7 & B9 9 i 48 (8 79 25% U4 BR AR
BE -

Annual caps Pursuant to the terms of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, the annual cap of the Services
Fees payable by Strawberry to NB China thereunder shall be

FELR TR IE #1Strawberry RTE 19335 Z A& Strawberry & It B 7] B SR 2 /P B S 1+ 2 RS B By &
B LR

HKS$5,250,000 from 1 June 2019 to 31 December 2019;
RZE—NFARNA—BEZZ—NF+ZA=+—HFEAKS5250000%T ;

HK$9,000,000 from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020;
R-ZB_ZEF-—R—RE_ZT-_TF+ - A=+—HFER9000000/ET
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EEgHREE

AEXZREZREAGHZES

(%)

HK$9,000,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021; and

KRB —F—A—HE=Z

——F+=-A=+—HEAE9000000%E T : &

HK$3,750,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 May 2022.
A B —F—R—BE-ZE-_—FRA=+—HEA3750000/8T °

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
(FI3E - RIEHRBARSE  FELRDERAAFRBRA-T-—NFRA+ LA ZBRAHEENE

2 (B11.0078 70 3.5 & #63.924371) ZE B0

Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.

HAPR BT NFAA-BRE_T-__FHA=+—H8-

As disclosed in item 4 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company.
Since, as at 31 December 2019, (a) Strawberry was an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of Eastern Home owned indirectly as to 76%
of its shareholding by Eastern Home and (b) the New Strawberry Service
Agreement was entered into on the same date as the other connected
transactions disclosed in items 7, 8, 9, 11, 12 of this section, the Directors
considered that it was also appropriate to voluntarily treat Strawberry as
a connected person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated
under the New Strawberry Service Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

N EXEBAEMEE  EERE - BER
BRHEEREAARRZHAEALEE
B oRZE—NF+ZH=1T—H " &
R (a)Strawberry SR ARG S 2 EEIED
BEMBAR  ARFRGHEEEREEHR
76% 5% 1 K2 (b)FT Strawberry R 75 7 55 T £2
REHEE7 89 NMRIEREEAEAD
BEISHREREMY Wit EFRAE
1 Strawberry B FEtE BAR AR 2 BEA T
MBi#EE - BAMEET EMRAE+
PIAZE o [t #Strawberry R 7% 17 5% 8
THETZXHBRARR 2 HERE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZFRESREARSH 2ER

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  (#)

11. On 16 April 2019, Taiwan NB entered into a product procurement 1. —Z—AFMA+/<H  BAREREE
agreement (the “New Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement”) with RARRELRTERREBZ(FRR
Eastern Tenmax. Major terms of the New Eastern Tenmax Procurement REMLCEKBWHRE] - IRRRELHKE
Agreement are summarised below: M EZEFBRAT -

Nature of transactions

RHME

Purpose

=R

Annual caps

FELR

During the term of the New Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement, Eastern Tenmax
may from time to time make wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products such as health
supplements, skin-care products and cosmetic products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such products
to Eastern Tenmax at an agreed discount to relevant retail price for on-sale by Eastern Tenmax.
RIRRAELRBIHRBRA - RRRELATIRREAXERERBEAES
BEm (IR M - BB m Rt kB AXSEFIZERTEE 2B ETHMER
RAEHEEZSER  MHRRRELHETEE -

The Directors consider that the New Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement provides
the Group with an additional distribution channel of the Group's products and hence an
opportunity to increase sales.

EERR TRRRELAKBHZAAEBRHEBINNERD HEE - FULHERIEN
HEMKS -

Pursuant to the terms of the New Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement, the annual cap in
respect of the aggregate amount of purchase to be made by Eastern Tenmax thereunder shall
be

RIBFTRARRELIRBIH R G - RARRELCRUMEL 2 IRBASEFE LR

NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,837,576) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;
RZE-NFRA—BE_Z-AF+ZA=+—HERAE%700000007T (1§
EH#17,837,576787T)

NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,223,377) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;

\_E_TF-R-HEZ_ZFE+-_A=+—BEARHE%150,000,0007T
(FBE P 49382233778 7T) ¢

NT$250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$63,705,629) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and

R-ZB_—4—HA—-HEZZE :—¢+:H =+—BER & %250,000,0007T
(FEE 1 4963,705,629787T)
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AEXZREZREAGHZES

(&)
1.

(%)

NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,223,377) from 1 January 2022 to 31

May 2022.

R-ZE-_—_F—A—Hz2-_ZT_—

BIN#)38,22337787T) °

(Note:

FHA=1+—HEAH A ¥150,000,0007T (18

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed

in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
(T - BIERAAR  FELRDERAARABMAZZE - NFRAA+EHZBRATHERNE
3 (BN1.0078 7T 5 T & #53.92437T) B

Term

R

From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.

As at 31 December 2019, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, each of
Eastern Tenmax and its ultimate beneficial owners was an Independent
Third Party. However, given that (a) one member of the board of directors
of Eastern Tenmax, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, was the sole ultimate
beneficial owner of Insbro which was holding 22.76% of the issued
Shares, and (b) the New Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement was
entered into on the same date as the other connected transactions
disclosed in items 7, 8,9, 10, 12 of this section, the Directors considered
that it was appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Tenmax as a connected
person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
New Eastern Tenmax Procurement Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

B-ZE-NAFRA-RE-_ZE-__FHAA=+—H-

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—"H BE=S
ER— IR BEREIAN - BERE
B RRAXEAREEREZHEBAS
BEBIYE=F - A AR@QEHRK
Etr—RESFEK B AT T LE)
AREZE—RKREZHEEAN  EFE
22.76%E2 TR ¢+ R(b)FTRRKREM
R EARENE7 89 101278
PREMNHEMBEIZNEBEIY - )
I BEERAEBERAECEHRGE AR
RAZEEALTEEE  B/AMEES
ETHRRE AT - B - FIRHFRKRE
TREBZBETRETZZIBERERA
R HEBERS °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXSREENRERGYZES

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  (48)
12. On 16 April 2019, NB China as licensor entered into a licence agreement  12. R-ZZE—NAFEMA+XH - BREF

with Eastern Home as licensee (the “Eastern Home Trademark Licence (ERFTA R ERRESEERKTA

Agreement”). Major terms of the Eastern Home Trademark Licence )RS ET A ek ([ R ARG 5 B R iR AT Al

Agreement are summarised below: gl - RARGIERNEFAHENE
TRFB AT -

Nature of transactions NB China agreed to grant Eastern Home a non-exclusive licence to use the certain trademarks

REME

Purpose

=R

Royalty

ERE

Annual caps

FELR

owned by the Company (the “Trademarks”) in respect of products mutually agreed between
the parties.

BAZPERBARKSHIBRETIEEENT - UtE S HEBENERERARTF
wEAENETER(ERD) -

In respect of such mutually agreed products, Eastern Home will be able to (i) reproduce and/
or print the Trademarks on the packaging and marketing materials of such products and (ii)
broadcast, transmit, distribute and/or publish such marketing materials during the process of
marketing and sales of such products.

HNZELHHERENER RASIBHERNNEXZERNBEREHME
BEIR /R HEE  RIVEZSERNEHEIHERREPERE & 28R
BRSSO -

The Directors consider that the Eastern Home Trademark Licence Agreement will increase the
exposure of the Group's brand name while simultaneously generate a new revenue stream for
the Group without substantial additional costs.

EERh RRAGIBHEAIHBHEFREAASEREENBELE AR AREES
HHTEVBARIR - MAEEEKRSEINLA -

Eastern Home shall pay NB China a royalty for the licence to use the Trademarks (the “Royalty”)
at 3% of the net proceeds from the sale of mutually agreed products through various channels
operated by Eastern Home (including but not limited to television, internet and catalogues etc.)
to the end customers.
RRGESBREAEFIERIEMAAEZTREINERE(ERE])  2BERBEBR
REZBRENZERRE(BEETRNER BRKERFME)MLHEFHESE
77 M B 1% T B EE fh PAS SRIBFRE 3% ©

Pursuant to the Eastern Home Trademark Licence Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the
aggregate Royalty payable by Eastern Home to NB China thereunder shall be
RERRGHBERRAHE  RRACGIBRUERNEAEZETREIN 2 AERENF
€ FBR

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 June 2019 to 31

December 2019;
R-BE-AERNA—RBE_Z-AE+-A=+—HE A 41150000007 (17
BN #)3,822,338/7T) ¢
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ (#&)

12. (Continued)

12, (&)

NT$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,096,450) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;

R-B_TF-A—-—HBE_ZT_ZF+_-A=1+—HERH 5200000007 (1§
B #95,096,450787T)

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$7,644,675) from 1 January 2021 to 31

December 2021; and

F—%——i—ﬂ —A E_;ﬁi_fﬁ"f—:ﬂ =+ —RAER & %30,0000007T (17
RKI7,644,67578 7T)

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.

R-E - —F—R—REZT-_FRA=1+—REARNE150000007T(HHE
FA#3,822,3387T) °

If the annual cap is reached for a particular year, there will not be any further Royalty payable
by Eastern Home to NB China for that year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Eastern Home will
continue to be able to use the Trademarks.

INE—FEESNFELR - E'J%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂyﬁﬁﬁ BAXPEXNESE

RE -

(Note:

(M5

BEFLARTE  RARBZBNUERETADER

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)

RIESHARE  FEERDERARARTBHAZT-NAFLAT LR ZBRAKENE
= (BN1.00A T 3T & #3.924370) ZE)

Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.

HR B-Z-NERA—BEZ__FHAA=+—H-

As disclosed in item 4 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate BN EXFEABFEE  EERABRER
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company 5 % ﬁ% BRER AN 2 BEANTBE
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As B/ZEMREEF EMRANETTIAE -
such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Trademark . It - RABZEEZET I RRIE T #
Licence Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the ETRGEUAR R BERERS °
Company.
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)
For further details regarding:

(@)  the tenancy agreements discussed in item 1 above, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2014, 8 December
2016 and 16 November 2018;

(b)  the agreements discussed in items 2 through 6 above, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2019;

(0 the agreements discussed in items 7 through 12 above, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 16 April 2019 and the circular
of the Company dated 17 May 2019.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions of
the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the
transactions are disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group confirms that the above disclosure has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business
(other than New Strawberry Service Agreement and the New Strawberry
Service Agreement), on terms no less favourable than terms available from
independent third parties and were negotiated and conducted by the Group
on an arm’s length basis and on normal commercial terms and in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and are in the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group's auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31 December 2019 or at any time during such year; and

(i) there were no related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 as set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements which need to be disclosed as connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction (as the case may be) in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the Board
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable Date of this
Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report
EEgHRESE

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who acted as the auditor of the Company
since 9 December 2004, resigned on 31 July 2020 and RSM Hong Kong was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 25 August 2020. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been audited by RSM Hong Kong. RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
RSM Hong Kong will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

MAJOR EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are provided in note 44
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DETAILS OF THE QUALIFIED OPINION AND ITS
POTENTIAL IMPACT

As disclosed in the section headed “Basis for Qualified Opinion” in the
independent auditors’ report contained in pages 112 to 115 of this report, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 ("2019 Financial Statements”) had been subject to qualified opinion.

The qualified opinion was in connection with (1) opening balances and
comparative figures and (2) goods exchange promises possibly made before
2019.

1. Opening balances and comparative figures

The findings of the forensic review and the additional forensic review
(the details of which were disclosed by the Company on 21 July 2020
and 20 November 2020) revealed certain facts that indicate possible
misstatements of financial information of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, which formed
the basis for the comparative figures presented in the 2019 Financial
Statements.
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DETAILS OF THE QUALIFIED OPINION AND ITS
POTENTIAL IMPACT (Continued)

1.

Opening balances and comparative figures (Continued)

Due to (1) a possible deviation of revenue recognition method from the
Group's accounting policies; (2) goods exchange promises possibly made
before 2018; and (3) accounting treatment of a disputed sales contract,
the independent auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy themselves as to whether the Group’s reported
revenue and cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2018,
and the reported carrying amounts of trade receivables, inventories,
contract liabilities and right of return assets and refund liabilities as at 31
December 2018, had been properly recorded. Furthermore, the auditors
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
themselves as to whether Goods Exchange Promises were properly
accounted for upon the Group's initial adoption of HKFRS15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” on 1 January 2018.

In addition, the independent auditors were also unable to form an
opinion as to whether the consolidated assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 presented as comparative figures were
appropriately carried forward and recognised as opening balances as at 1
January 2019.

Goods Exchange Promises possibly made before 2019

Due to insufficient information available in relation to the approval
documents of the goods exchange promises and the fact that the
relevant subsidiaries of the Company did not maintain timely and
complete records of good exchange promises in prior reporting period,
the independent auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy themselves as to whether these exchanged
goods were related to goods exchange promises made before 2019 and
whether they were properly recorded in the current year.

Any adjustments that might be found necessary as a result of the matters

described above might have a consequential effect on the Group’s results and
cashflows for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, and the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
EEgHRESE

MANAGEMENT’S VIEW ON THE QUALIFIED OPINION EEEHRBER 2B

Qualified Opinion
REBER

Management’s view

EEBEBH

Opening balances and comparative figures —
Revenue recognition method possibly deviated
from the Group's accounting policies (“Qualified

Opinion 1)
HUEBR REBRE T - AR A 88
REASENZFHBER(RBER D

Opening balances and comparative figures
= Goods Exchange Promises possibly made
before 2018 (“Qualified Opinion 2")

HRHN A R S L BB - T N\FZH
BEVEH B A ARG (H%”’ﬁﬁzj)

Opening balances and comparative figures
— Accounting treatment of a disputed sales
contract (“Qualified Opinion 3")

HJWJ RBRELBHET - AFRZHESON
RE(MREER3)

Goods Exchange Promises possibly made
before 2019 (“Qualified Opinion 4”)

R-TB—-NFZAIA R
m([REERA4)

1F B B A SR
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The Company admits the deviation from the Group’s accounting policies but
would also like to highlight that this is a matter of accounting treatment. As
such, the Company did not suffer actual loss.

ARRARRE T ARENSTRER  BwBZERL - EBR g5
FRIZEIE o FAiit - ARABAREXBERIESR -

This issue would result in re-allocation of related sales amongst 2018 and prior
years, although the Company had not suffered actual loss because of this
issue.

That being said, the Company has taken relevant remedial actions from an
internal control perspective, including the strict prohibition on any goods
exchange promises other than legitimate goods return.
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This disputed sales contract was a one-off event.

That being said, the Company has taken relevant remedial actions to address
the Company’s internal control deficiency regarding confirmation of the
identity of the person making an order.
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The nature of this qualified opinion is the same as Qualified Opinion 2 above.

The Company further submits that this is the only qualified opinion made to
figures in FY2019 and if certain sales return/exchange in 2019 actually related
to Goods Exchange Promises made in prior year, that would only result in re-
allocation of related sales amongst 2019 and the prior year.
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VIEW OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Directors’ Report
EEgHREE

BEREEGZEBHY

The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the matters after discussion with 4% Z& B € /£ B 7 (2 E60 & B IR 8 51 im 8 ¥
the independent auditors and the management, and the Audit Committee BB EIEET T RIFELS - RBEZZEGRE
agrees with the view of the independent auditors as to the basis of the qualified B ZHMBEANRE ERNER 2B ALE

opinion, and the management’s view on the qualified opinion. BEHRBERZEE -
ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS THE QUALIFIED BRREZERNITENIHE
OPINION

In response to the issues identified by the Auditors in the qualified opinion, the  $T¥#ZHAIAERE = R AP HIBHMRE - AR F]
Company has taken the following enhanced internal control measures on both B £ & 2 [ 1 K 3 75 8 E EREX LA T Hn5s A 3F 4%

entity level and activity level.
Summary of entity level controls

Entity level controls

EREmES

B o
EREmEHHSE

Key enhanced internal control measures

X Ehn3E A EP Rl HE e

Strengthening of internal control and supervision

HnoE AR i b BE B

Appointment of external directors

LI EEF

In order to strengthen the Company’s internal control and the supervision
of the board of directors in the mainland subsidiaries, the Company has
appointed additional external directors to the board of directors in the
mainland subsidiaries on 30 October 2020.
RMBADBHAENBAREEFGHRNEIEHREE - KT =
F+A=1TH  ARABEEFEIINBESMAKRENRBRATNE
Fg-

S

=

Al

Increase in frequency in Board meetings
EINEFE S ZHEAIEE

The frequency of Board meetings has been increased to be held on a quarterly
basis to strengthen the controls over the Company’s operations and internal
audits.
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EEESRESE
ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS THE QUALIFIED BRREBEERNTHE®
OPINION (Continued)

Summary of entity level controls (Continued)

Entity level controls

EREmES

EREmESSEGE)

Key enhanced internal control measures

EE-YIE: DA E b )
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Enhanced internal audit monitoring

078 N ED B R B 1

The Company has amended its internal audit plan to address all the findings
identified during annual audit for the financial year of 2019. Findings with
significant impact have been included in the scope of the 2020 internal audit
review; while the remaining less significant issues will be covered in phases
in 2021. Findings of internal audit reports will be submitted to the CEO and
Board for their review and discussion on a quarterly basis.
RARBEBTERNFEZAE - RN T - NFHRFENFE
EZBRETABSINMERAEER - AAEATENATHERD R
AZZE_ZFRMEREHEE  MESKTAZTERZNHEZRN T
—FDERER AHERBENERBEFTERIGTRERLE
Fe UHHBMNE® -

Enhanced Training

HFEIE

Training has been provided to all newly joined employees. In addition to
the regular training, information regarding the findings identified during
the annual audit for the financial year of 2019 is also highlighted to the staff
members as key points to note.

E A ABESIRHIEN - BREBIZIIIN - EMTIEAERAF
AR _E-NFUBRFENFEEZERETAENNATERNE
o ERTEIENES -

Annual refresher training plan has also been formulated to raise the awareness

of the existing staff.
MEHEFREBEIFE - ESREEINESR -



Directors’ Report
EEgREE

ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS THE QUALIFIED BRREBEERNTHE®

OPINION (Continued)
Summary of entity level controls (Continued)

Entity level controls

EREmES

EREmESSEGE)

Key enhanced internal control measures

EE-YIE: DA E b )

Restructuring of sales team and establishment of
new authorised dealer team

B AR 5 5 B B R R SR ) 1R ACE s e B B

Setting up customers reporting channels

RIUBFPRHRRE

Enhancement of standard operating procedures

IRIR IR IERR T

The Company has restructured the current sales team structure, by splitting
the sales team in the mainland China into 5 sales regions and a specialised
team for authorised dealers has been formed to enhance the supervision of
sales operations.

ARREEAB A HEBERRERE - B BERKENHEBKFD RS
EHE RS - WAL T EFINRELEEBEL - IR EHEEEN

= AR
= -

In order to regulate the business behaviour of employees, a CEO hotline has
been set up for franchisees or distributors to report employees’ misconducts
such as dishonesty and misrepresentation.

REBEENEETR  SRULITBAEZELGR - LAEMNBERESLHE
BREENTETR  WTRERKRERM -

Questionnaires are also designed to gather information and feedbacks from
customers. Customers can access the questionnaire by scanning the QR-code
or website created by the Company.

MRTAERS  WHERFPENEKRE - EFFBERHERAARIH
TER) IS S B IR E RS -

The Company has implemented various operating procedures and
remedial actions to further enhance its controls in sales proceeds collection,
distributor management (with controls on goods exchange quota granted to
distributors), goods delivery and revenue recognition.
RNARIEBEZIERIERF RARIER - AE—TMRREHKOESR
PR RHEER(ERER TRERNEmIBRRENES) - X8
KA FERHFE ) o

The Company has issued notices, internal policies and an updated employee
handbook. The latest policies and procedures have been circulated to all
relevant parties.

RARIEEMBA - AEBEREMZNE TFM - HKIMABERRIZ
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ESERES

ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS THE QUALIFIED

OPINION (Continued)

Summary of activity level controls

Specific to each of the below Subject Matter that is relevant to the issues
identified by the Auditors in the qualified opinion, the Company has
implemented the following remedial and preventive enhanced internal control

BARERRNITEFE®
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measures:

Subject Matter Key enhanced internal control measures
THRER FEMBAIBIESEIE

Supervision on Goods Exchange Promises Order Management

EEEmRMEH FTEERE

An application program has been introduced to record the confirmation of

sale orders from customers since July 2020. Customers are required to verify
the sale order through their own user accounts.

E —ECTELAROHE —ERRARET  NLSEPRHE B
RIER - BFABABINABFEFZEHERE -

The relevant policies and procedures were established to document the

account re-activation and approval procedures.

EFIERBEBRREEF - UEERPEN AL MILERF -

Goods exchange management

ERXHEE

The Company has redrafted the Authorised Dealer Agreement which includes
the terms and condition for goods exchange.

ARRIEEHEERELHDHZE - B BEEmIRIGER RGN -

The goods exchange processes have also been included in the relevant

policies and procedures.

BEmRi mﬁ_ﬂTE W)\*ﬁ%ﬂ(%&%ﬁﬁ °

The finance department is required to manage and monitor the goods
exchange quota. Email confirmations have been sent to authorised dealers
periodically to reconcile any outstanding goods exchange quota which has

not been redeemed.
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EEgREE
ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS THE QUALIFIED BRREZRNITE 8
OPINION (Continued)
Summary of activity level controls (Continued) ¥REmEHSME®E
Subject Matter Key enhanced internal control measures
FHER FEMRAIPEFE

Third party evidence of delivery was not properly  The Company has signed a Logistic Agreement with a new logistic service

maintained provider. Relevant logistic records including sales order number, delivery

FoHEERBRALERE tracking number, recipient, delivery address, date of delivery are kept and
provided to the Company as an audit trail.
ARREE-FKANRIRIGREBRIT DRI E - HEOYIRE
(BIEHETESN - XERH - WA - ZEIE - XEAHER
FAREEE R AT - DIERBZRNE -

The tracking records or the Delivery Notes have been properly maintained as
supporting documents for the goods delivery.

R NAEEDZERT - FREENERER -

In addition, logistics staff is required to timely communicate with the
customers and confirm goods delivery status. Any discrepancies noted should
be promptly investigated and reported to the management.

AN - IR A B RN REFB BT HERXEME - MBEERER -
JEZBETTHES MEHRERE -

Besides, the abovementioned processes have been included in relevant
policies and procedures.

AN - BRI E M AEBERR LR -
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EEESRESE
ACTION PLAN TO ADDRESS THE QUALIFIED BRREBEERNTHE®
OPINION (Continued)

Summary of activity level controls (Continued)

Subject Matter
THRER

EREBERESBEE

Key enhanced internal control measures

= B hn3a o BP 4R e

Revenue recognition method possibly deviated
from the Group's accounting policy

WARER AR e lmBE AN B S 5T HRR

On behalf of the Board

LEI Chien
Chairperson

Hong Kong

30 November 2020
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The finance department has compiled the information of the orders which
were delivered, but not received by the customers at the end of each month.

MBHMPIERSEAREXMNETF R AR KRNI EEF

The Company has maintained the delivery notes and tracking records for the
finance department to check if there are any cut-off issue.
RARERBEEERRH L - UHIKIPIRE R B FHEEAE
ARMIRE o

If required, the finance department will prepare corresponding accounting
adjustments to the finance records.

MBE - BB LR AR R B -

The enhanced processes have also been included in the relevant policies and
procedures.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F+8522598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 124 to 256, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong

BY ZBENHREF

RSM

BEPEEERMEBAA

BEIEERFEE _+/)\5%
NMEZH - +N>E

&B5E +8522598 5123
HH +85225987230

www.rsmhk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE RS S

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

1. Opening balances and comparative figures
The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, which form the basis for the comparative figures
("Comparative Figures”) presented in the current year's consolidated
financial statements, were audited by the predecessor auditor who had
expressed an unmodified opinion thereon. However, the findings of two
Forensic Accountant Review Reports dated 19 November 2020 revealed
certain facts that indicate possible misstatements of financial information
in prior periods.

1.1  Revenue recognition method possibly deviated from the
Group’s accounting policies
Certain subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China (“Relevant
Subsidiaries”) recognised revenue upon dispatch of cosmetic
products to the logistics service provider rather than upon the
customers obtaining control of the goods when physical deliveries
were made. This revenue recognition method deviates from
the Group’s accounting policies and had been adopted in prior
reporting periods.

Due to the fact that the Group had not properly-maintained third-
party goods delivery documents for the prior reporting periods
that indicated the actual delivery date and the correct point of time
for revenue recognition, we were unable to accurately quantify the
possible financial impact, if any.

Consequently, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to whether the Group’s
reported revenue and cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2018, and the reported carrying amounts of trade
receivables, inventories and contract liabilities as at 31 December
2018, have been properly recorded in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
Opening balances and comparative figures (Continued)

1.

1.2

13

Goods Exchange Promises possibly made before 2018

The Relevant Subsidiaries sold cosmetic products to customers
while offering them rights of return in exchange for different
products (“Goods Exchange Promises”) in later periods. These
Goods Exchange Promises were made verbally by sales personnel
but the Relevant Subsidiaries had not maintained timely and
complete records of them in prior reporting periods.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the accounting
records of the Relevant Subsidiaries recorded sales returns
(including goods exchange) of approximately HK$23.1 million
(inclusive of value-added tax). However, the accounting records
had insufficient information to substantiate whether any portion
of these sales returns were related to Goods Exchange Promises
made in reporting periods prior to year 2018. Since the Relevant
Subsidiaries had not maintained timely and complete records of
Goods Exchange Promises in prior reporting periods, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the Group's reported revenue and cost
of sales for the year ended 31 December 2018, and the carrying
amounts of right of return assets and refund liabilities as at 31
December 2018, have been properly accounted for in accordance
with the Group's accounting policies. We were also unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as
to whether Goods Exchange Promises were properly accounted
for upon the Group's initial adoption of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”on 1 January 2018.

Accounting treatment of a disputed sales contract

Former management of the Relevant Subsidiaries had approved
a cosmetic product sales contract of approximately HK$8.3
million (inclusive of value-added tax) in June 2018 and the Group
had made a related bad debt provision of HK$2.3 million in the
same year. The carrying amount of the related trade receivable
balance net of provision was approximately HK$2.2 million as at 31
December 2018.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

1.

Opening balances and comparative figures (Continued)

1.3 Accounting treatment of a disputed sales contract (Continued)
Based on the documents we have inspected and the explanation
of management, we were unable to determine the identity of
the purported customer and the legal enforceability of the sales
contract. Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether the
relevant contract sum should have been recognised as revenue
under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” during
the year ended 31 December 2018. We were also unable to
determine whether the reported trade receivable with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$2.2 million as at 31 December 2018
and the reported bad debt provision of approximately HK$2.3
million charged to the Group’s consolidated income statement for
the year then ended have been properly accounted for.

As the Relevant Subsidiaries had not properly-maintained the required
accounting records and third-party documentary evidence as set out
in paragraphs 1.1 to 1.3 above, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to conclude whether the relevant
Comparative Figures were free from material misstatement. There were
no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the relevant Comparative Figures were free from
material misstatement.

In addition, we were also unable to form an opinion as to whether the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2018
presented as Comparative Figures were appropriately carried forward
and recognised as opening balances as at 1 January 2019.

Goods Exchange Promises possibly made before 2019

The Relevant Subsidiaries recorded certain goods exchange (i.e. goods
being returned from customers and replaced by different goods of
same sales value) of approximately HK$4.2 million (inclusive of value-
added tax) during the year ended 31 December 2019. Because of the
insufficient information available in relation to the approval documents
of these goods exchange and the fact that the Relevant Subsidiaries
had not maintained timely and complete records of Goods Exchange
Promises in prior reporting periods as described in paragraph 1.2 above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to whether these exchanged goods were related to Goods
Exchange Promises made before the current year and consequently
whether they were properly recorded in the current year. There were no
alternative audit procedures that we could adopt to determine whether
any adjustment to these amounts was necessary for the Group's current
year consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)

Any adjustments that might be found necessary as a result of the matters
described above might have a consequential effect on the Group's results and
cashflows for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, and the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key
audit matters we identified are:

Valuation of allowance for obsolete inventories
Impairment assessment on trade receivables

Initial adoption of the new lease accounting standards
Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Units (CGUs)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FRFTTER®
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HRENSEE EEFTPYHBARESSENERSE

Valuation of allowance for obsolete inventories

REFTEREME
Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
BB A M SRR 526

The Group's inventories include raw materials and
finished goods. The Group has recognised an allowance
for obsolete inventories of approximately HK$16.1 million
in arriving at a total inventories value of approximately
HK$85.5 million as at 31 December 2019.

ESETERERMBRERR - RZ2F—N
F+ZA=+—H  EBEBETERGFELE
#4985,500,0008 T  ERMEGFTERBELD
16,100,000 7T ©

As set out in note 5(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group reviews
inventories on a product-by-product basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete inventories or slow-moving inventories that
are no longer suitable for use in production or trading.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such items with reference to the recent selling prices,
subsequent sales and the market conditions.

ﬁﬁﬂ?&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%#&i’%ﬁfﬁ FrEk - BEREERE
%i&%ﬁﬂf‘%ﬁ;ﬁﬁlﬁflﬂéuuﬁ 7(_,@?’ I
EfTﬁﬂ RIEEERRHZREIFHFER
BIELEE - EEES2BNMERE HERHER
MR mihat % FHE 2 2R FE -
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Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in determining the net
realisable value and allowance for obsolete inventories.
Accordingly, these areas are considered a key audit
matter.

EREER T RE R R RRE R A
i A LR R A - EUE - RE A ERRANRE
SHEE -

Our audit procedures included:

BRI BEAEF R

Obtaining an understanding of the management controls
over the identification of obsolete inventories and the
assessment of their net realisable value;

BREEERINREFERFGETERAFEZ
ZHITTE

Evaluating the reasonableness of the methods and
estimation used in net realisable value of inventories;

AR EER SRR EMERNTERGEZEE
g

Testing the inventory aging reports generated by the
application system and checking to the supporting
documents for its accuracy, on a sample basis; and

R e A R A Fﬁ?iﬂ’]ffﬁ‘#iﬁ% © I B H EHE
MR T A REERAXT - &

Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the lower
of cost or net realisable value at the reporting date
by comparing the carrying amounts of inventories at
reporting date to the sales price of inventories subsequent
to the reporting date.

BREEHREAANFERAEERSEARRNT
EEBERFENBEEMEETTARAKAER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) EARETSH
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE EEFTPHBARESFSENERS £

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

B 5 B AR TR B 5T
Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 YIS RRM 27

The Group has recognised an allowance for credit losses
of approximately HK$6.7 million in arriving at net trade
receivables of approximately HK$98.8 million as at 31
December 2019.

R-ZE-NF+-A=+—H S£EEEREZ
5 B U BR ZRF 58 4998,800,000/8 T - CHEREZEE
BB E #96,700,00058 7T ©

As set out in note 4(aa) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group always recognises lifetime
Expected Credit Losses (“ECL") for trade receivables and
estimates the ECL using historical credit loss experience
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors.

AR S IS IMK M T 4a) s - EEE—E
BHRUEHERFHERCEEER(BREES
B YARBEEEBELRZEBARER
EEHBR) REFTEMEERE

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in grouping debtors with
similar loss pattern and determine whether a particular
debtor is considered as default. The impact of economic
factors, both current and future, historical experience
and forward-looking factors specific to the debtors were
also considered in management’s assessment of the
likelihood of recovery from customers. Accordingly, these
areas are considered a key audit matter.

EEEEHAAAUBEEANES AETOAR
AEHEXRHE R fEF  AEERFEEBARER
BRER - EEIREN B TP WD F IR AT gL
RBREETBARAREERER - BELRNRER
ABEMBERZRNEE - Bt - ZFHDEERS
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Our audit procedures included:

BAMEEFBE

Assessing the controls over the monitoring of trade
receivables;

AHEBLESIEE 5 AR R 2 AE I T 0% ¢

Evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL allowance;

At BEEEAFEEHMEERBRERMERN
TE - BABRBRRERR

Understanding and challenging the judgements made by
management in calculating the ECL allowance;

BRI SR R S BT B B AR R R
BB

Assessing the relevance and reliability of the data used to
determine historical loss rates and the appropriateness
of any adjustments for forward looking factors or factors
specific to the debtors; and

AfEAREEBEERENSE 2 ABIERA SN
VARt B B 1 (R R (B 7 AR E B R AE L E AR R
ZEEMN R

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the reporting
period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) EARETSH
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE EEFTPHBARESFSENERS £

Initial adoption of the new lease accounting
standards

BEREMFHEEETER

Refer to notes 21 and 33 to the consolidated financial
statements

A2RR A MMM RE21 %33

The Group leases its offices, factory plant and land for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of two to six years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. Lease liabilities of HK$27.9 million
and right-of-use assets of HK$76.8 million are recognised
as at 31 December 2019.

EEEHERAE BERTHDUEITES » AT
N 2HEAHNABH - NF HEKTKIREREE
EITHR  UEEZBRTENGERRIEE - R
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As set out in notes 3(a) and 4(f) to the consolidated
financial statements, HKFRS 16 has introduced a single
accounting model for leases, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use assets and a lease liability for
all leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets.

HANER S BTSRRI 53 () 4P EL - BB 5
FERFE16IEIATE-HESFEL - HEN
HABRPAHERAERAEEELHEERE - EH
HRNREASIATHEHEMEEEEERERI

Management is required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in determining the lease
terms for those leases with renewal options, and the
incremental borrowing rates in the calculation of the
present value of minimum lease payments. Accordingly,
these areas are considered a key audit matter.

EREEETAGENEERNZFHEONEY
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Our audit procedures included:
B ESEFBIE

Assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the accounting
for lease transactions;

AEREER S EIEEMNE BN BRI R
Bt R BREA L

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the present value
of minimum lease payment calculation, assessing the key
assumptions and estimates made in the calculation and
testing the accuracy and completeness of the data used;
and

AR RERENFREF OB EREN - F A5
B R R Y R ARER M h ET DA S B P 2 A B By
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Assessing the reasonableness of the incremental
borrowing rates applied and performing sensitivity analysis.

SEOE TR MBS AR 2 AR TR
B A -
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AREETEE®

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE EEFTPHBARESFSENERS £
4. Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Units  Our audit procedures included:

4.

(CGUs)
ﬁﬁzisﬁﬁﬁim

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 A WIS RERMIFE23

As at 31 December 2019, before impairment testing,
goodwill with total carrying amount of approximately
HK$30.9 million was allocated to the Sale of Cosmetic
Products in the PRC CGU ("CGU A”) and Medical
Aesthetics Services in the PRC CGU (“CGU B"). These CGUs
are tested for impairment at least annually or whenever
there is an impairment indicator by comparing the
carrying amounts including goodwill with the respective
recoverable amounts of the CGUs.
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At 31 December 2019, the result of the Group’'s CGU
A impairment assessment concluded that there was
no impairment loss for this CGU. CGU B was tested for
impairment and impairment loss of HK$3.5 million was
recognised on goodwill at end of reporting period to
reduce the carry amount of CGU B to its recoverable
amount.
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The impairment assessments were based on value in
use models and management was required to exercise
significant judgements and estimations including sales
growth rates, gross profit margin and long-term growth
rates used to estimate future cash flows and discount
rates applied to these forecasted future cash flows of the
underlying CGUs. Accordingly, these areas are considered
a key audit matter.
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Understanding and evaluating management’s key controls
over the impairment assessment process;

W R 0 R B IR B BB ERHE B E M X B

Obtaining and evaluating management’s approved cash
flow forecasts, testing the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying value in use calculations and agreeing them to
the approved cash flow forecasts;
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Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

ERBPABRBRITENERE  BEXERROEE
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Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rates used
with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists.

ERPABEEEROH T - FEAERAE
RZHEEM -

BARAEEWEERERAT —ZE—hss% 119




Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZHMRES

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the Company’s annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to
conclude whether the Comparative Figures presented in the current year's
consolidated financial statements were free from material misstatement.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the Other Information
is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, which form the basis for the Comparative Figures, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 20 March 2019. As further explained in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section set out above, we were unable to determine whether the
relevant Comparative Figures were free from material misstatement.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZHMRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 November 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

%/T\/\ B M

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—T-NFT-_A=F—HILEE

Hitt 2 E R

2019 2018
—E-hF —J\%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtEE FER FAT
Revenue WA 8 438,413 369,525
Cost of sales HEXA (172,843) (146,665)
Gross profit EF 265,570 222,860
Other income and other gains H s M AIS 9 5,957 8077
Impairment losses on goodwill B EEE 23 (3,541) -
Impairment losses, net of reversal BEE 8 (FOkR ) 10 (4,297) 2,267
Distribution and selling expenses S RIEERE (149,683) (120,200)
Administrative expenses G (72,492) (69,982)
Other expenses and other losses Hithz A8k (3,183) (3,865)
Profit from operations FES— ey ] 38,331 39,157
Finance costs BhE R AN 12 (1,329) =
Profit before tax BRBE AR R 37,002 39,157
Income tax expense Frisfif X 13 (15,094) (12,898)
Profit for the year N F R F 14 21,908 26,259
Other comprehensive income: Htb 2 MmUY
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & REZ DAL 18557k~
HE :
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension THREFERSHE B
plans = 114 3,372
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: Higa Hb?ﬁs_ﬁ FTOMEERRRZ
HH
Exchange differences on translating foreign Tﬁ%/ﬁﬁVP%ﬁQJXEZEE%ﬁﬁ
operations (6,084) (32421)
Other comprehensive income for theyear, ZNFEEHMEE W & HRHIE
net of tax (5,970) (29,049)
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ANEEZHE N5 15,938 (2,790)
Profit for the year attributable to: BAN AL BAERFEER
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETEZ RSN 21,908 26,259
Total comprehensive income for the year UTFATEERFEZERE
attributable to: B
Owners of the Company $ AEA A 15,938 (2,790)
Earnings per share BRER
Basic YN HK$1.1 cents HK$1.3 cents
18(a) 1184 137l
Diluted i 18(b) N/A RER N/A 7~ iE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRI HRK

n\/-_l_\
At 31 December 2019-+ :
B=F— =R
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5T FH&xT FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W= - BB MEE 19 268,191 197,207
Investment properties REYHE 20 7,928 7,674
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 21 76,772 =
Prepaid land lease payments T E TR 22 - 48,530
Goodwill B 23 27,383 31,407
Intangible assets BmLEE 24 15,017 17,122
Deposits for purchase of property, plant and BEME BERSHEIES
equipment - 20,528
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 34 2,181 5,234
Pledged bank deposits IR TN 29 - 3,479
397,472 331,181
Current assets REEE
Prepaid land lease payments T E TR 22 - 1,184
Inventories T8 26 85,492 74313
Trade and other receivables B 5 kE M EBERFK 27 124,762 86,567
Contract costs BRI 28 429 798
Amount due from related parties FEUR BA B 5 FOE 43(b) 134 420
Pledged bank deposits R ﬁETﬂ_mA 29 3,415 3,479
Bank and cash balances R MIRER 29 145,696 181,024
359,928 347,785
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 &k E b FETBR K 30 103,688 93,501
Amount due to related parties FEA RA 43(c) 370 =
Contract liabilities aHAE 32 27,376 22,616
Borrowings B 31 14,556 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 7,566 =
Current tax liabilities BEAfRIE B & 4,660 9,695
158,216 125,812
Net current assets REBEEZFE 201,712 221,973
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERS 599,184 553,154
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R IR TR
At 31 December 2019

RZBE—NEFE+=-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5T FERT FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings B 31 10,400 =
Lease liabilities MEBE 33 20,339 =
Retirement benefit obligations RABHNER 35(b) 652 1,299
31,391 1,299
NET ASSETS EERE 567,793 551,855
Capital and reserves BAR G
Share capital [ 36 200,210 200,210
Reserves ] 367,583 351,645
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 567,793 551,855

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 November 2020 and are signed onits R_Z_TE+—A=+HEEESHE - I

behalf by: RATREES
Dr. LEI Chien Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
EEELT EiRNEAE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HJI§ 1;

= N7
Z \ mom

FE)R

For the year ended 31 December 2019+ :

BE—ThGE+=-—A=Ft—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AORERAEL
Remeasurement
Share of defined
Share Capital Share  Statutory  Translation option  benefit pension Retained
capital surplus premium reserve reserve reserve plans eannings Total
ERER
U HE
B  B4BR  ROEE  iERE  EXGE  ARERE 0 ENTE REEH a3t
HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
ThR Thn ThR Thn T Thn Thn Thn T
(note36)  (note38(0))  (note38b)i)  (note 38(b))  (note 38BN (note 38b)(V)
(i) (REseb)  (esEsabi) (B3l (REssmi)  (H&E3abin)
At January 2018 W=%-N\F-A-A 20210 4554 41016 175631 %148 11,109 (1.46) 8334 650,746
Total compehensiveincomefor ~~ AEF2AREAE
the year - - - - (3241) - 33N 26259 (279)
Dividend paid BfifkE - - - - - - - (96,101 (96,101)
Transferto tatutory resenve ERTiTRE - - - 1% = = = (4% =
Changes in ety forthe year TEERERE - = = 49 (32421) = 330 (037 (98891)
At31 December 2018and RS- N\ETZA=1+-A
1 January 2019 RE-N5-A-H 20210 5% 41016 176126 65727 11,109 2% 12987 551,855
Total comprehensive income RERRENRAE
forthe year - - N - (6,084) - 114 21,908 15938
Cancelltion of share aptions iERE - - - - - (11,109 = 11,109 >
Transferto tatutory reserve BRTITRE = = - 3049 - - - (3249 -
Changes n equity forthe year TEERRED - - = 3049 (6.084) (11,109 114 29768 15938
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+A=t-R 200210 4)5%4 41016 179375 59643 - 240 42755 567,793
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IJF/\E%"UW %E

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—_ T NF+-_A=1t—"HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hFE | ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& FZHFIE2RERE
Profit before tax BT B4 A 37,002 39,157
Adjustments for: KRR TIEIE -
Interest income B WA (1,581) (3,020)
Finance costs BhE R AN 1,329 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #13% - B LR EITE 22,690 23,244
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREZEBE
equipment 225 970
Fair value gain on investment properties BEYHE 2 A FENE (137) =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 6,394 =
Disposal of right-of-use assets HEFTREEE 89 =
Release of prepaid lease payments B ot A ETE R - 1,234
Impairment losses on goodwiill BB EEE 3,541 -
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EE 1,816 1,117
Allowance for obsolete inventories PREFTERE 759 5167
Inventories written-off FEMHE 5,718 10,853
Impairment losses, net of reversal REBERER) 4,297 (2,267)
Operating profit before working capital changes %18 & & B B 5] 2 AL &% 7 82,142 76,455
Increase in inventories 7(? 5 3% N (17,656) (5,256)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5N E bW BR R (18 n),
receivables Ve ea (42,959) 24,986
Decrease/(increase) in contract costs BRI AR D, (38 h0) 369 (798)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from JE it B 5 SR IER A (38 )
related parties 286 (420)
Increase in trade and other payables E%&ﬁ@réﬁﬁﬁ KA AN 10,361 840
Increase in amount due to related parties FE A BB 75 SR IR IS N 370 =
Increase in contract liabilities AHAaEE 7Jﬂ 4,760 16,635
Decrease in retirement benefit obligation BIREFEER D (533) (953)
Cash generated from operations BEEBB RS 37,140 111,489
Income tax paid BFEHIA (17,076) (37,506)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE (1,163) -
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEEME2E e F5 18,901 73,983
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER

For The Year Ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—HNEF+_A=1+—"RHILFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF| ZFB-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFE-BHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEDE  BELRE (76,415) (31,298)
Increase in deposits for purchase of property, EEWME BELARE2ES
plant and equipment =0 - (20,528)
Decrease in time deposits with maturities of “REAN E—FLATRE 2
over three months but less than one year TEHATF SR04 29 12,666 6,579
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEIRRITETRD 3,543 -
Acquisition of a subsidiaries g1 =N - (18,923)
Interest received BEFE 1,581 3,020
Net cash used in investing activities KREESFAZIRES T (58,625) (61,150)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZEBFE-BHERE
Borrowings raised E5BX 24,919 -
Principal elements of lease payments HENFHESHD (4,729) -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ERARRGHEARE - (96,101)
Bank loan interest paid EIRITERFE (166) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BMEEEE (TR 2RSS FE
activities 20,024 (96,101)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBEESSEYRL FE
EQUIVALENTS (19,700) (83,268)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEREFE) w8 (2,962) (18,032)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—BZRERRELLEEY
1 JANUARY 158,218 259,518
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RT-ZA=Z+—-HZREREAE
31 DECEMBER ZEY 135,556 158218
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND RERRESEENIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITEBRE&ET 29 145,696 181,024
Less: Time deposits with maturities of over three  J&, : =8B A E—F A TR # >
months but less than one year TEBIfE R (10,140) (22,806)
135,556 158,218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/j_\

B HwR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHE—

TNFFT_A=FT—HHEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2019,
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A, Insbro Holdings Limited and
Next Focus Holdings Limited are substantial corporate shareholders of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. R REEITEBHBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

%8
(@ FERHITREETEEBUBR

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16 Leases, and a
number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a single accounting
model for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 did not have an impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor. The lessor accounting requirements are brought forward
from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 January 2019.
The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach
and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2019. Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition options applied are set out

below:

(a)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the
concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that were entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019. For contracts entered into before 1
January 2019, the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly,
contracts that were previously assessed as leases under
HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as leases under
HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NF+_A=t—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance leases,
as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group
is required to capitalise all leases when it is the lessee,
including leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, other than those short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied the
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The average incremental
borrowing rate applied by the relevant group entities range
from 1.2% to 10.6%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

(i) elected not to apply the requirements of HKFRS 16 in
respect of the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets to leases for which the remaining lease
term ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term
ends on or before 31 December 2019;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. R REEITEBHBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) SR )
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) RAFITIRZETEBTER
HER @)

EBMBREEFE 1657HE(B)
AN BT BEIER BRI

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (b)

(i) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in a similar economic environment;

(i) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as
at date of initial application in determining the lease
term for the Group's leases with extension options;

(iv)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application; and

(v)  relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 as an alternative to an
impairment review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAH T RKEITE B EHR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 42 as at 31 December
2018 to the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised

asat 1 January 2019:

£ XA
(a) HAFITRKBIEBHBR
£ A B ()

EBTEREELE165REE (B)

(b) FAHEASFEERBENLT
Z(1E)
TRIIIIEMF42EER =
E-NEFE+-A=1+—8H
KEREREER T —AN
F-A—HOHRHEEAR

B HR RN 45 SR A $9BR -
HK$'000
FAT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZE-NF+_A=+—HER
31 December 2018 B ST E AR 27,422
Less: commitments relating to lease exempt from W BERERME 2 HE R
capitalisation: AIE
~ short-term leases and other leases with - 55 HATE & K I eR 1H ER RS
remaining lease term ending on or —E-NFT+ZHA
before 31 December 2019 =+—HzxkZBIEM
ZEMEE (11,912)
- lease of low-value assets -REBEEEHRE (50)
Add: lease payments for the additional periods where il : NEBRAE EET F1TE
the Group considers it reasonably certain that T AR 2R R RSN AR AR
it will exercise the extension options EfR 1,716
17,176
Less: total future interest expenses B BIER S KB (2,318)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—-HA-BE®R
HERE 14,858
Of which are: Hep:
Current lease liabilities mEHEAE 3,859
Non-current lease liabilities FnEEEAE 10,999
14,858
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NFt_A=1t—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. AT RZEBITIE BB ER
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) &R )
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@) BHRAFITRLKETEBHER
%R (49)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BBV HHRELERE16EEEE)

(b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) (b) HREAGFEERBENR
Z(&)
The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously SRS BEAKEHECZHE

classified as operating leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2018.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

The following table summaries the impacts of the adoption

HEEHAREECRASR
BHITHERAENCDHEREER
ZEBER  UTRER-F
—N\FE+ZRA=+—HZ#&
EMBRRBRERCHE
BRZEMEBEMNEAHEE
NG REEITAE

ENAROAEERESRER
BMBHRELEAESR S H
TA(TEEMBREERF
1) AR - M1 B AT ER
E-RFPERKEHAFE
B 8 B AR B RSN B K
Wt AEREEEMA

TRBARKE BT B RE

of HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated statement of ERIE16REAREEERE B
financial position: BT E
Effects of adoption of HKFRS 16
RABRRNKREENE 6T HE
Line items in the consolidated Carrying amount
statement of financial position asat Carrying amount
impacted by the adoption of 31 December Recognition of asat
HKFRS 16 2018 Redlassification leases  1January2019
ERGBERBEREER R=B-NF R=B-N§
FeRYEzRANBM +=B=+-8 -B-B
RERER ZIREE ENAE HERR ZIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT TAT TET TAT
Assets B
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 49,714 15,151 64,865
Prepaid land lease payments (note) Tt E B3 (i) 49714 (49,714) = =
Trade and other receivables BHREEWER 12134 = (467) 11,667
Liabilities &%
Trade and other payables BHREMERER 174 = (174) =
Lease liabilities BERRE - - 14858 14858

BAREEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

b)

(©

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

Note: Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") of own used factories and
properties were classified as prepaid land lease payments
as at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the current and non-current portion of prepaid land lease
payments amounting to HK$1,184,000 and HK$48,530,000
respectively were classified to right-of-use assets.

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
This results in a positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss, as compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their principal element and interest element
(note 40(b)). These elements are classified as financing cash
outflows and operating cash outflows respectively. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore results in a significant change in presentation of
cash flows within the consolidated statement of cash flows
(note 40(0)).
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BE—B-—NE+-A=+—BL5E -~

RANFTR] RAEERT B BB R

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) =28 )
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@) EAFFTRKEITEBMBER

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(©

HAER ()
BRI BHREERE 165EE (F)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the Group (0 HAEEGHFEZEREL T
(Continued) EHFZEEE)
The following tables give an indication of the estimated TRETKNEBHBRE
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's financial EHIE1REAREEEE—
result and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019, Z-NF+ZA=+—HI
by adjusting the amounts reported under HKFRS 16 in these FECHBEERReRE
consolidated financial statements to compute estimates of ZEFRE  HERAEZ
the hypothetical amounts that would have been recognised SR BEmREAPREDE
under HKAS 17 if this superseded standard had continued SR E LRI FE 1655 T2 W
to apply in 2019 instead of HKFRS 16, and by comparing ZEBEUFERBES G
these hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the actual 2018 RIS 7% E T AR 2 M AR
corresponding amounts which were prepared under HKAS % 58 (fin 5% B ZE Al i JE
17. BB RELERE 165
T -NFHEEEA) UK
BT -—hFriEBREd
BE_T- \FRERLE
FHERE ISR REZ BERA
FESRERITLLE ©
2019 2018
ZE-NF “E-)\fF
Deduct:
Addback: Estimated amounts Compared to
HKFRS 16  related to operating Hypothetical amounts
Amountsreported  depreciationand  leaseasifunder  amounts for 2019 reported for 2018
underHKFRS 16 interestexpense ~ HKAS17(note1) asif under HKAS 17 under HKAS 17
ks :
nE: EHSEREZ B-2-\%
REBENBERS DEUHREEN MHeB(ENRE —S-nEzBR | REEReHEY
RHE1652R 1R THAER ERemEl SHEOBNREER E7H2R
Pk | MEXE  BURIME)  eHEHETR) LEELR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK5'000
Thn T THL TR Thr
Financial result for year SRAERREREE
ended 31 December2019  F16%HE2HZ-F
impacted bytheadoption ~~ —AFTZA=T-A
of HKFRS 16: LEEEHBER:
Profit from operation feRd 38,331 6,394 (5,892) 38,833 39157
Finance costs RERA (1329) 1,163 - (166) -
Profit before tax BBt AR 37,002 7,557 (5,892) 38,667 9157
Profit for the year REERH 21,908 7,557 (5,892) 23573 26259
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

£ XA

A=A

(a)

HER (&)
BRPBHREERE 165EE(E)

RANFTR] RAEERT B BB R

R REBITEBYBR

(©)  Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the Group (0 HAEFYBEZEERESR
(Continued) EHFZERE)
2019 2018
“E-nE “EF-0\§
Estimated
amounts
related to
operating
leases Hypothetical Compared
Amounts as if under amounts toamounts
reported HKAS 17 for2019 reported
under (note 1) as if under for 2018
HKFRS 16 (note 2) HKAS 17 under HKAS 17
ERLEREL
S ERIRE —B-NAFZRR BT \F
RESEMBRE BAGHEN  SECENRE |BERESHEN
EAE6HR2R  E175%) (W) EEgtEa FIRER
&8 (Fr2) E17%) LESBHR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THR THn THn T
Lineitemsin the consolidated  FR4HE BHKHE LA
statement of cashflowsfor ~ E16HFEZHE_E-1&
year ended 31 December TZR=t+-HLE¥EZ
2019 impacted by the GEBESRERER
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Cash generated from operations R4 ¥ KGR E 37,140 (5,892) 31,248 111489
Interest element of lease rentals ~ EFFEER S 2 FISHH
paid (1,163) 1,163 - -
Net cash generated from RETHRELRLTE
operating activities 18,901 (4,729) 14,172 73983
Capital element of lease rentals ~ ETHEREMALHH
paid (4,729) 4,729 - -
Net cash generated from/ RETBME /(A2
(used in) financing activities ~ & 38 20,024 4,729 24,753 (96,101)
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(©

(d)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of the Group
(Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is
an estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in 2019
that relate to leases which would have been classified
as operating leases, if HKAS 17 had still applied in 2019.
This estimate assumes that there were no difference
between rentals and cash flows and that all of the new
leases entered into in 2019 would have been classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17, if HKAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect is ignored.

In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified
from financing to operating in order to compute
hypothetical amounts of net cash generated from
operating activities and net cash used in financing
activities as if HKAS 17 still applied.

Leasehold investment properties

Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required to account for all
leasehold properties as investment properties when these
properties are held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group previously elected to apply HKAS
40, Investment properties, to account for all of its leasehold
properties that were held for investment purposes as
at 31 December 2018. Consequentially, these leasehold
investment properties continue to be carried at fair value.

3.

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2019. These new and revised HKFRSs include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

AN ] R BIERT BB I R

28 )

(b) EEGEMKRERZHIRE
B EBYBREER
7 82 ) 4 32 5B P O B 4L 1 R
R-T—h&E—F—BEHB2 MK
FEERT FETREIETE B
MR o LEH A RCETE S
IS IR R A IE L T AT AL A
B 5 B > %8 -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RUTBEBR %

Bz EtAREEN

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
BEGBHRE LR EIREHBNERNEE]

Amendments to HKAS T and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
BASHENE IR EBEBSTERFESREANTEERMIEE]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
BB ELERNESR - BB ERNE 09 BB ikE &R

F7IRH EEERFENEE]
Revised conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

PTG E 2 RIEFTHESAER

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. investment properties that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
foreign currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to calculate
the goodwill.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units ("“CGUs") or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars ("HKS")
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR MEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_Z-NAF+-_A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and leasehold
land (upon application of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the interest
in leasehold land was reclassified to “Right-of-use assets”, see note
3), held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Buildings
BF

Leasehold improvements

2.5% -
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i

Fixture, fumiture and equipment 7% — 50%

KA - KERREE

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and equipment pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant
assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R ERAR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_—

4,

i

NETZA=+T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An owned investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the
investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 4(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the Group could
elect on a property-by-property basis to classify and account
for such interest as an investment property. Any such property
interest which had been classified as an investment property was
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies were applied to that interest as were applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

()

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property
are carried at fair value in accordance with note 4(e).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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4,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment properties and lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee, the Group classified
leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of an intangible asset and their fair value can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair
value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Practice Licence of Medical Institution

BEMBHRTAIE

The period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less from the date
of initial recognition of the asset, in which case the costs are
expensed when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to be
recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are incurred
only because the Group entered into the contract. Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed
as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognised the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments (Continued)

- FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognized, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or

loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are

recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses (“ECLs").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out in notes (p) to (r)
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus directly to the franchisees or other distributors is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been shipped to the distributors and franchisees’
specific locations (delivery). Following delivery, the franchisee has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the franchisee as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Under the Group's contract terms, franchisees have a right of return
or exchange of goods within an agreed period and amount. At the
point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to
revenue is recognised for those products expected to be returned
or exchanged. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover
the product when customers exercise their right of exchange or
return so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset
and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses
its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of
exchanges and returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur given
the consistent level of exchanges or returns over previous years.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus through retail outlet is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the products at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the
products.

Revenue from skin treatment, beauty and spa services through
its self-owned spas and medical cosmetology services through
its self-owned medical beauty clinics is recognised over time as
the customers of the Group simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on an output method,
which recognises revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
the services.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue and other income (Continued)
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised

(s)

(t)

(u)

in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as expenses in the
period in which it is incurred.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Obligation for contributions to the local government of the
PRC defined contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.
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4,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(u)

(ii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the liability (asset)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets. When there is
a surplus in a defined benefit plan, the net defined benefit
asset is measured at the lower of the surplus in the defined
benefit plan and the asset ceiling. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension obligation. If there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds denominated in that
currency are used.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) —
which include actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) — are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Service costs and net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g A

2 Ny =1

B RS ER AR M =t

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(u)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount
rate used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or
asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and others providing similar services. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation on rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Effective 1 January 2019,
any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intend use or sales included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowing.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties is measured based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with
the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable
that the relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using
either the most likely amount or the expected value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are
not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z)

(aa)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R ERAR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_—

4,

i

NETZA=+T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group's core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments

are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable

and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R ERAR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_F-AF+-A=+—HILEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

0) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTBE®)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (aa) TRMEEREGE)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

EHNESR

AEERBATERRAREER
LEEEBNMEBRENEN R
A REEERBRT A AT EM —
TR G 2 FE W AR R — AR SR IR D)

- HFTERMBHE K

- ARBELEIERA IR
MERKA  BHATKA
EREEEA(BRAEE)
E2RER(TEAEERFE
M EAE AR R) o

Eim DAt o AT - AEERS
HEmEERYBEBOR - HEH
EENFN  BREAEEBERSHA
ERRNENREE AGENEHE
AIEER - AlERE o

FERESREE
EEELE—HRULEHHERE
ENEFARRREREELETNF
8 IREREERFEDHE -
TREEEERENTEEREAT
=R EBREUR

- BOAXEFHIHIREAH
TERE

- A piW EERMEE
#

- HFEIHERALREHF
T BERBEEENLERE
WRE - MERFTETE
RARKT T EEEHES
"

BAZEMERERA —2—nEsg 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R ERAR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)
- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets' gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

172 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2019

4.,

FESTHHER®
(aa) TREERE®)

Fgﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ
BF I ARRAIBEHEREST
Hipf R EA =X

- ZEeREBEERMBREMmL
EEBMIS -

WSS R
BEEERIELEBABARENE
WEFLAEERA @MU A 8 (8
REBADEBTRADEANRER
P - B S EKERRME
EERcERANBEBMFARE
ERERE)  AEEEMHESH
BE - CHENEREENTRE
AEBENKEEFEBRATITE
FEREERRTIEREEZER - £
WEIFRIRES N Ba P RER o

EHEEEENTERER
BHEEBENAENKERED
BE  BOBRRR(AENRFNE
RIEE) FIEX R R EK o 5HE
BHOBRLENBRENIKE /R
b ATRE 1 B S B H) B B
EREORR  REMEEMS -
HEREENHEAH 2 REAED
Bk

HEMEEMS - BPEEEER
RIFENENAEENMAE S LR
i/ﬂhigﬁi$§/t€<.%ﬁﬁ‘|’q&${ﬁ"]ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
SRMEBRRERFXEER) Z EH
ZRfhE -



4,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

(ac)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have

made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart
from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)

Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals and
another portion that is held for use in the production of goods.
If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production of goods. Judgement is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making its judgement

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy disclosed in note 4(aa), ECL
are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for
leases that include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken
and the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease liability
because the Group could replace the assets without significant
cost or business disruption. See note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event
or significant change in circumstance that is within the Group's
control. During the current financial year, no lease term has been
reassessed.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$15,094,000 of income tax was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated assessable profits
(2018: HK$12,898,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2019 were approximately
HKS$268,191,000 (2018: HK$197,207,000) and HKS$76,772,000 (2018:
Nil) respectively.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Any change in assumptions and estimates may have a significant
effect on the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
consolidated statements of financial position. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$27,383,000 (2018: HK$31,407,000) after an impairment loss of
approximately HK$3,541,000 (2018: Nil) was recognised during
the year. Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation for the Group's intangible assets. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite,
based on the expected usage and technical obsolescence from
the changes in the market demands or services output from the
assets. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over
the expected useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by
the management at least at the end of each reporting period.
The Group assesses whether any indication of impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of intangible assets have been determined based on value in use
calculations of each CGU the intangible assets belonged which
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Intangible assets and amortisation (Continued)
The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December 2019
was approximately HK$15,017,000 (2018: HK$17,122,000).

(e)  Fairvalues of investment properties
The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the method of valuation and inputs used are
reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$7,928,000 (2018: HK$7,674,000) after
recognition of the fair value gain of HK$137,000 (2018: Nil) in the
profit or loss during the year.

(f)  Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based on the credit
risk of trade receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$98,816,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$6,678,000) (2018: HK$70,930,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$2,363,000)).
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(9)

Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product basis at
the end of each reporting period, and recognised allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer
suitable for use in production or trading. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such items based primarily
on the latest invoice prices, sales after year end and current market
conditions less all estimated costs and expenses necessary to
sell the products. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of inventories, net of allowance for inventory of HK$16,073,000,
was HK$85,492,000 (2018: HK$74,313,000 net of allowance of
HK$15,985,000).

Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement plans
Accounting for defined benefit plans may be complex because
actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual results differ from the
assumed results. These differences are known as actuarial gains
and losses. Defined benefit obligations are measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method (“PUCM"), according to which the
Group has to make a reliable estimate of the amount of benefits
earned in return for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases where defined
benefit plans are funded, the Group has to estimate the fair value
of plan assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM involves a number
of actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include demographic
assumptions such as mortality, turnover and retirement age and
financial assumptions such as discount rates, salary and benefit
levels. Such assumptions are subject to judgements and may
develop materially differently than expected and therefore may
result in significant impacts on defined benefit obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(h)

Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement plans
(Continued)

The carrying amount of retirement benefit obligations as at 31
December 2019 was HK$652,000 (2018: HK$1,299,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities or
in United States dollars ("USS”"). The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group held certain financial
assets and liabilities which were denominated in US$. The directors
are of the opinion that the Group's exposure to USS foreign
currency risk is minimal.
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange translations and other financial
instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to
the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group uses an internal credit system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 59% (2018: 28%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the Group's seven largest
customers as at 31 December 2019 and all of the customers are
located in the PRC and Taiwan (2018: the PRQ).

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group's different customer
bases. Customers with significant outstanding balances with gross
carrying amounts of HK$12,248,000 as at 31 December 2019 were
assessed individually (2018: HK$5,386,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIEEAKREE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE#E)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWERER (B)

The following table provides information about the Group'’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31
December 2019 excluding balances assessed individually:

TREHAHEASER -_F—NF
T-A=1+—HMEHEZRUK
R EERREEHEEEHRC
BEERIFH A SRR 2 ER

2019

—E-hE
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIEER IREAE EiE e
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BNHEA (R # ER) 0.01% 77,374 4
1-180 days past due BHI1Z=180H 0.19% 10,890 21
181 = 360 days past due #HI1812=360H 25.98% 612 159
More than 360 days past due 1 EfiB8360H 100% 4,370 4,370
93,246 4,554

2018

—E-N\F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEARES IR X BRMEBE BB
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) 0.19% 64,231 122
1 - 180 days past due #HEI1Z=180H 0.45% 2,366 11
181 = 360 days past due #HER1812360H 0.58% 810 5
More than 360 days past due 81 EfiEB #8360 H 9.64% 500 48
67,907 186

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the
past few years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific customers is updated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

ARE B HERAR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—B-NF+-A=+—ALFE

BERRERE®

(b) EERKE)
B 5 EREER (18)
NEEBSRENER Y BERESE
ZET

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 2,363 5,089
Reversal £ - (4,542)
Impairment losses recognised for the year AN [E HE R RR(E B 18 4,376 2,389
Amounts written off for the year FRME ST - (462)
Exchange differences b H =& (61) D)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 6,678 2,363

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of
trade receivables contributed to the increase in the loss allowance
during 2019:

- origination of new trade receivables net of those settled
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of HK$2,116,000;
and

- increase in days past due over 360 days resulted in an
increase in loss allowance of HK$2,129,000.

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Other instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The directors
of the Company consider the ECL on these financial assets are
insignificant as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s bank borrowings
and other financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other
financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

6. HKRAKME

(c)

B @
REESER
AEEZBRAENERBAIKLE
HeRBHESTHE © HMEERAE

B R R BN RS
EREERHORBESHE

TRINFAEBRITEREE S
BABENHREMEEE B ER RS
RASRE(BRRAEONERK
(A ZBMR)ENBERHEEE
BERITHRFHEOF BT B
ARA AR B RN R HF BB
HIRIERE A BIHIHE -

AT - S RERERGR
(7] Eﬂfiﬁiﬁéﬁj BITE) HIRTTIE
RME - OMBETRIBEERAEAR

ﬁmﬁ’]riﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ/\ﬂﬁ
H (G RER) 7 BD Y B & X)) T 2
Emfﬁiumﬂj HithemaEms

DITRIRET EIE K A HmE

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

HHMASHN - KRR SR

Between
Within 1and 2 Between
On demand 1year years 2to>5years Total
REX —-FR —EWF ZEHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET FHEx THET
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hF
t+=HA=+-8
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERER = 103,688 = = 103,688
Amount due to related parties JE < B 75 508 - 370 - - 370
Borrowings EE: 13,423 1,363 179 10,922 25,887
Lease liabilities HEEE = 8,548 14,829 6,560 29,937
At 31 December 2018 BT \%F
+=A=+—-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERER = 93,501 = 93,501
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained above. Taking into account the Company's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

6. BIEEAKREE®

(c)

RENE SRR ()

TERBIFERERERGFEROR
TERBRBER GRS Z HEE
FEMRIELZZMB DN - B
THEBIHERS QN RFEZFE
MK Bt - HFESERR L
FHIMBE WP IREL EHEE
IS8 o st RARBZHHE
AR EEXRRRITIAAER
TEEXRNERNBIGE - EF
BE - ERRTERSSREER
R T E 2 TR E &K A M EE -

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments
MBS -REFAEERZRER

HERRRH ZBITER

Total
Within Between Between undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2to5years cash outflows
RURBRE
—FR —EWMF MERF pritaek k-
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZB—hEF
t=A=+-8
Borrowings EEN 767 2,054 13,548 16,369
Interest rate risk (d) FI=mE b

The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk because the
Group has no interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities other
than bank balances and bank borrowings. The future variations in
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the results of
the Group, as the Group's variable-rate bank balances are all short-
term in nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Other than the bank balances as mentioned above, the Group’s
fixed time deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

BAREDHBRARAT

AEEAZZFERRER - THEA
ARE B FBIRTTETF RERITHEFA
SMETREREEAE - ARA
SERFBNXRRITEFHERED
HE - MR REFH KA
AEBXETREATE - Fit
BEZ R R GRE DT ©

Bk LAUSRTTAETRSN - AEEZE D

FRRAEAR S - ERER
FEFEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HHAMERE®
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December: e RT-A=+—HzE®IA
EHl

2019 2018

—EB-hF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT
Financial assets: SREE

Financial assets measured at amortised cost IZ# X Azt 2 2 & REEE 252,778 263,147
Financial liabilities: TREME:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEA RV, SRAE 129,014 93,501

(f) Fairvalues H 2RAF¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial REBERRA BRI R R <R
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial ZEMEERERARKAMBERE
position approximate their respective fair values. HEBRAFEEE -

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AVERE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to NEEEMSE2EE CBRETER - &

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants BEFRXSHLEEEBWEKEEER

at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value BZAER - TXAFEAEZHE

measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels EREABTEATTEMBHER EZ

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value: BABBEFEEAE-EER 2 ATERER
@

Level 1inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for —RBABE  NEBRFTEEEAE
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at B HEREEXEBER
the measurement date. TE BT IS R R E CREH

) o

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within level TR AR B — R EIERE S
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BENABEEEZXME
directly or indirectly. ATERES 2 B A B o

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. “RHARE  EEREBETAER Y

BABUR °
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7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BEE—F- NG+ _A=+—"HAULFE =~

7. AFEFTE®
AEETHEER-FABRTBE
WEEE Y EMNEREBHE A EAR

that caused the transfer. B o
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 @ R+-—A=+—HAFEER
December: EBZEEER
Fair value measurements using: Total
ATEFEHEA : s
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
E—& -t 1 F=ZR ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHxT FExT FExT
Recurring fair value REMAFE
measurements: 5HE
Investment properties WA
- Commercial Taiwan -REEE
(note 20) (FfF5E20) = = 7,928 7,928
Fair value measurements using: Total
NEEFTERA @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
EF—H =t} E=F —ZT—N\F
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT TET FHET
Recurring fair value REEAFLE
measurements: &
Investment properties WEYZE
— Commercial Taiwan =Y E S
(note 20) (Bt3E20) = = 7,674 7,674
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SRR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2019

e
e

BE

7.

—ENETA=t—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEEE®
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) BEF=FBRLAFLEHEZE
on Level 3: EYER
Investment
Description properties
it REWME
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NIF—H—H 7,674
Total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss (#) RIBR R W BEEE® 137
Exchange difference MEH ZRE 17
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-hE+-A=+—H 7,928
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held at end of HERR R EHREERMBEEL
reporting period W sk 518 137
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NF—H—H 7,893
Exchange difference PE N =58 219)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF+_H=+—H 7,674

(c)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those
assets and liabilities at end of reporting period are presented in
the other income and other gain of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2019:

The Group's chief financial officer (“CFQO") is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The
CFO reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and the Board of Directors at least twice a
year.
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December 2019: (Continued)

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally

ARE B HERAR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-—NF+-A=+—HLFE

7. AVEFE®

(0 ERAEEFRRAGEEZRU
ERZZE-AF+=ZA=1+—
AzAFEMNEBFRERAGES
ZRBABBZHEESR .
(&)
RE=RATEFEMS  AEH
— eI AR EEERY AN

engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional

qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

HEERR 2 MERFET -

B=RAVE

=112
]

Effecton
Unobservable fair value for
Description Valuation technique inputs Range increase of inputs Fair value
BABBENE R
it hER* TABEERAYE £ TVE¥E ATE
2019 2018
ZE-RE | Z2-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAT
Investment properties Mix of direct comparison Yield 19%(2018:2.1%)  Decrease 7,928 7674
method and income
capitalisation method
REME BRELREARABRLE HHEE 19% &P
#a (Z2-NE:
21%)
Monthly market rent HK$32,501 = Increase
HK$33,541/ping
(2018:HK$30,257 =
HK$35,062/ping)
gAmSHE 250BTE B
B4ETL/ I
(ZB-N\E:
30257 TE
35062%7,/5F)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurement during the year.

RER  BEEARERE=AR

FiERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

8. REVENUE 8. WA
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products and service lines for the year is as follows:

LONE
AERRTIBEERMMRGEESD
KEFPEXZWARANT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers R&E B K REERF1555
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEARBEFEHZKWA
Disaggregated by major products or service 1ZE BE M RISEE S4B
lines
Sales of goods BEmigE 423,261 348728
Service income PR 745 s 2 15,152 20,797
438,413 369,525

AEER T E ERBEHE MR
BERY MR R AR EHEEE R

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services
over time and at a point in time in the following major service lines

and geographical regions:

ARISELEWA -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET

Primary geographic markets FTEMETS
The PRC el N 17 303,756 292,675
Taiwan B 131,080 73,315
Others EA 3,577 3,535
438,413 369,525
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PPN

ANy =

B SRR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-Z-AE+-A=t-ALEE

REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA®w
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (@) WABA(E)
2019 2018
it S —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Timing of revenue recognition R 2 E
Products transferred at a point in time PR ERESERED 423,261 348,728
Products and services transferred over time [ B 8 85 7% 2= @ M AR 7% 15,152 20,797
438,413 369,525
(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining b) 7THREEEFSHNNBKTEN

performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2019 and the expected timing of recognising revenue as follows:

BB 2RZEH

R-FB-—NAF+-HA=+—H 5
FEERR T (REER LD RE=E
) BHES 2R 5B RHERBK

ABITEET AT -
2019 2018
—E-hE| ZB-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FRX 27,376 22,616
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RE B R R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 9. Hislrzm MRS
2019 2018
—E-NF —FE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Interest income on bank deposits RITE A B WA 1,581 3,020
Fair value gain on investment properties KEWE 2 N EWE 137 =
Rental income from investment properties wEME e W= 238 296
Rental income from other properties and Hi R RE 2 el
equipment 2,371 1,958
Government grants (note) BT B & (M 5E) 1,438 2,230
Others H 192 573
5,957 8,077
Note: The government grants represent unconditional tax refunds received from Mizr : BN EAEERREARELS
the local government in compensation for taxes incurred and paid by the T B A B IES 3R B Hb 5 BT B B (R
PRC operating subsidiaries of the Group. RGN EERER TN
B e
10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS, NET OF REVERSAL 10. BERE (HIERED)
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) loss FTIEE BRRES
recognised on: CRERE)EE -
Trade receivables E 5 R K 4,376 (2,153)
Other receivables Hoth pE U BR 5K (79) (114)
4,297 (2,267)
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2018: three) reportable segments as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group’s other reportable segment includes certain inactive
operations. None of the segments meets any of the quantitative
thresholds for determining reportable segment. The information of the
other operating segments is included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include central administration costs, directors’
salaries and interest income.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") makes decisions
according to operating results of each segment. No analysis of segment
asset and segment liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly
review such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment
results are presented.

ARE B HERAR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

SEEH
AEBBEUATZ@(ZZE—N\F : ={&)

AERESE

1. PEXE
a7
Hith (B8 K HHAE)

AKRBZAHE D BREHARE RN
AR5 2 RBE K T & uoEE EXBRE
R I & S SRS - MRS Th o R
TER -

AEBO R T ] D PEEE T
HEH - HEH BEREIRAIERT
W=D BICPIE - RELMEED
42 ERTR 8] -

RED gt EER A B 7% MR M
4P E R o DRBBRE T BIEPRIT
BER  ESHMERNSWA -

TELERARA(EEZLEEREADR
BEOMOCERBEHRE - R E
BEERRAALARREIRD B RFFER
EMBEMTERENZSTESN  HALE=2
SINFEERDEEBHDON - Bt
Z25 0 BUWARDEBEE

b
=
=
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e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 7HER @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets AL HzER  BEEREEE
and liabilities: e
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
AP A B =) | Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FaxT FET
Year ended 31 December BE-ZE-h&E+=
2019 A=+—HLFE
Revenue from external customers 3& B 9N 2 WA 303,756 131,556 3,101 438,413
Segment profit/(loss) DEBEEH, (E51E) 35,588 13,162 (235) 48,515
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #9% - BB K& &R {E
and equipment e 17,201 5,448 41 22,690
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets 5,143 1,167 84 6,394
Impairment losses on goodwill  FEIEF E &8 3,541 = = 3,541
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 7 & EE 1 1,816 = = 1,816
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment By Sp= 225 = = 225
(Reversal of)/allowance for REFE EHE
obsolete inventories BE), s (153) 896 16 759
Inventories write-off FEMsE 5,718 = = 5,718
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) & 5 FEUR B Tk B 15,
for trade receivables (B m) 4,372 20 (16) 4,376
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e MBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) . DEPER @)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets AKEsHERE BEEREEE
and liabilities: (Continued) F )
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
B A =y Hith Bt
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TFET FET FET FET

Year ended 31 December BE-E-N\HE+=

2018 A=+t—HLHFE
Revenue from external customers R B SMNEBERFE Z WA 292,675 73,315 3,535 369,525
Segment profit/(loss) DEEF], (E518) 39,111 8,643 67) 47,687
Depreciation of property, plant 473 - BB K& &R E
and equipment e 18,258 4,963 23 23,244
Release of prepaid land lease BB L B ETEI
payments 1,234 - - 1,234
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & E 54 1,117 = = 1,117
Loss on disposal of property, LEME  BEK
plant and equipment BB BB 815 155 = 970
Allowance for obsolete PREGFEEME
inventories 4,387 731 49 5167
Inventories write-off ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ 10,853 - - 10,853
(Reversal of allowance)/ B 5 e AR TR (B 5
allowance for trade receivables ~ #[a]) /& (2,170) 13 4 (2,153)
Reconciliations of segment revenue, profit or loss and DEBA - BREREEHR
assets:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue ' ON
Total revenue of reportable segments AR o BB A 438,413 369,525
Profit or loss Bi
Total profit of reportable segments Ej%&i’\ H 48 7 48,515 47,687
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBAR T M (13,094) (11,550)
Unallocated income Robolas 1,581 3,020
Consolidated profit before tax BRA B4R A& i 7 37,002 39,157
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e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2HBER @
Geographical information: HIBER :
The Group’s information about its non-current assets by location of assets AEEREEMTHEDHNIERBEE
are detailed below: ZERFBEEINMT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
The PRC AR B K B 317,739 273219
Taiwan =y 76,545 49,036
Others Efh 1,007 213
Consolidated total AR 395,291 322,468

Note: Non-current assets excluded pledged bank deposits and deferred tax Mt ERBEETRERMRITERK
assets. RIEFTSTHIAE ©

REFEFEFZBA :
AEBZEPERER N_T—NF
RZF—-N\FMEFE  LEERE—

Revenue from major customers:
The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue for both years 2019 and

2018. P ZBRMEAREBEUA10%IA L -
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. MEHA

2019 2018
—2-nF| =—E-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on borrowings EFFLE 166 =
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 21) HESEMNE T (E21) 1,163 =
1,329 -
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BE—Z-—NAE1+ - A=+—BRLFE -~

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FifEHAX
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows: EREBERERZFEHAT
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax (“EIT") BNEARRIE - R BIR FEFTISH
([E¥FEHD
Provision for the year FAEE 4,486 14,125
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEFERETR (B
i) 109 (226)
4,595 13,899
Current tax — Taiwan Corporate income tax BNEAFRIE - 8B SEMEH
Provision for the year FREME 3,182 2,199
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 7 5
3,189 2,204
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax and others BNEARRIE - BB NGB R EM
Provision for the year FAEE 84 538
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEFERETR (B
) 498 (135)
582 403
Withholding tax A 3,912 =
Deferred tax (note 34) EFETIA (P 7E34) 2,816 (3,608)
15,094 12,898
PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2018: 25%). The statutory PR EMEHIE2%(ZF—N\F
withholding income tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10% (2018:10%). 25%) R RETHREBE - FPBRERMERE
TEIBAEHBHERI0%(ZE—N\F :
10%) °
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan, BRI B KR & &2 EEEf &R -
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% and 21% on A AER G ENE QR RRAE
dividends that are declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC and i ) i B R I B FEANH R R U2
Taiwan subsidiaries respectively and that are received by non-local AR B - IR BFEIMFE D B A10%F21% o
resident entities. Withholding tax on dividends of nil (2018; HK$9,477,000) FEAERAEZREBHHAZT(ZE
and HK$2,419,000 (2018: HK$3,308,000) for the PRC and Taiwan were — \F : 9,477,000% 7T) £ 2,419,000 7T
recognised respectively. (ZZ— \F : 3,308,000/ 7T) E 9 Bl i
R o
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e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FAEFHBEXZ®

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan has been provided at a rate of 20% (2018: BEPEMEHRIE200(ZT—/\F :
20%). 20%) Bi AT HE A o

RIBMAFESHEE  EEBKILHE
&SN A HY E2,000,00078 7T FE R B OE F
REBFESHEBREBAEE825% - Mid
B2 R A F i8R 16.5% T8 REF o

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, Hong Kong Profits Tax rate for
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations
established in Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25%, and profits above
that amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.

7R B E Bt E A 2 [ P E A B AR A g A
REETHBARZEREREERZ
RAERBED - 2B REM - RERTT
BRFEBIEH -

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group's subsidiaries
operate, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in
respect thereof.

P15 750 5 52 22 B A AR F1) SR A R B 4 3¢
PRISBM R 2 & RERMOT

The reconciliation between the income tax expenses and the product of
profit before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:
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2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before tax B 35 B A 37,002 39,157
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2018: 25%) BB EMRSH I E25%
(ZT—N\F : 5% EHIE 9,250 9,789
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible AR ST 2 B F 5 2 2,431 3,324
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BARBW G 2 B2 (2,029) (529)
Tax effect on deemed sale of gift item RIEHEE MmO BT E 688 =
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed earnings of 75 &8 1 B A BE &2 & /& i 8 A 7]
the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries ZARDIRBHNZFEERIESE 2,048 4,952
Tax effect of temporary difference and unused tax A MR E IS Z 58 Ik A B AR 1B
losses not recognised BBz BT E 1,001 -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously ) JC AT R HERFL B E B 2
recognised MBTE (2,132) (3.271)
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BEFERBERR (BEEE) 614 (356)
Withholding tax on income earned by non- JEER BRIV AR
resident entities TERL 3,912 =
Tax concession HIEEE (80) -
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEAR TR E 2 HMBE (1,622) (1,011)
Others HA 1,013 =
Income tax expense FiSHiAX 15,094 12,898




14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NEt-_A=1+—HLFE

14. XEE&F

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the REBARFERFB MR GEA) T3
following: FIA -
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets B8 E S 1,816 1,117
Amortisation of contract costs B HIB AN B 1,147 5315
Auditor's remuneration for audit services ZERN B BB ARG & 4,589 2,714
Impairment/(reversal of impairment loss) for trade 2 5 K& H it UL BR ZORE,
and other receivables CRUEEERRE) 4,297 (2,267)
Allowance for obsolete inventories (included in BREFEREG AHEXD)
cost of sales) 759 5167
Inventories write-off (included in cost of sales) TFEME G AHEKA) 5,718 10,853
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense EERBAI 2 FERA 131,492 123,190
Direct operating expenses of properties and AEERS WG MENEE
equipment that generate rental income HELERY 327 201
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VI - BB MR EITE 22,690 23,244
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (included in FRAREETE GIAHEEKX
cost of sales, selling expenses and - HERZTRITEHAS)
administrative expenses) 6,394 -
Fair value gain on investment properties BEYF 2 N ERE (137) -
Release of prepaid land lease payments o L ETER K = 1,234
Impairment losses on goodwiill HEREBE 3,541 =
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment &% - BB MR &2 Ei8 225 970
Operating lease charges (included in cost of sales, 48 &fHE & A G ABEA
selling expenses and administrative expenses) SHERZ RITHRADR) = 27,019
Advertising and promotion expenses BEERHEERY 40,179 19,864
Research and development cost TR AN 5,051 3,164
Net exchange loss bE R 1R F R 1,244 1319
Cost of inventories sold included staff cost, depreciation and operating EEFEXNABIEE AR  FTERL
lease charges of approximately HK$61,742,000 (2018:HK$54,303,000) BHEEB 61,742,000 T(ZZE— )\
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately. F ¢ 54,303,000/7T) - WEBFTAC KR
©F o
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e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. ETENEH
2019 2018
—E-NF —FE-N\F
HK$’000 HKS'000
T 5T e

Employee benefits expense (including Directors’: B T{&F B R (B IEEEH2):
emoluments):

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o JeA ERE 119,515 103,201
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBF)ET B 5K
- Defined contribution plans - ERRHB NG E 8,840 8,614
- Defined benefit plan - BRI E 65 123
128,420 111,938
Five highest paid individuals FEESSHMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year ended 31 AREBHEEZE-_ZE—NF+=-_A=+—8H
December 2019, one was the chief executive (2018: two were directors HFERERESTFMATHN—RAEE
and the chief executives) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis BTBRAECE—N\F MBAESEK
presented in note 16(a). The emoluments of the remaining four (2018: TETHRALR) - e ERMsE16()FT
three) individuals are set out below: TIDMARE - HpWE (22— N\F
ZR)ATZEE&MT ¢
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FBT FHETT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A AW V=4t 5,801 6,069
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R R T B 5K 124 123
5,925 6,192
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BE—Z-—NAE1+ - A=+—BRLFE -~

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 15. ETREFMEA®
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) EEEEHFMALEE
The emoluments fell within the following band: EMeART -

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 3 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HKS$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 7T & 2,500,00075 7T 1 2
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the RAFE  REBWEZHHERNTX
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out below as an S ESFEtEMAEEaFTMA LT ZR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for H - ERRSIEEMBRNMBREE
loss of office. W2 528 - SERBERR 2 HE -
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e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEN R EZ

(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (a) EEMERFTETHAE
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out ZEBEENRFETHRAB ZH B
below: W
Employer’s
contribution
Salariesand to aretirement
Fees allowances benefit scheme Total
EEHERIK
BRIFTE
ok HFERRR AR @5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2019 —E-hE TET TET FHET FET
Executive directors HITES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson) EEBL(ERE)
(note (ii)) (P =) 1,000 = = 1,000
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (note (jii) &R N5t (B i) 1,000 = = 1,000
2,000 - - 2,000
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang PRSFIE A
(note (vii) (BT i) 935 = = 935
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (note (1) b= (= 0)) 83 = = 83
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung R A 5 A (M 3 (v)
(note (iv)) 875 - - 875
Ms. LU Yu-Min (note (v)) FEx R 22+ (FiIEE (W) 734 = = 734
2,627 - - 2,627
Independent non- executive B FHTES
directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRInME ST 240 = = 240
Mr. LU Chi-Chant BEEELE 240 = = 240
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (note (v))  #5tt-45 5 4 (PR (W) 240 = = 240
720 - - 720
Total directors' emoluments ~ EEM© 83 5,347 - - 5,347
Chief executive officer FETHBAE
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling (note (vi)) MRFEEL 221 (B s (vi) = 3,036 28 3,064
Total for 2019 —E-NFEEt 5,347 3,036 28 8,411
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e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NF+-A=1T—HLEE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEAMRERE®)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a) EEMERTETHAE®RE)
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out BEERFETHRAB ZFH
below: (Continued) wmr ()

Employer's
contribution
Salariesand  to a retirement
Fees allowances  benefit scheme Total
EEEIRIK
BFIE 2
ok e MoERL Y a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2018 —Z-N\F FHAT FAT TAT FAT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (note (ii)) FHRE R A (BT EEGD) = 610 65 675
Dr.SU Chien-Cheng (note (i) BriZ {8+ (P &EG) 1,042 284 36 1362
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson) EEBL(ER
(note (i) (B = Gin) 167 = = 167
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (note (iii)) & 3% L5 A (B (i) 167 = = 167
1376 894 101 2371
Non-executive directors FHITES
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (note (i) BB (M) 1,042 284 36 1362
Dr.TSAI Yen-Yu (note (i) S F B () 1,000 = 28 1028
Mr. HSIAOQ Wen-Chung L)
(note (iv)) 350 172 13 535
Ms. LU Yu-Min (note (v)) B R 22 1 (BT Wv) 196 - - 196
2,588 456 77 3,121
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B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

g A

2 Ny =1

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued)
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out

below: (Continued)

16. EET/AIRER @)

(a) ESMERTETHRABG@
BEERTBETRABZFME M
W ()

Employer’s
contribution

Salariesand  toaretirement
Fees allowances  benefit scheme Total
EEERIK
BHEE
we Hre MoERS F 3R BEt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
2018 —E-N\F FET FHET FHET FTAT
Independent non-executive BV FHITES

directors
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (note (ii) 7t #8 & 5 4 (P £ (i) 210 = = 210
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PBRInfE £ 240 = = 240
Mr. LU Chi-Chant BEREELE 240 = = 240
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (note (v)) #5455 A& (PR 55 (v) 30 = = 30

720 - - 720
Total directors’ emoluments EXNe LT 4,684 1,350 178 6,212
Chief executive officer FETHAE
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung ER QDA )

(note (iv)) 673 933 34 1,640
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling (note (vi)) PREEIS 2 (Bt 3 (vi) 124 229 9 362
Interim chief executive RETHAR

officer
Ms. YANG Shu-Hua (note (vi) #5812 22+ (B3 (vii) 588 296 = 884

1,385 1,458 43 2,886
Total for 2019 —E-NFEE 6,069 2,808 221 9,098

204 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued)
Note:

(i) Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu ("Dr. TSAI") was re-designated as a Non-Executive
Director and stepped down from being the chairperson of the
Board and been appointed as an honorary chairperson of the
Company on 26 October 2018. Dr. TSAI resigned as Non-Executive
Director on 25 January 2019.

(ii) Resigned on 16 November 2018.

(iii) Appointed on 26 October 2018.

(iv) Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung ceased to hold office as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group with effect from 9 July 2018, re-designated as
a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 26 October 2018 and
resigned on 16 November 2019.

(v) Appointed on 16 November 2018.

(vi) Appointed on 26 October 2018.

(vii)  Ms. YANG Shu-Hwa was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer
of the Group with effect from 9 July 2018 and resigned as Interim
Chief Executive Officer of the Group with effect from 26 October
2018.

(viii)  Appointed on 25 January 2019.

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to
a management bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
in respect of that financial year of the Group, as recommended by
the Remuneration Committee.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the year (2018: Nil).

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—F-NF+_A=t—HLFE

16. EET/AIRER @)

(a)

EEMEREIETRARH
P& -

() BERFELTEBELDATRE
WITEFU ABETESFS:
B WR=ZFE—NF+RAZ+R
HEZERARAZEBER -
BTN -_T-NFE—A=+HA
BEHIRITES

iy WZZE—NF+—A+B#
£

(i RZE-—NF+AZ+BHEZ
£

vy BXBREEE-_ZT-N\FtAN
BREFTBETAEBRTREA -
YEZZE—N\F+AZF+ A
ATAANBFERITESE - BR
ZE-AF+—A+R<AHE-

VM RIZE-N\E+—-A+R BAEZR
£

V) RZZB-NF+A-TABEZ
£

i) BZE—NFEANHER - BR
EUTEZAARERRETR
BY - YR _ZFT—-—NF+A=+
NABEAREEREBEITHRES -

i) RZE—NF—AZ+HBEZ
£

HITEERFATESTAZAAH
MEZEeERcERENA B
AR T SHRAR BN A B
BEREZARRHEE AR EEZ

AR 15% °

FA - TEBTRABREFNES
BERERBEAME (TN
F R o
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g A

2 Ny =1

B RS ER AR M =t

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

17.

18.

16. EET/AIRER @)

(Continued)
(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, b) ESRRZ  ZHREHZE
arrangements or contracts KR ~
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation mij{j&i‘ﬁqﬁﬁﬂ% I A A7 AR AT
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and {ﬂﬁﬂx@aﬁg}ﬁﬁﬁzﬁv@aﬁ%%&ﬁ
in which a director of the Company and the director's connected FEATERNEEREEN R
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, BEASREXBRAZEARS -
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. RHREH
DIVIDENDS 17. KRS
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Dividends recognised as distribution during FRERB/DIRZIE
the year:
Interim dividend, paid — nil for 2019 BIRAFESRE - — - FE
(2018: HK$0.0145 per share for 2018) (ZE—N\F: - \FF
F%0.0145% 7T) - 29,031
Final dividend, paid — nil for 2018 ERARBARE -ZE—N\FE
(2018: HK$0.0335 per share for 2017) (Z2—N\F: ZE2—+5FF
}%0.03357% 7T) - 67,070
- 96,101

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$21,908,000 (2018: HK$26,259,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of approximately 2,002,100,932 (2018:
2,002,100,932) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 is presented as the Company had no potential
ordinary shares outstanding.
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18. SIREF

(a)

(b)

BREXEF
ERERBANDBBERARRE
FEAG 2N 5 12 i F £921,908,000/% 7T
—Z— N\ : 26,259,000 L) &
FREBRTEBR 2 MEFHIH
#92,002,100,932f% (=& — )\ F :
2,002,100,9320%) 5t & -

BREERR
BE_T-NFR-_FT-N\F+=
A=1t—BLEFE aRARAEL
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e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BEE—F- NG+ _A=+—"HAULFE =~

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. 1% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Freehold Leasehold Motor and  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
XA%E i BR %E

14 g7 &8 BE RE RRRE ERIR it
HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0O
TEn  TETL TR AT TR T TEm TR

Cost A

At 1 January 2018 RZ5-\¥-F-A 17455 185712 60374 539 235 #4233 BIM 417369
Additions 9 = = 3964 22 1062 4558 21452 31298
Acauired on acquisition of a REERBLTREA

subsidiary (note 40(a) (B&E40(a) = = = = = 138 = 138
Disposals it - = (2279 (604) = (9400 = (12283)
Transfer &Y = = 5829 18 = 5633 (11480) =
Eichange diference EiEE (484) (8919 (245 (212) 74 (3841) (1,103) (19003)
At31 December 2018 and R-E-N\E+-A=t-H

1 January 2019 R=E-NE-F-H 16,971 176793 65431 4109 3340 81321 20573 417519
Additions N = 1284 7575 559 812 5507 81,186 96943
Disposdls it - - - - - (1369 - (1369
Tranger 8% - - 2 412 - 5843 (6257) -
Eichange difference EXZE 219 (2287) (265) (583) 39 (746) (1652) (5,245)
At31 December 2019 RZS-NETZA=1-R 1700 175790 7743 41478 4191 90576 105,850 507848
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
At T January 2018 RZE-\E-H-H - 78292 50486 794 1321 60718 = 218759
Charge for the year Em = 5433 5372 3236 41 8752 = B4
Disposals e = = (2124 (516) = (8673) = (11313)
Exchange difference EiEE - (3718) (2073) (1332 (40) (3219) = (10379
At31 December 2018 and RZE-\E+-A=+-H

1 January 2019 R=%-n%-A-A = 80007 51661 29330 1732 57582 = 20312
Charge for the year FRH) - 4717 505 2613 2 9573 - 2690
Disposals e - - - - - (1,144) - (1,144)
Exchange difference EiEE - (1,054 (253) “16) 2 (500) - (2001)
At31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-H = 83730 56613 31507 276 65511 = 139657
Carrying amount Kaf
At 31 December 2019 R=E-hE+-A=1-A 1720 9,060 16,30 9951 1915 25,065 105850 268191
At31 December 2018 RS- \ETZA=1-R 16971 %786 13770 11,760 1,608 B739 3573 19707
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e B ERRME

2 Ny =1

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

19.

20.

208

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, freehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$17,220,000 and HK$78,364,000 respectively were
pledged as security for the Group's bank loan (note 31) (2018:Nil).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out the investment properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to four years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

19.

20.

¥ - BERRE®

R-ZE—hNE+_A=+—8 kA%
R REF S RI#17,220,0008 7T &
78,364,000 LB EHIERAKEIRITE
R EIRF 3D (S —N\F - &) -

REWZE
AEERBEEHERERENE &
Al E - HERNVRENRE S —
EME o

EHEELHT  ARMAHEESARE
ERZHARMEERE BHAKEY
BASZINERRE - HEANALITEER
BERRE/IEBAARBETESEE
YR B -

2019 2018

—E-NF —FE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At 1 January n—H—AH 7,674 7,893
Fair value gain N ERE 137 =
Exchange difference PEH =% 117 (219)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 7,928 7,674

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2019
and 2018 was valued on mix of direct comparison method and income
capitalisation method. The valuation was performed by Euro-Asia Real
Estate Appraisers Firm, an independent firm of chartered surveyors.

There was no change in the valuation approach for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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e KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BE_—2-hE A=+t RALFE =

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. EREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEWE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FHET
At 1 January 2019 (note 3(a)(b)) RZZE—-—h&—H—H
(F5E3@)(D0)) 49,714 15,151 64,865
Additions IR - 19,042 19,042
Disposals HE - (89) (89)
Depreciation e (1,179) (5,215) (6,394)
Exchange differences PE N =58 (899) 247 (652)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—h&F+=A
E— 47,636 29,136 76,772
Lease liabilities of HK$27,905,000 are recognised with related right-of-use R-ZEBE—hhF+-_A=+—H #HE
assets of HK$76,772,000 as at 31 December 2019. The lease agreements B 1E527,905,0008 LA REFERAEEE
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the 76,772,000 T — AR - REHEAREAE
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used WHEEE ERERN  HEBZET
as security for borrowing purposes. MEMEERY - HEEETSRIEEE
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 21. FHEEE®

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FTHER
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEERE 6,394
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in finance costs) A& & &F B X B GT AR E K AN)
(note 12) (M1EE12) 1,163
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets (included in FHAREEEEMERS GTATTR
administrative expenses and distribution and selling M ko iEREERS)
expenses) 1,602
Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in administrative A B2 B SR Gt ATTHFA S &
expenses and distribution and selling expenses) DIERIHER ) 9,326

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 40(c).

For both years, the Group leases offices, factory plant and land for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of two to six
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office building located in the PRC. The
Group is the registered owner of this property interest, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the land interest. The leasehold land components of this owned
property is presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-
use assets related to leasehold lands of HK$6,792,000 (2018: Nil) were
pledged as security for the Group's bank loans (note 31).
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e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-S—AF+-A=t—BILER

22. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 22, THEERGRK
The Group's interests in prepaid land lease payments represent prepaid REBRTHAEBN R ERIEEN
operating lease payments and their net book values are analysed as KERENHK  FECEEFEINN
follows: ™
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NF—H—H 53,680
Amortisation for the year FANBEH (1,234)
Exchange difference b H ZRE (2,732)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-N\F+A=+—HBK
—ZE-NF—H—H 49,714
Reclassification due to adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 3(a)(b)) RWB AR EERIFE 165 EH
238 (FiE3()(b) (49,714)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF+=-A=+—8 =
2018
—FE-N\F
HK$'000
FHET
Current portion mENER 1,184
Non-current portion IEREE 48,530
49,714
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's leasehold properties are located in RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H8 ' &x5H
the PRC under medium-lease terms. 2 TRE W EEAL AR B R RE LA BRFE 404
ﬁ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

23. GOODWILL 23. &
Sale of Medical
cosmetic aesthetics
products services
in the PRC in the PRC
(“CGUA") (“CGU B”) Total
R B KR
AR B KR HEBR
HEXBER EYi 8
(ReEE ((ReEE
B{Al) B {uB)J) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FH&T
Cost R
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—H—H 31,088 = 31,088
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40(a)) U E& /& 2 & (B 5E40(a)) - 5,781 5,781
Exchange difference fE R A58 (1,379) (297) (1,676)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF+=A
1 January 2019 =t—HERZZE—N
F—H—H 29,709 5,484 35,193
Exchange difference EHZER (465) (102) (567)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF+=A
=+—A 29,244 5,382 34,626
Accumulated impairment losses iR EEE
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NF—H—H 3,993 = 3,993
Exchange difference PEH Z%E (207) = (207)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January R-_ZE—N\E+=-HA
2019 =t+—ARK=ZE—N
F—H—H 3,786 = 3,786
Impairment losses recognised in REFHWRZREBE
the year = 3,541 3,541
Exchange difference PEH Z% (70) (14) (84)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+=ZA
=+—A 3716 3,527 7,243
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-NF+=ZA
=+—A 25,528 1,855 27,383
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NE+_H
=+—A 25,923 5,484 31,407
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23. GOODWILL (Continued)

CGUA

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses a discounted cash flow
method. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period and cash flows over five
years using a growth rate of 3% and a discount rate of 16.2% (2018: 11.3%
pre-tax). Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and the management’s expectations for the market
development. The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of this unit.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment on
Unit A.

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded
carrying value by HK$176,645,000. A decrease in gross margin of 1%
or a rise in discount rate to 18.2%, all changes taken in isolation, would
remove the remaining headroom.

cGUB

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and discount rate of 16.5%. Unit B's cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Cash
flow projections during the budget period for Unit B is also based on the
budgeted sales and expected gross margins during the budget period.
Expected cash inflows/outflows, which include budgeted revenue, gross
margin have been determined on management’s expectations for the
market development and its business plan as well as consideration of
past performance of comparable clinics. Since the performance of CGU
B was not as expected because of keen market competition and more
strict measures implemented by the regulatory authority of the industry
in which it operated, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for this
CGU. The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable of HK$18,301,000 and
an impairment loss of HK$3,541,000 recognised on goodwiill.

ARE B HERAR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-—NF+-A=+—HLFE

23. BHE®)

HEELENA

BN 2 AT RECEIZFEREBEEE
o ZfERAMBEREREE - R
METERTIREEEEIE 2 AF
BEEVYERAFRESREIEH3%E
RERI620IFE(ZZE—N\F : BA
113%)5H - EREEHE T EH HME
DHRIAGEFEESRA S REEB(RIE
FEERARENER)  B@AMFHRRSE
EEBEMNZBERAREEREHMBEERE
2 TEHEE  EREMRE  FH%ER
BRZEMABAIEEH TS EBULIE
CEABUCEAREBBLLRESEASA
Bz A EEEEE o

BE-_Z—h&E+-_A=+—HEK=-Z
—NE+-_A=+—HILFE ~&EHE
EIEEETEMAYERE -

LEREEFENTRESEBBER
HI1H 176,645,000 7T ° & F K5 4> 1%3K
BRI R F T E182%  FrE BN B4 7 &
B &SI R TR EE

HEELENB

A Z A Bl S REIEFEREETEE
EeoZiBEARDNBREEEEMEZR
FHIPFTAEE R165%MIRE Z7IRERE
BAFTSE - BHEAFHNEMBESR
ENRABENRWERRES - ZiER
ERBEMEBEITEERENAETSBY
TN T REGRE - BMBEE
HARME S RERAMBRIEEE AN
TEHEHEEENTBRENESE - BEIR
ERAS R (BEBEERAREFR)
EREBEEEEYMERREMNEERTE
MEE  URAIELEZAHNBERE
BT d#HRNBNTERERAELE
FRIEfTE EERBERNERISIER
MBHINSELBUBNKRIBARITEL -
AEBEERLIREELEEMBRERS
REEN BEeELBEVDOWAREE
18,301,000/ 7T 2 ] Y [B1 & RE I 2 FE R
3,541,000/ 70 2 B 2 R E &8 ©
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE—_Z-NE+-A=t+—RHIFE

23. GOODWILL (Continued) 23. BEw®w
CGU B (Continued) ReEXENBE)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, management of the Group HE-_T-—N\F+ZA=1+—HLHF
determines that there is no impairment on Unit B. B AEBTIEGE T BB MRE
24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24, BILEE

Licenses

=T Al

HK$'000

FHET
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2018 R=ZFE—N\F—H—H =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40(a)) Ug BB 8 A &) (B 5E40()) 19,200
Exchange difference b =5 (977)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZB-N\F+A=+—8BK

—ZE-NF—HA—H 18,223
Exchange difference PE N ZE%R (336)
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE-NF+-_A=+—H 17,887
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss 2t BERBESER
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—NF—H—H =
Charge for the year FAZH 1117
Exchange difference ME =58 (16)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-N\F+A=+—HBK
—ZE-NF—H—H 1,101

Charge for the year FRXZ W 1816
Exchange difference b H Z&E (47)
At 31 December 2019 R-_E-NF+-_A=+—H 2,870
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF+=A=+—8H 15,017
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-N\F+-A=+—H 17,122
Licenses represented Practice License of Medical Institution and are TR R R R R BT I BWIRTF
amortised on a straight-line basis over ten years. NBEAEETTHES o
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e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 25. RITB QB 2IRE
Particulars of major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: RN-ZZE-HE+-_A=+—B 2 EMH
BARSFEMT -
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
R B BRITRE,
) NG R HMER EERS 2Bl FERHK
Direct Indirect
E# CF:3
LBEAREMRRERAF The PRC US$29,980,000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio- care and beauty products
Technology Company Limited)*
HEBRAZEMREERLAAN N 29,980,000 7T EERHEEER
EXBREm
LBEAR=BEmBRAR The PRC RMB8,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian beauty products and
Cosmetics Company Limited)* aroma-therapeutic products
HEERR=MIERBERAF) N AR #8,000,0007T HEEEREDTERK
BRER
LBEAXER L mBRARe The PRC US$14,800,000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics care and beauty products,
Company Limited)* aroma-therapeutic

products, provision of skin
treatment, beauty and Spa
service

HEEREEREMBRATe AR 14,800,000 7T KERHEER RERE
n SR E S R
E - FRRKERS
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e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. RMB A B 2RE @)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
B, B S itk B BRITRE/
MEAREE kg HEfEAR BEER2LH TEXEB
Direct  Indirect
E# &

HEkBlEmERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Yongli Cosmetics Company beauty products and
Limited)* aroma-therapeutic products

HERBILhmBRAR" B AR AR #10,000,0007T HERBNEDERR

BhEm

BAFENREROERAA Taiwan NT$201,000,000 - 100%  Production and sale of skin
(Natural Beauty Bio-Technology care and beauty products
Company Limited)*

BAXREMR RO ERAR =y | 14 %201,000,0007T AERHEES

EREmM

BB ERRDBRAR Taiwan NT$126,086,450 = 100%  Investment holding
(Huei Yao Investment Company Limited)*

ERRERNBRLT =y | F12%126,086,4507C REER

MAREXARBEERNEBRAR  Tawan NT$50,000,000 = 100%  Provision of beauty consulting
(Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Company and training
Limited)*

WABRSXAMBREERNERLE AE #7& #50,000,0007T REZABEE RS RS

Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609,858 100% = Investment holding

Class B shares
MYR10,000
Class A shares
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. BRAE 68,609,858 % H& B% WEER
10,0005 #ARR
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25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and

Issued capital/

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NF+_A=t—HLFE

Percentage of

25. RIBARIZRE @)

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
AT, E S B BRITRE
HELE AR RiEEH HMER BEERES 2B TEEH
Direct  Indirect
& CiF:3
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - 100%  Wholesale of skin care and
beauty products
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. BRAED 25 HEEEREDER
Great Glamour Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
("BVI")
Great Glamour Company Limited HBRRRES 50,000 7T RERR
(RN
#5))
Next Success International Limited BVI US$100 100% = Investment holding
Next Success International Limited REHRARES 1003 7T REER
Fortune Investment Global Limited BVI US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
Fortune Investment Global Limited REBERRES 50,0003 7T REERK
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited provision of beauty
treatments
BAZRENRR(FEE)BRLAA 5 10,0007 7T HEFMERKREER
353
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% = Investment holding
BAZHEERERAR BB 2000007 7T REER
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e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. RMB A B 2RE @)
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
B, B S itk B BRITRE/
MEAREE &34 HEfEAR BEER2LH TEXEB
Direct  Indirect
E# CiF:3
LEEREENREFR A The PRC US$2,600,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med supplement
Company Limited)*
HEBRARENREBRLAN hEIARE 2,600,000 7T AERHEERRM®
HEaRTERmBERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Haili Cosmetics beauty products and
Company Limited)* aroma-therapeutic products
HBaRXBRIRRERAR hBIA R AR #10,000,0007T HEEERZDERK
fEmEm
BN EBBEXAYHMBRAR The PRC RMB4,000,000 = 100%  Provision of medical beauty
(Shanghai Lixin Medical Beauty Clinic service and sale of skin care
Company Limited) (“Lixin")* and beauty products
LBNEEBRXBRZHERAR AR AR #4,0000007T RUEBEXDTRBER
(ThiED HERBNEDEmR
TRERREXAZMAERAR" The PRC RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Provision of medical beauty
(Beijing Jiayun Medical Beauty Clinic service
Company Limited) (“Jiayun”)*
LIREREEXDLMERAR" AR AR #2,0000007T REBEIDRS
(=%l
* These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises with limited liability * ZEMBARARPBEARERZHER
established in the PRC. BENEDRE -
. These subsidiaries are domestic limited liability enterprises in the PRC. . ZEWB AR ARHBERERZHANE

BREMERE -

e The subsidiary is a Chinese-foreign joint venture established in the PRC. @ Z M A R A — TR R B K BERK S 8 R
IMEERE -

# Being English translated names. & BB HENRE -
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e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
;ag;%fA%f;ﬁz+—E¢¢F

26. INVENTORIES 26. 78

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
Raw material E AT 41,844 40,814
Finished goods UK M 59,721 49,484
101,565 90,298
Less: Allowance o B e (16,073) (15,985)
85,492 74313

Reconciliation of allowance for inventories: FERBELEER
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
At 1 January ®n—A—AH 15,985 10,481
Write-off ! (1,307) (542)
Allowance for the year FARE 2,066 5,709
Exchange differences b5 =5 (671) 337
At 31 December R+—A=+—8” 16,073 15,985
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e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

27. ES R EMEWRI

2019 2018

—E-NF —FE-N\F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHBT FHETT

Trade receivables B Z AR 105,494 73,293
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEERE (6,678) (2,363)
98,816 70,930

Prepayments TEfTFRIE 21,229 11,822
Deposits by 2,341 2,857
Other receivables E b B N BR TR 2,376 958
124,762 86,567

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days to its trade
customers who are qualified for credit sales. The credit period provided
to customers can vary based on a number of factors including the

customer’s credit profile and sales promotion policy.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, based on the invoice

date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEBHRTHENEGEEHEERZES
BEEFH302120H 2 EEH - iREEF
ZEEBAREZERAX(BIEREF 2=
AR AR S5 BRER) A BT o

REBEZEREH  AEEEZREERRE
NERBHR) 2 BRI DTN

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 180 days 1808 A 96,474 63,554
Over 180 days HBiE180H 2,342 7376
98,816 70,930
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27.

28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's net trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

e M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-S-NE+-A=t+—ALFE -~

27. ESREMEWR @
AEMBSEWESFEETEUT
B SR EHE -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHBT FET
HKS BT 42 75
Renminbi ("RMB") ARBIARE]D 59,733 64,424
New Taiwan dollar (‘NT$”) Far(lmar) 38,678 6,058
Ringgit Malaysia ("MYR") HRAEE(HED 363 373
98,816 70,930

CONTRACT COSTS 28. SR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Incremental costs to obtain contracts S A4S A 429 798

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 relate to the
incremental sales commissions paid to franchisees whose selling activities
resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase agreements for
the Group's services which are still not transferred at the reporting date.
Contract costs are recognised as part of cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue from the related
services sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised
in profit or loss during the year was approximately HKS$1,147,000
(2018: HK$5,315,000). There was no impairment in relation to the costs
capitalised during the year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

In 2015, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and placed bank
deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in order for
CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the Group's
construction project. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon
the expirations of the guarantee letters.

RZZE—NER-ZT—N\F+-A=1+—A0H
BEREEONAERE M INEENILERERS
B ZENERNEEIHEREFALE
ERREBRANREENRSEILEE R -
A KIBR AR AE B IR 8 & A FER R A A 4%
ABRERPERBHEEXNAN 3D - FRARN
B P ERNE RN AR S AHI1,147,00078
TL(=ZZ— )\ : 5315000/ 7T) - FABES
BE AL ARARE

29, HIFRITERRBITIRRESHL
s
RoT—H%F AREARRER BT
BRBRT ((HRERT)EEREHS
KRRITERIERERABRBERRITH
=B BT REK o T RITFFGE
TEOR B TR 1% AR BRI AR o
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RE B R R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND

CASH BALANCES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the pledged bank
deposits was RMB3,055,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,415,000),

which will be release in 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the pledged bank
deposits was RMB6,109,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,958,000),
of which RMB3,054,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,479,000) has
been released in 2019 and RMB3,055,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$3,479,000) will be released in 2020.

29. HARTERRBRITRREE

Fw@

R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—8 KPR
173 M BRI A A AR #3,055,0007T (18
FERH341500087T) - AR T =F
FERRRIEHR o

RZEBE-—NE+_A=+—8 - &#
IRITFRMEREE A AR®6,109,0007T
(FBZE R #96,958,00087T) » HEif ARE
3,054,0007T (A8 72 493,479,000 70) EL R
ZE-NFHEBRIKIERARES,055000
TT (FBER 13,479,000 TT) SR —E - F
FREREE

2019 2018
—s-nE| —B-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank and cash balances RTINS ET 135,556 152,837
Time deposits mature within three months =B ARENE 2 EBFR
(note (a) & (b)) (Fi 5% @) K (b)) - 5381
Time deposits with maturities of over three months =1 3 JA_E—F LA 2532 & #5
but less than one year TR 10,140 22,806
145,696 181,024
Less: Time deposits with maturities of overthree  J& : A A A E—F A TEIH 2
months but less than one year (note (a) & (c)) TEBFR (M @) &) (10,140) (22,806)
Cash and cash equivalent ReRBeEEY 135,556 158,218

Notes:

(a) The Group placed time deposits with banks with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies in Taiwan, with fixed
maturities and fixed interest rate which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk; while time deposits with fixed maturities and floating
interest rate are exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The balance was denominated in NTS.

(b) The interest rate on short-term bank deposits were ranging from 0.66% to

1.035% in 2018 per annum.

(©) Short term time deposits were made for a maximum period of one year
(2018: one year) ranging from 0.83% to 1.065% per annum (2018: 0.83% to

1.035%).
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e M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-Z2-NE+-_A=t+—-RAILEE~ —

29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND 29. IS TEARETRESLE

30.

CASH BALANCES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits are denominated in
the following currencies:

AC))
AEBRITE R EEEN TSt
g

2019 2018
—E-NF —FE-N\F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FET

HK$ BIT 2,391 1,691
RMB AR 110,437 131,119
uss e 5,138 5,752
NTS etk 13,215 16,015
MYR K 4,375 3,641
135,556 158218

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank and cash balances held by
the PRC subsidiaries denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$109,237,000 (2018: HK$121,873,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

R-_ZT—NAF+-_A=+—8 K&H
FEKERNBRRMIFEUARKTEZ
IRITRIRE ETF 4 75109,237,00078 7T (=
T — )\ : 121,873,000/ 7T) ° AR
A A SN 8 38 18 R B K s HINDE B I A
BIFN4ELE - EERFESERTE -

30. EZ REMEMRM

2019 2018

—E-NF —=—N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Trade payables B S TR 26,242 20,537
Deposits from franchisees neEmke 25,164 24317
Other tax payables HAth fEI 1118 10,448 14,229
Accruals ANE=da 27,004 27,938
Other payables H At AR X 14,830 6,480
103,688 93,501
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RE R R
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Et?é F— ﬂ$+ H -I— EIJJ:EF

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 30. EZ R EME R (2
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on the date of BEKESZAREEE - $’§ EE 5
receipt of goods or service consumed, is as follows: FERBRRZBREC O ITIA T -
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within 90 days 90H A 26,211 18,843
91 days to 365 days 91H &365H 17 1,680
Over 365 days 365H A 14 14
26,242 20,537
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in NEBZGEMERZERBEUNTYE
the following currencies: =g :
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
RMB AR 8,344 16,650
NTS ek 17,898 3,887
26,242 20,537
31. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES . ERRRITHE
The analysis of the Group's bank loans is as follows: REBRITERSTET -
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
Secured bank loans EHEBIRITER 24,956 =
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NAEt+-_A=1+—HLFE~

31. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 31. £ RETHE®

(Continued)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F LR 1,133 =
More than two years, but not more than five years FIF A ERFLAT 10,400 =
11,533 -
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment  —F R EIHEE BB SR ENRE
after one year but contain a repayment on FARFKEVIRITE AL D (AR
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) B &{&%I7R) 13,423 -
24,956 -
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 8 : 1218 B R 2l 2 & { 208 (R
(shown under current liabilities) BB EYIT) (14,556) -
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A 1% B B < 5K 18 10,400 -
The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans are denominated in the REBRTERZETDENU TN EET
following currencies: B :
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
RMB AR 14,556 -
NTS ek 10,400 -
24,956 -

BARZAEMBRERAR —ZE—hgEg 225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

31. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 31.

(Continued)
The Group's bank loans are arranged at the following interest rates:

BEREBITRE @

REEZ RITEFIZ TR KRGS

2019 2018
—®-nE| —FT-N\F

Bank loan at floating rate of HK$24,956,000 REEBHERFEZRITER
(2018: Nil) 24,956,000/ 7T
(Z2—N\F : |)

1.07% - 5.70% -

Borrowings of HK$24,956,000 (2018: Nil) is arranged at floating interest
rate which was exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s banking facilities and bank loans
totalling HK$24,956,000 (2018: Nil) are secured by charge over the Group's
right-of-use assets related to leasehold lands and buildings located in the
PRC, freehold land and building located in Taiwan (note 19 and 21), and
also personal guarantee from a director of certain subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has approximately HK$49,405,000 of
available undrawn banking facilities.

& 3024,956,000/8 L (ZF— \F : #)1%
FEAEFE SAEEATEERE
Fl=E

R-BE-NF+-A=+—0 &X&£H
IRITRE RIRTTE A £ 524,956,000/8
T(ZZE—N\F &) HUAAREERSEA
N B ARERNEE -t MAEFH BT
FAEEE  NRBERXAERIHE
BFMF19k21)UEETHBARE
EREABRATEA

R-ZE—NEFE+_A=+—8 K&£E
& #749,405,0007%8 7T A 0] &) A R HE VSR
1TRE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32. B EE
2019 2018
—T-hE —E-N\E
HK$’000 HKS'000
T8 5T e
Prepaid treatment fees FENEREER 11,689 12,150
Sales of products EmiHs 15,687 10,466
27,376 22,616

The contract liability is the consideration received from the customers
which represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods and services
to customers has not been completed. All the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year has been realised to revenue in the current year.
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

32.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities

recognised are as follows:

Prepaid treatment fees

The Group typically receives a 100% deposit before the services

commence.

Sales of products

The amounts of consideration received in advance as prepayments by

customers who are not qualified for credit sales are short term as the

respective revenue is expected to be recognised within a few days when

the goods are delivered to customers.

LEASE LIABILITIES

e M ERR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BE=Z-NE+-A=t+—RALTE -~

EHNEE®
HERANEBELBEBREEY B
HEZRIT -

BNERERA
A5 B — AR AR 7% 59 46 AT W BR100% 3%

Em#EE
AEEATFEEEHEERZTPE
AR B EIERBENRTIERES
RRBERABHRERINEL 2&
HBIRNFER ©

33. HEEE

Minimum lease

Present value of

payments minimum lease payments
BEEENK REAERNRRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-AF | ZEN\F | ZE-hF | ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHET FAT
Within one year —FR 8,548 = 7,566 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 28 — 2= A4
(BEERMEF) 14,829 - 13,930 -
After five years hFE 6,560 = 6,409 =
29,937 - 27,905 -
N/A
Less: Future finance charges B BIEMIEER 2,032 - TERA -
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAE& & TIR{E 27,905 = =
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : 1218 A W E 2R e
within 12 months (shown FERRBAE
under current liabilities) 5l7R) (7,566) =
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 18 EI| B fE 1 2B
12 months 20,339 -
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RE R R
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are denominated in
the following currencies:

33. HEEE®)

AEEBEEREZREAEBENATIIER
& :

2019 2018

—2-hE| “T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHETT

RMB AR 9,665 =
NTS e 17,449 =
MYR Bk 791 =
27,905 =

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information
as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

34. DEFERRED TAX 34, R E
Allowance Undistrbuted
forbad Other earnings
and Revaluation  Defined Unrealised ~short-term of PRCand
doubtful  Inventory of  hbenefit profitson temporary Intangible  Taiwan
debts  provision properties liabilities inventories differences assets entities Taxlosses  Total
HEAER
THEEN RERF HAREH AEREZ

REERE HFEEG BRUR AR HEW EREE BVEE RORBN REER A4
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000
Thr TEnr TAn TEn TEn TEn TEr  TEr  TER TEx

At T January 2018 RZZ-N\§
:hl= 1272 2502 1,093 956 2157 (621) - (13242 - (5863)
(Charge)/credittoprofitor ~ FRAMERE
loss for the year (note 13) (40B), /5t A

(Htsk13) (489) 1,540 - - 40 2605 79 @B 3% 38
Charge to other FERREMEE
comprehensive income il
for the year - - - (797) - - - - - (797)

Arising on acquisition of REWEREAR

subsidiares (note 40(a)) (P3F40(2) = = = = = = (4800) = - (4800)
Hfectofchange intaxrate  HEEE 7 H/2
note 13) (Hz13) = 49 81 126 = (1) = (168) = 87
Earing distributed BARER - - - - - - - 12785 - 1078
Exchange difference EHEE (67) (118) (13) (26) %9) (67) 240 439 12 301
At31 December 018and ~ MZE-N\E
1 January 2019 TZA=1-H

k=E-n&

-A-H 70 3993 1,161 259 2460 1916 @8)  (4970) 3976 534
(Charge)/credittoprofitor ~ FRIMERE
loss forthe year (note 13}~ (41B),/3F A

(HizE13) 958 (138) (28) = 36 1647 445 Q048 (3888 (2816)
Charge to other ERREMEE
comprehensive income Bl
forthe year - - - (132) - - - - - (132)
Exchange difference ] (10) (62) 7 3 (35) 41) 81 40 69 (109
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE

TZAZt-B 18 3793 1,140 130 2661 3522 3755 (6979) -
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e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for consolidated
statement of financial position purpose:

34.

EERIE )
MTARGLMBRABEMETHE
ERIEREADHT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHBT FET

Deferred tax assets FEIERIAE B 12,914 14,485
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBA & (10,733) (9,251)
2,181 5,234

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$34,331,000 (2018: HK$44,526,000) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$7,507,000 (2018:
HK$6,621,000) that will expire after 5 years from the year of assessment
they related to. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated
to be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been
provided for in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to such profits amounting to approximately HK$56,705,000 (2018:
HK$35,215,000).
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T8 518 4934,331,0008 T (=T — )\ F ¢
44,526,000/ 7T) Al FA1EIK SE R A= o |
RBE®EFRERETE - Bt &5
EEREBEERARLEHBEE - KiE
REEEEREERERBIHEER
TR FE B Hi R E51E 497,507,000 T (=
T— )\ : 6,621,000/ 7T) » EAbFIARE
B ERR A -

AEBMBFE TR B ARKERESINTBA
RAIBZZEENF—A—HABMELZK
DIRAF - ERZEURLERIBEME - R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the "HK
MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the Labour Standards
Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF Scheme”). The HK
MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme are defined contribution
retirement schemes administered by independent trustees. Under
the HK MPF scheme and TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% and 6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there is no
cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the PRC
government. As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, these
relevant subsidiaries participate in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates and the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its PRC employees. The Group has no other material
obligations for the payment of pension benefits associated with
these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$8,840,000 (2018:
HK$8,614,000) represents contributions paid on payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

35. BREREE

(a)

BAREDHBRARAT

EFEERETE
REERBEEBAHERESEE
KO AT ENMBEEEREERL
BEM ARSI BERESR
) - BRIEBEBESBEEL (K
BT R BHERAEEFE (A
EgEerrEll) - HERESEE
BEREISHEABELETA
B EEMBRKEE - RIBER
BRESEI A ERESEE
EEREEESE R EIEL#
o WMRESREERNEEEBK
A5% 6% - BEBEBEETEI 2T
A BRI A _EBR £30,0008 T (=
T—UERNA—BEBER  mMaE
RS EWET ARA LR -
AR RS EERA ©

AEBEREKRERBARZEER
FEIBRFEE 2 B E R RKET
TR E - BB AR RIET
BUERME - RETEKREREES
MZEREEE R ERBEN
BKGETE - BEARWELZRKE
TRBEARBIDNEAR ZHRE @ K
FRRKRE 2 EARFHE R IRGF B
AH - FEBNAEERARERKE
THBEKRE - MAKERIZARSR
BRRIRFT B (3R - HEIRE
THRELXREASEREAEREES
ZHE -~ LA RETRRE - B
XA Bt a8 2 ME BRI S A&
5 BRTHEL ERFEREMHZRIN - K
SEBEEMEREME -

ST ABERR Z 8K 7K £8,840,00078
TL(ZZF— N\ : 8,614,000/ 7T) °
DAEBRBETS AR E
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e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The
Group has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds
in the scheme to pay the benefits earned by the employees. The
Group currently contributes at 2% of the total salaries monthly as
determined and approved by the relevant government authorities.
Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits equal to two months’ salary for each year of service for
the first 15 years and one month’s salary for each year of service
following the 15 years, but not more than 45 months’ salary in
aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the PUCM. An
actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was carried
out by an independent actuarial firm which is a member of the
Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EmR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 35. BIKBEREE@®
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAGE B
The plan in Taiwan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BENHESASEEAZEER
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. % - Pl ERE - FXRER - &

Investment risk:

RERKR

Interest rate risk:

S

Longevity risk:

SRR kFRERE

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined
by reference to the weighted average rate of long-term government bond and long-term bank
deposit rate. Overall market condition is also taken into consideration. The change of discount rate
was noted mainly because of the stable level of bank interest rate. The management of the Group
considers that the general environment of Taiwan will not be changed materially over the coming
years over which the relevant present value will be discounted. Currently the plan has a relatively
balanced investment in various financial instruments and assets.

EREN a8 ENRENRALL2ERMEFES RRPRITERFE NEFHH X
RETHHEREXAE - BRMSBEATHAZE - BRXEPTEIIET - RADLR
RITMENREKT - AEEEEERR  SEBRBRENAREFTETIS LR IHMA
REMBBRNERES - BA - ZEEEMEHESRERIAREENDERE -

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

BB ADAGIE TSI BE - AT - MR SIMEBIE RENIE N 550 i

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

RERER : EREEMNFEEENRENK2EFE2EEN ERARREER 2T RN RIEMHBEE
FTE o FrEI2EENTHEMIENKEIENTEEE -

Salaries risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

FeEbk EREEMNEBEMNRENKE2ETEREENRRFCEITE - Bt © fHE828EK
FeEmEEmetralas -

(i)  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the iy HEETHEREGEEMEAZ

actuarial valuations were as follows: FERBOT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
Discount rate BhIR = 0.60% 0.09%
Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 TEARE R 0.60% 0.09%
Expected rate of salary increases TEEREr &L MRS 2.00% 2.00%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value BEEEETEEEZT
of plan assets was approximately HK$8,092,000 (2018: BE49/48,092,0008 L (=ZF—

HK$8,014,000).

J\EE : 8014,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 35. RARBERNEE @
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EBEREFTEE
(i)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the iy CREBRRIERZEHEE
defined benefit plans are as follows: FIstE8ISZEUT :
2019 2018
—2-nE| —E-N\#
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current service cost IR RS A AN 65 128
Interest on obligations BEBFE 83 147
Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 TEAAE H (71) (86)
77 189
(i)  Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income/ iy SREMZEWZE (BX)
(expense) in respect of the defined benefit plans are as BRZEHEBAFE AN
follows: il
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit B =t & E 2R M B &

liability: R
Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from ENMFTEELECRBE

remeasurement (&518) M= (181) 3,944
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE 2 FEHIE 295 225

114 4,169

234 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-S-NE+-A=t+—ALFE -~

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 35. ERKERET @

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EEEFEE
(iv) The amounts included in the consolidated statement of (iv) BT AZEHEMRRBERZ

EREANFIELEZAEE

financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in

(v)

respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BERSREMT ¢
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Present value of funded defined benefit EHREERANES 2
obligations RE 8,744 9313
Fair value of plan assets TEEECATE (8,092) (8014)
Net liability arising from defined benefit ERENEBEEZ
obligations FAE 652 1,299
Level of funding at the end of the reporting period are as RFEHEAEE R 2 H®HRt
follows: FlanT
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
Level of funding HR LB 92.55% 86.06%

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

v) AFEEBEBMNEHEREZ

obligations in the current year were as follows: BEWT -
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 9,313 13,569
Current service cost IR R B AR 65 128
Interest on obligations EBFE 83 147
Benefits paid ERER (475) (205)
Company payment NCIENE=N (538) -
Actuarial loss/(gain) BEER (=) 181 (3,944)
Exchange difference PEH =5 115 (382)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 8,744 9313

BAZEMERARAT —E—hseR 235



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 35. ERKERET @

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EEEFTEE
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the vi) NEEFEEEAFEZE
current year were as follows: BT :

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January ®n—H—H 8,014 7,945

Contributions from the employer B E 77 189

Expected return on plan assets FHEIE E 2 TEHAE =R 71 86

Actuarial gain FEE K= 295 225
Benefits paid BIEF (475) (205)
Exchange difference b H Z&E 110 (226)

At 31 December W+=-—R=+—H 8,092 8014

Actual return on plan assets TEIBEZ BREIHR 368 308

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based

on historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the

market for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each

category are as follows:

E=MERARRFE IR
BREOREZROMEY
BEMBAR T —_EAZE
BHETT

HEEEZEEZRRNURER
WEHBEEBSERLET
SBEERATEZzZBES LI
T

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

% %

Deposits with financial institutions Hi g B 17 3K 16.75 14.08
Short-term bills MHIES 4.51 3.07
Stocks e 8.82 10.99
Bonds B+ 6.72 823
Others EHih 63.20 6363
100.00 100.00
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the
current year were as follows: (Continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HKS$574,000/(increase by HK$646,000) (2018: decrease
by HK$612,000/(increase) by HK$691,000).

- If the expected salary growth increases/(decreases) by
1% (2018: 1%), the defined benefit obligation would
increase by HK$539,000/(decrease by HK$491,000)
(2018: increase by HK$585,000/(decrease) by
HK$531,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

e M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-—NEF+_-_A=+—RHILFE

35. ENRBRET®
(b) EFEEAFEE

(vi)

REEFEEER
BT (8
#ii%ﬂf%ﬁﬁﬁﬁixﬁ”
BRAMAXRNBERFE
e ATHREED Tﬁ?ﬂfﬁ%}%
ERBINBEHRREER
REAREE BRI AA LM
REEERFTEMERTE

TEZ®

- WMRBINBERENCR
D)100fEEE - BIERE
& F) & 7% 1k 2>574,000
77T,/ (38 IN646,0007%5
T (ZF—\F B
612,000 7T,/ (38 40)
91,000/87T) °

- MREHFEEEH
/G 1w( =2 —
NE 1%) - B ERERE
FE T #53E 11539,000
&7t/ CRi 491,000

TE) (=T —/\F 40
585,00058 7T,/ CRL 4*)
31,0008 7L) ©

ESIGURE D A7 AT BEE T
REBRMNER aﬁfr“\":'*‘
B ARETHEXRAIELER
BAE @IE{EJ*“TXT el
TREMERERHIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

35. BRERNEF®

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EEERFEE
(v  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the vi) NEEFEEEAFEZE
current year were as follows: (Continued) BT : ()
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, oy - 25| MR E 5T
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has - THEENEHB HED
been calculated using the PUCM at the end of the reporting s RS A RAER
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating BRUEEXSE  FERE
the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the EMBRABEFERZTE
consolidated statement of financial position. HRMEBABEINHERALE
FFEIH -
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used REBBRE SRR AN
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. BRERBTFEW RS -
The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 RZE-—NF+ZA="+—
December 2019 is 7 years (2018: 8 years). The Group expects H BFEENFHEFERA
to make a contribution of HK$79,000 (2018: HK$186,000) to TE(ZZE—NF : 85F) - K
the defined benefit plan during the next financial year. SEEHARTREYBFEESE
TE AR M T &I 1EH1 79,0008 7T
(ZT—/\F : 186,000 7T)
BIHERK o
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. BRA
The Company
AT
Number Nominal value
of shares of shares
REEHE G EE
HKS$'000
FAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIA T EER
At 1January 2018, 31 December 2018, 1 January HR=_ZT—N\F—H—H -
2019 and 31 December 2019 —EZ-N\Ft+ZHA=+—H"
—Z-AFE-A—BR
—E-NEF+=ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

ARE B HERAR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NF+_A=t—HLFE

36. fRA (@)

Number Nominal value

of shares of shares

KRB E RA7EE

HK$'000

T

Issued and fully paid: CETRHBE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, 1 January R=-_Z—NF—HF—H -
2019 and 31 December 2019 - N\E+=ZA=+—H"

—E-NEF-A-BK

—ZE-NAF+-_A=+—8H 2,002,100,932 200,210

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts.

AEBEREAZ BRRERAKERK
AREREER  URETEBHRR
RegsR  RERRFRERAE R
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HEARR AT KRS EAGEE - AEE
REBIRMNRE - BITHRORERAR
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e B ERRME

2 Ny =1

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

36.

240

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, capital surplus, retained earnings and other reserves).

36. R4S (=)

AEEERNEFRHEABREA L RER
BN o UL EUEBFERAEARE
A8 - EHFRAEBEBRBRRE R
ReSEYHE  KRABREABE#ER
M2 AR ER D (BIRRA ~ BfniifE ~ &
B REBEHN M EAM ) o

2019 2018

—E-NF —FE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Debt (a) &%) 24,956 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRENEEEEY (135,556) (158,218)
Net debt B HER N/A N/A
i A TEA

Equity S 567,793 551,855
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FREECHBER L X N/A N/A
B A NEA

(a) Debt is defined as borrowings as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing the non-
public float through the Stock Exchange’s website and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. At 31
December 2019, 25% (2018: 25%) of shares were in public hands.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company

(a)

e M ERR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
HE-S-NE+ - A=+—ALFE -~

37. XAB 2 MBARR MR R
BE
(@) ADFZHBRRRE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
M5 F#&xT FHET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 2EE 169,398 169,398

Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments E& RBARIE 1,212 810
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGIE O] 81,442 77,541
Bank and cash balances RITMIREER 843 747
83,497 79,098
Current liabilities REEE

Accruals and other payables FEH B A K Bt FE AT BR R 607 1,862
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE S 32,891 35,459
33,498 37,321
Net current assets REBEEFE 49,999 4,777
NET ASSETS BEEFE 219,397 211,175

Capital and reserves R R
Share capital &7 36 200,210 200,210
Reserves i 37(b) 19,187 10,965
TOTAL EQUITY R 219,397 211,175

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 November 2020 and are

signed on its behalf by:

RZZE-ZF+—A=1+HEES
e WHRUATRERESR

Dr. LEI Chien
BfEELT

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
RN E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_T-_NFt-_A=1t—HULHFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. XARIZHBRARBREFEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BB (®
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARRZRHELED
Share Share
premium options Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
B RER RRERS Rt EE st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHT FET

(note 38(b)(ii))  (note 38(b)(v))
(FrzE38(M0)()  (FIFE380)(V))

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F
—H—H 41,016 11,109 (39,756) 12,369
Total comprehensive REE2EWE
income for the year #aEE - - 94,697 94,697
Dividend paid (note 17) BT S (i EE17) - - (96,101) (96,101)

At 31 December2018and MRZ-ZE—N\F+=

1 January 2019 A=+—Bk
—E-NEF—H
—H 41,016 11,109 (41,160) 10,965
Total comprehensive AEEZ2EKE
income for the year ke - = 8,222 8,222
Cancellation of share iR
options - (11,109) 11,109 -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=A=+—-H 41,016 - (21,829) 19,187
38. RESERVES 38. &
(@) The Group (@ F£HE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are REBEHBSERASHNAE
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss EzimeBmnkAEMmEmKaERiU
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of NiFa R BBRED -

changes in equity.
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38. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Capital surplus

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. f@EfE®

(b)

The capital surplus represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the relevant share of the carrying
value of the subsidiaries’ net assets acquired upon the

reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

(i)  Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be

distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(iii) ~ Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC companies with foreign investment are required

to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after tax, as

determined under the PRC accounting regulations (the
net profit under the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (the “PRC GAAP")), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves
shall be made in accordance with the Article of Association

and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC

companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of

their net profit under the PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus

reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their

paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan
companies shall set aside 10% of their statutory net income
each year for the legal reserve, until the reserve balance has

reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used

for purposes other than those for which they were created

and are not distributable as cash dividends.

e TR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NFt_A=1t—HILFE

REEERE®

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BAREDHBRARAT

BEXRER
BEARRBECHRELRN
—EE_FAKEEHAMK
BHEAREREEEFEL
ER e

IR R fE AR

Pein i@ B o AR S R EE
ZBRBITIAD M E 4 2
B -REFSHSARE
ARRARBRMDEERCESA
HDIRTARABBIR - HER
BEEZED KRS BHR - &K
RABRBRNERBERBE
B BIERBNH BT -

SEEEE

cs LeleibN w2 =l bR S
Bl - REINEIRE R RER
RIEF G R0 E T 2k
REZMN(PRAARSRE
([FEAREFTRA)DEAET
WINETEOLLEREE K
HEESRCEERES -
DIERZEHBEEAREARHE
BERMAZETET I
KEZSEFHIE -  Hihh
BAREBETBE ARG
REIIB T FETE DL E
BEEETRARREEES &
EEATRBRERSEHE
BB HRAA)50% A 1E

REABEPIREN - A8
ARG EAREBRAEFY
201 0% E B B 0 B
EAERBESEIEAR
A&BAL -

FRZERBENED T8
REIEZSHEBENESET
SN Bt A& - TR BE
ERERENEK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

38. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv)  Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.

(v)  Share option reserve
The share option reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 4(v) to the
consolidated financial statements.

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme
Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002. A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms
exactly the same as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods
was approved at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) on 13 May 2011.
Upon the approval of the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was
terminated at the AGM on 13 May 2011.
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38. f@EfE®)
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(iv) ESHHE
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B M 40 PR BN & 5T BOR
BRIR L o

v) RRERKE
REEFEEERX T ARERE
B2 RITERBEHBEZE
FREEFTAFE - RIERE
A IEHR I FEAVAR AR GEE
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AHIRERHERR o

39. IR BER TR

DA E 2 RRESE
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BB ([E:TE)) - TEBE NENRE
BETEERAERESR - BREES
g ARF A AARRSEMB AR Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option,
but in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option. The subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will
not be less than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company'’s
share capital in issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or
the refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

ARE B HERAR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-—NF+-A=+—HLFE

39. UM AEBRSR®

DURAEE 2 R T8 (E)

RERARAARAAREER(ES
g DEME TR LR TREL
MEEAERAZBEITERRE - BHE
EABERT - BARR L RRER MR
AHTERTE - REFEE - RORBBE
BAURESSENBET @ EEETH
BRAT  RBETFERUTEBZE
=E  @QRNRBERERD AR (BARE?
B) - B EBRZAE R REXRMARKS
B bRNEZXFREARER L BH T
fE%8 - RORBIHMEERERAT
RNEHEHE - ROKRDEE -

REARNFIRREBILBER - BB
SRR D RREFTE D BE - 5
BBAQAREMNEBZEBITRO M
10% ° REARNFRR BB AR - £
AATEEAN—REEEANDEER LA 8
B 2 RIRKE T AT R PR B 1T I %
BETZRMHEE @ TEBBEAQF
AR ZEBTRMODMNI% - EER
REABUIFPATESTREE(LBE)E
B HERIE+ — (@ B HAR AR 2 SRR AE
WABBA RN T EBITRAA0.1% » AR
EBROHBEROUMETE CBERRB
5,000,000/ 7T © MEE R EB AR R
HHLAE -
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EREMEFEEREERRITEZAAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_T-_NFt-_A=1t—HULHFE

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39. UG AEBSR@
u&$%§2%&éﬁgﬁ)
RZF-NFR=ZF-NF+ZA=+
—B - REFHET B RDETES
DREFT SO E BT -

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
New Scheme was nil.

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 40.

CASH FLOWS

(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries
On 28 April 2018 and 31 July 2018, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Lixin and 100% equity interest of Jiayun at a cash
consideration of HK$11,776,000 and HK$8,547,000, respectively
from independent third parties. Lixin and Jiayun are principally
engaged in the medical aesthetics business and were acquired
with the objective of developing the Group's medical aesthetics
business.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from
Lixin as at the date of acquisition completion, is as follows:

II‘I e |

(a)

EREREBRME

W B B /B X A

R-ZZE—NFOA-_+N\BKEZ
E—NEFEtA=+—8  &&
BEBYE=FA2RUNBReRE
11,776,0007% 7T K 8,547,000/ 7T U B
TIE 2 100% M 55 K 3% 78 2. 100%4E
e NERRBEIBREEEES
% WEZARBENAEEE

BEEERNER -

KU B TR B #I 8 N E Y iE #O AT &
MEERBBEZRFERT :

HKS$'000
FHET

Net assets acquired: EWBEEFE
Intangible assets (note 24) EE E (M 5E24) 11,158
Current tax liabilities ENEARIB B & ®)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) EIEFR I8 8 & (Fi5E34) (2,789)
8,367
Goodwill (note 23) P2 (M5E23) 3,409
11,776

Satisfied by: UTHAREHE :
Cash consideration HEeRE 11,776

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WBEENESRARE

Cash consideration paid ENBEENRE (11,776)
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
BE—Z-—NAE1+ - A=+—BRLFE -~

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 40. Z8HEREXH T @
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) UWABHIE DR (&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from RS e BB B =R a3
Jiayun as at the date of acquisition completion, is as follows: FIEERABZ AFENT
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: EWBEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) ME - B MERAE (FTRE19) 138
Intangible assets (note 24) A E (M5E24) 8,042
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEET 21
Current tax liabilities BNEARRIE & & (15)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) BIEFIEE A& (534 2,011)
6,175
Goodwill (note 23) R (Ff5E23) 2372
8,547
Satisfied by: UTSFXEE
Cash consideration RENE 7,168
Consideration to be transferred A ERE 1,379
8,547
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEENRSRAFE:
Cash consideration paid ERERE (7,168)
Bank and cash balances acquired B IRTT RIR & 17 21
(7,147)
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e TS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AE+-_A=1t—HI=EE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Since the completion of acquisition of 100% equity interest
of Lixin and 100% equity interest of Jiayun, Lixin contributed
approximately HK$2,644,000 and Jiayun contributed approximately
HK$999,000 respectively to the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2018 for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period. Lixin contributed
approximately HK$365,000 profit and Jiayun contributed
approximately HK$749,000 loss to the Group's profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018 for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2018,
the revenue and profit generated from the subsidiaries are
insignificant, accordingly, no such disclosure is made.
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(a)

W BB B B 2 | (48)
BB N 1E 2 100% R M
RBZ100%KEEHE - RIBEEEE
HEMELEEH IR HEEE
BYHAEEBRE—_T—N\FE+_A
=+ —BIEFENRATER DRI
52,644,0007 7T }2.999,000/8 T ° A
W B e REEEE A L
M WEkEBEAEE8HEE-F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

HE—

4= AR

rE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—NEFI+-_A=1T—HLFE

40. EBREREXRMT @

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBELCZEBYER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRERSEREEZDELECZE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash EE2HHAB(REReRkIReE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for ) RMEEHELZAERIAS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MEERIAKRBEERERRNASE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from BEiRERERERNDEAREE
financing activities. S RenE2AE -
Impact
oninitial  Restated
application  balanceat  Additions Interest 31
1January  of HKFRS  1January of new Cash  expenses Exchange December
2019 16(note3) 2019 leases flows  (note12) difference 2019
BRER
BANE IS
BEEE —B-NE
#16% —A—AZ “E-NF
ZE-NE ge g7 FEXH +=A
-A-8 (&) g6 FEFEE BEME (W) EREE =1-H
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEr  Thr  TAT  TAT  TEx  TEr  TErT TEn
Borrowings (notes 31) e (31 = = = = 24753 166 37 2495
Lease liabilites (note 33) BEREMH3) - 14858 14858 19,042 (589) 1163 (1266) 27905
- 14,858 14858 19,042 18861 1329 (1,229 52861
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e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 40. 8 HEREXHT @
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (¢ HEZHRSRHEATE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases comprise REEFARSRERCSHERE
the following: A&
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within operating cash flows FFALERSRE 10,928 27,019
Within financing cash flows FFARERSRE 4,729 -
15,657 27,019
These amounts relate to the following: ZESRMENTEIBER -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Lease rental paid BENHEERS 15,657 27,019
(d) Non-cash transaction d) ¥REXRH
Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year of FARENME BELERZRHE
HK$20,528,000 were transferred from deposits for purchase of 20,528,000 TLE B EW X - K
property, plant and equipment. BEREHE2IESEDR -
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41.

42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period
but not yet incurred are as follows:

e M ERR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 _
HE-S-NE+ - A=+—ALFE -~

41. EXREE
NSRS E AR T NENREEY
BAKENT :

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZE-)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 65,982 92,127

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42, KEHERH
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under RZE-NF+ZA=+—8 BRET
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: AR EHERN c B e RERER
FAEFENAT

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FAT

Within one year —F A 15517

In the second to fifth year inclusive FoRZFERF(REEREME) 10,517

After five years hFi& 1,388

27,422

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable,
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such contingent rentals.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at 31
December 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in
note 21.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding lease commitments relating to
leasing of office under short-term leases is approximately HK$4,030,000.

FPRBEAZERRERNEE AL I
TEEEMNZHAESAEME - &8
AHECEXBRX A LETSH) -
RRARBTAGEALEETEREAARESZ
B e

AEBETHRMAETLRHEE - 1
ZE-NF+ZA=+—H  EHHAESE
AesEfENmRECEREES 2
RHEEASAE -

T

!

RZZE—-—NF+A=+—H B#ERE
HES T2 AEZHE 2 REEHREA
YE49 54,030,000% 7T ©
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RE R R
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease expected to be
received under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2. KEHERH @

R-F—N\F+= H—+—E BT
ARG LSRR BRRIE
BEGBNT

2018
A
HK$'000
TR

Within 1 year —F A

1,973

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRETHBERF 2,954

After five years h &

581

5,508

Operating leases relate to investment properties and an office building
owned by the Group with lease terms of one to five years, with an option
to renew the lease after the date at which time all terms are negotiated.
All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the vent
that the lessee exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not have
an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

AEEMEAERENMERRFEER
ZREMEHEB A —E0F  ArEE
REFER —EFRER - FERE
HEANHBEAEARERENS
ﬂﬂﬁFLﬂZE%EE”HI%%’K THERJE MBS - &

HEZ &ERKHENZTNT

2019

—

HK$'000

FTHER

Within the first year F—F 4,280
In the second year F_F 2,657
In the third year F=F 775
In the fourth year FPNE 215
In the fifth year FREFE 223
After five years hFig 254
Total #BE 8,404
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e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-F-NE+- A=+ ALEE -~

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 42. REHERH®
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss: TREINERERCSE
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FTHERT
Lease income on operating leases KEHEZHEWA 2,609

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

43. FEBMALRS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances (@) BRREREMIEImEREMEE PR
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the MZ S AT RS REERIN - F
Group had entered into the following transactions and balances A EE EE R A TET RS
with its related parties during the year. REBIOT o
Nature of
Name of related parties Relationship transactions 2019 2018
E2)paEy 1R RH5HHE ZE-NEF | ZE-NF
HK’000 HK'000
THET FHET
Eastern Media International Shareholder Sales of goods 941 -
Corporation (“EMIC")
RAREBRR D BRAF] AR EmiHE
([RARBIRRD)
ET New Media Holding Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of EMIC Sales of goods 44 -
("ET New Media")
HHRTERBIERBOBRAG RAEBZHBAR EmiHe
([RARFTERED
ET New Media Subsidiary of EMIC Advertising 1,232 -
expenses
AR RS RARBIE 2 M8 A Al BEERY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HIEFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 43. BB A TR 5 B
(b) Amounts due from related parties (b) PEURERES 5 FKIB
Name of related parties Relationship 2019 2018
ARG T 2 18 [EEEA “E-hAF | ZE-N\F
HK’000 HK'000
FHET FAT
EMIC Shareholder 126 -
ET New Media Subsidiary of EMIC 8 -
RIS RAREIRR 2 fi B A ]
Eastern Tenmax Direct Co,, Ltd. Fellow subsidiary of EMIC - 249
RARRELEHRNOBR AR RAREIRR < R R M8 QA
Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd. (2018: Subsidiary of EMIC) - 168
RREZERNHBRAF (ZZ—N\F : RREBEZ
B AR
Far Rich International Corporation Shareholder of EMIC - 3
REEERNDBRAR RARBIRR 2 AR R
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest free PN AR S ORI 22 Rk
and with normal credit term of 30 to 90 days upon issuance of RFETIERERE  —REEHR30E
invoice. 90H °
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

HE-S-NE+-A=t+—ALFE -~

e M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

43. EBALTRZ @

Amounts due to related parties (c) FPETEAEES KIE

Name of connected parties Relationship 2019 2018

AT RTE BR —E-AF | ZE-N\F
HK’000 HK'000
FET FAT

EMIC Shareholder 102 -

ET New Media Subsidiary of EMIC 268 -

AR EE RARB 2 B A A

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and e R H R IE IR £ E K&

with normal credit term of 30 to 90 days upon receipt of invoice. RIEEERER - —REEHR0E

90H -
The compensation to the Group’s key management personnel, (d FTEBEZZEEAE Z@M(BHE

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain
of the highest paid employees, is disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

SN FARARBES RS T & 5
BB 2 RB)RERA M RERM T
163 % °

EENHMBETBEERAEBRNFRZ
[ N

2019 2018

“E-AE| ZE-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FAT

Short-term benefits 5 HAE 8,383 8,877
Post-employment benefits & B BER IR E A 28 221
8,411 9,098
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e BRI

2 Ny =1

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

44,

45.

256

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented across
the globe. The Group is paying close attention to the development of,
and the disruption to business and economic activities caused by, the
COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position,
cash flows and operating results of the Group. Given the dynamic nature
of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of its impact on the Group’s financial position, cash flows and
operating results at the date on which these financial statements are
authorised for issue.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2019

44.

45.

WEHREE
RZZEZZFHEECOVID-1921& -
— RYIFEBT RAE B 5 M B A I A
FEREENEWR AEBRI@ET
COVID- 19/ B BT R R TS B %
R FEEERE - W HEEAEE
MHEMRR RensE REEXENT
2. ENCOVID-19BEMZ BT - &£
ZEVBMERERETE B - A8
TEHASEPBRR  REREREL
BREENFETTYENT -

& F
ETHBEFEERIBUGARFE
22553 -
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